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Processing and Preparation of Chinese
medicine, our unique traditional
pharmaceutical technique for

Chinese medicine decoction pieces.
“Processing” represents different
processing techniques related to fire,
while “Preparation” represents various
processing methods such as Cut Drop
methodology and Normal methodology.
By considering the situation of “Yin
and Yang deficiency” of human body,
Qi and-blood circulation, chills, fever,
excess and deficiency of viscera, and
impacts of climate, environment and
daily life on human body, the processing
and/preparation techniques are used
to‘adjust the properties of Chinese
medicine according to specific diagnosis
of patients, so as to reduce the toxic
side effects, exert the best effects of
Chinese medicine to human body, and
attain safe and effective curing results.
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Processing
and preparation

of Chinese Medicine in the
ancienf. and modern herbology

Cut Drop
Methodology

Cut into slices, parts,
shreds and pieces with
knifes to be clean, hygienic
and dust-free, mould-free,
infestation-free and
impurity-free.
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Washing
Methodology

Process Chinese medicines
with water or other
complementary liquids so as
to clean, soften the Chinese
medicines and adjust their
properties. Commonly used
are showing, washing,
soaking, bleaching, dipping,
moistening, levigating, etc.
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Normal
Methodology

Normal methodology is the

% first step of processing and
Heat preparation Chinese
Methodol ogy medicine decoction pieces,

which also means screening
and processing of Chinese
herbs. The purpose of
picking is to remove
impurities and non-medical
parts to reach purity
standard. This procedure is
important for ensuring the
quality of Chinese medicine

decoction pieces.
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Collecting
Chinese herbs

The seasons and methods of collecting Chinese herbs are

extraordinarily important in ensuring the quality of Chinese medicines.

The medical parts of animals and plants have different effective and

harmful substances, depending on different periods of growth and development.
Therefore, there are great differences between the curative effects and toxic side
effects of Chinese medicines, and Chinese herbs must be collected in suitable seasons.
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Cleaning

Water is used to rinse off the soil, sand
and other impurities on the surface of
Chinese herbs to keep them clean and
hygienic.
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Drying

Drying helps to deactivate
enzymes in Chinese
medicines to prevent
them from becoming
mouldy and for easy
preservation. In

particular, some HTTEZ

active Chinese

herbs, s /

be heated and I T BB B
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Grindi
Grinding is a method of crushing or breaking Chinese

medicines into small pieces. Chinese medicines in a large
amount are put into stone mortar, while those in a small

amount are put into cylinder for pounding.
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Rolling

Rolling is a process of grinding Chinese herbs in copper
groove by pushing copper roller back and forth to break
down and remove shells of Chinese medicine decoction
pieces.
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Sauteing

Sauteing is the process that putting the decoction pieces into hot
pots for heating and stirring. It is easier for fried and dried Chinese
herbs to be crushed and thus to produce prescriptions with
reduced toxicity and enhanced curative effects. The properties,
taste and odour of Chinese medicines can be altered by sauteing.
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Steaming Chinese Medicine
The method of putting cleaned and selected Manufactu rlng

Chinese herbs with or without complementary

ingredients into containers and heating the Various forms of Chinese medicine prescriptions such as pills,
Chinese herbs with steam or sitting the Chinese decoctions, tablets, ointments, etc. are manufactured from Chinese
herbs over hot water is called steaming. Steaming medicine decoction pieces which can be combined to form formulas

changes the Chinese medicine properties and based on theories of properties of Chinese medicine by different
extends the use of Chinese medicines. pharmaceutical processes.
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Chinese herbs are boiled with water or liquid as well BYF 82 A hn ok

as appropriate amount of complementary ingredients SREEH R L

according to specific instructions until all liquid is R AERRERER
absorbed or no white core remains. Chinese herbs HIETHEE B REs
are then taken out of the pot for drying. 2RSSR NE A O
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Tong Ren Tang at a Glance in 2021
2021 FEMZE—8

February —8

e Entered into the acquisition agreement of Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm
Biotech Co., Limited

B A RECEEFEBENRMER 2 A KB HZE

March =8

¢ Invited renowned Chinese medicine practitioners, KOLs and product
experts to organize a live-streaming event on the official Facebook
page on Women’s Day with the theme “Pamper Yourself and
Beauty Blossom”

BEEZEETEN  ABAARQAERERRE
LHEREESTREERTER[EEEC
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¢ |nvited local KOLs to organize a
live-streaming event with the theme of
“Mother’s Day” on the official Facebook page, and
at the same time, designed a “One Heart, One Job” prize
game, as well as launched the “Pamper the mothers with
heartfelt gifts” promotion activities
BEAMAGAACESRERYENRIRG | TEEEFTY  BRRFT—D0
— B ARBHEY  URHR[ZLELRRBE [ EREH
e The flagship online store of Tong Ren Tang was officially launched on the Tmall
Hong Kong platform, and organized a series of activities, such as the Opening Day,
the Brand’s Day, the Free-shipping Day and the 618 Mid-Year Celebration which is
collaborated with the official event planning and marketing schedule of Tmall
RABERTLARZNECEEREEER LR BEABELZBFEREHARE
KREERTHLEE  REA - BB -618FHEZ—RIIED

October +8

* Relocation of Aberdeen branch ¢ Opened one retail outlet in Causeway Bay,
BEEFEELRmRE Hong Kong

REBHBEELR -—RTELR

e Coorganized with Sik Sik Yuen, a century-old charity in Hong Kong and launched
“Show Love and Care to Stroke Prevention 2021”, including live online lectures on
stroke prevention of chinese medicine, promotion videos for stroke prevention,
visits to prevention of stroke, free consultation services in retail outlets, and also
online advertisements and outdoor bus advertisements etc.

HEBRFAEER [EelE ] SFEER AR FE2021]  SFFERPERR L
ERBE - B PRERRE  BRERFAED  TERARTERDRE  BLEER
FIBLEEEES

December +—H

e Opened one retail outlet in Mongkok * Opened one retail outlet in Dubai
East Station, Hong Kong G — REERE
REBEARIER —REER K
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Distribution Networks
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Financial Highlights
i E

Profit

Profit Attributable

To Owners of

.
Revenue Gross Profit for the Year the Company
A E7 FERE AREEEA
o o o/  TEERIE 0
(] /O [ ) /O HK$:000 (] (o) HK$'000 ® /O
TR FERT

HK$'000 HK$'000 700,000 700,000

FET FET 601,323 576 052 651,543 607,838
1,600,000 1513878, 4angap a1 1,200,000 p—— 1,119,623 600,000 600,000 580,720 556,118
1,400,000 1,012,796’/.

o 1,000,000 3 500,000 500,000
1,200,000 1 952,903
1,000,000 970,477 800,000 400,000 400,000

761,051

800,000 | g5 063 600,000 420;:33,031 300,000 | 7 sag 300,000
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200,000 j
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past nine financial years.

2020 HK$’ 000
2020 F Fi&T

2021 HK$’000
2021 F FHET

2019 HK$’000

UTAEAEEBENANBEENCANEEUREEHEERNE -
For the years ended 31 December EZ 12 B 31 HIEFE

2018 HK$’000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$’000 2015 HK$’000 2014 HK$'000 2013 HK$’000

Revenue WA 1,556,158 1,315,346
Gross profit £ 1,119,623 952,903
Profit before income tax Bk fr15%: 51 758 778,391 685,895
Profit for the year FE FH 651,543 567,881
Profit attributable to owners of the Company <2 T %A A FE1h F5E 607,838 542,456
Earnings per share (HK$) 2R &R (87t) 0.73 0.65
Dividend per share (HK$) SR E G&8xT)

Final 7 & 0.28 0.24

Special interim 4% Bl F1 24 = -

20194 FE; 2018F FTHt 2017F T 2016F THL 2015%F FHERT 2014F T 2013F FET
1,432,632 1,513,873 1,265,994 1,084,280 970,477 761,051 613,963
1,012,796 1,078,421 916,433 795,087 680,877 543,031 420,043

689,222 720,898 610,966 532,270 456,614 355,219 271,466
576,852 601,323 505,512 439,880 374,578 294,698 227,548
556,118 580,720 489,967 420,315 354,249 287,124 220,001
0.66 0.69 0.59 0.50 0.42 0.35 0.29
0.23 0.23 0.19 0.16 0.13 0.10 0.08
0.72 - - - - - -

As at 31 December 7212 A 31 H

2021 HK$’000 2020 HK$’ 000

2021 FEx 20204 FiET
Non-current assets EREEE 484,022
Current assets B EE 2,932,947
Total assets BEE 3,416,969
Non-current liabilities 3E R E& & 70,843
Current liabilities RENE & 216,616
Total liabilities B & & 287,459
Net assets EEFE 3,129,510
Financial Metrics 8 % {512
Gross profit margin &R = 72.4%
Net profit margin #iF| 2 43.2%
Current ratio fiEhtb = 13.5
Return on equity BRZAE = 18.1%
Return on assets EEE{=E 16.6%
Dividend payout ratio Jk £t %= 37.0%

Note: There are changes in accounting policies in 2019 which the Group has elected to apply without restating comparative figures as
permitted by the relevant financial reporting standards.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$'000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$'000 2015 HK$'000 2014 HK$000 2013 HK$’000
20194 Tt 20184 T 20174 THBx 20169 T8 20155 Fi8x 20145 BT 2013F TET
494,506 424,621 405,768 398,176 372,795 312,890 251,493
2,643,815 2,746,464 2,354,887 1,956,646 1,654,190 1,319,651 1,158,622
3,138,321 3,171,085 2,760,655 2,354,822 2,026,985 1,632,541 1,410,115
65,604 5,927 5,024 4,694 5,352 4,675 4,248
307,081 140,931 147,454 122,891 112,718 91,005 96,148
372,685 146,858 152,478 127,585 118,070 95,680 100,396
2,765,636 3,024,227 2,608,177 2,227,237 1,908,915 1,536,861 1,309,719
70.7% 71.2% 72.4% 73.3% 70.2% 71.4% 68.4%

40.3% 39.7% 39.9% 40.6% 38.6% 38.7% 37.1%

8.6 19.5 16.0 15.9 14.7 14.5 121

20.9% 19.9% 19.4% 19.8% 19.6% 19.2% 17.4%
18.4% 19.0% 18.3% 18.7% 18.5% 18.1% 16.1%
34.6% 33.2% 32.5% 31.9% 30.7% 29.2% 30.2%
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Chairman’s Statement
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Change is never easy.

Innovation is the correct way to pursue.

By maintaining integrity, bringing forth new ideas, strengthening the
fundamentals and consolidating the origin, Tong Ren Tang still marches on
the new journey of innovation and upgrade, strives to embrace new
changes, insists in upholding its unique integrity, and contributes to secure

global health with the newness in traditional Chinese medicine.

In 2021, the global economy was gradually recovering and the pandemic was becoming normalized, thereby reshaping the
global interaction and business model extensively and profoundly. The extensive demand and in-depth knowledge of
health from the public around the world were breaking down the barriers between the Chinese and Western healthcare
sectors, making the global health demand truly became the most basic, most shared and fated common destiny for global
prosperity and development.

INNOVATION: EMBRACE NEW OPPORTUNITIES

From rampant pandemic to post-pandemic era to the normalization of the pandemic, as the global awareness of the
coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19”) pandemic continued to deepen, the normalized global demand for healthcare
had intensified. The prominent role of TCM in the prevention and treatment of the pandemic had drawn the world’s
attention to this new healthcare option. TCM was once again recognized for its role in combating the common health
threats to mankind, the opportunities for fostering the TCM culture and facilitating TCM development beyond China have
come.

INNOVATION: CREATE NEW PLATFORMS

Driven by the internet technology and the normalization of the COVID-19 pandemic, profound changes were brought to the
global business model. From face-to-face business to digitalization, e-commerce had turned from a business hotspot to
the norm. Amidst the pandemic, we opened our own online shopping mall, the Tmall Hong Kong flagship online store, and
various cross-border live-streaming rooms, to allow more people to enjoy the convenience brought by technology, remove
geographical barriers brought by the pandemic, and realize the important transition from traditional production and
commercial retail model to new retail ecology-driven model.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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Chairman’s Statement

INNOVATION: BRINGING NEW EXPERIENCES

New opportunities and new platforms bring new experiences. We unlocked the restrictions on traditional model to provide
face-to-face and wholehearted services for our consumers. Starting with marketing innovation and reform, Tong Ren Tang
created more applicable scenarios to communicate with consumers. We put forward new propositions from different
demand perspectives to meet the demands for TCM. We were also shifting towards a demand-driven approach by
organizing live-streaming, interaction sessions, seminars and events, as well as adopting other new measures to improve
service experience, thus seamlessly satisfying the demand and generating new motivation.

PROSPECTS

Although the global economic recovery is still difficult and the recovery of Hong Kong economy still has a long way to go,
the world is becoming more and more connected and the desire for healthiness from people around the world has become
a realistic prerequisite for revitalizing global development. In the face of such major healthcare crisis, TCM has proven its
ability to be the guardian and protector of global healthcare during the pandemic.

As a family, we share weal and woe. We are united in healthcare, in development, in business and also in the world. In
such changing global economic environment, China will continue to deepen its all-round and deep-rooted reform and
opening-up. Sharing common destiny for the whole world, traditional Chinese medicine will continue to be closely united
with the global healthcare sector. The world needs health. Global development and prosperity in the future lie with public
health. TCM, which has been proven efficacy for thousands of years, acts as a new contribution from China to global
healthcare and a new option for people around the world. It is expected that internationalization of TCM has bright and
promising prospects.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude and appreciation to all employees both at home and
abroad for their loyalty, selflessness, passion, commitment and efforts, our utmost salute to Tong Ren Tang’s employees
on the frontline of innovation and development, and to our shareholders, customers, business partners and local
governments who always back Tong Ren Tang’s international business for their support.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
Hong Kong, 9 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEERRD T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Since its foundation in 1669, Tong Ren Tang has been passed down for 353 years, yet is committed to uphold its corporate
spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness”. We adhere to maintaining general health
worldwide as our development vision and promoting TCM for the sake of public health as our original mission. With
decades of international development and by maintaining integrity and encouraging innovation, Tong Ren Tang has
become renowned globally and acts as a bridge for the world to learn more about traditional Chinese medicine.

In 2021, the Group managed to seize favorable development opportunities. Seeking new progress and making new
advances, we relied on innovation as the core driving force to promote our development and transformation, and achieved
business growth with strategic innovation, platform innovation, carrier innovation and service innovation.

During the Year, the Group continued to focus on Hong Kong as its core market and strengthened its online and offline
platforms to enhance its exposure and meet more consumer demands. In addition to opening new retail outlets, the Group
promoted the construction of online platforms and carriers, improved the functions of its online flagship store, its own
e-commerce marketplaces and cross-border e-commerce platforms, and actively adapted to the changes in business
models brought about by the normalization of the pandemic. The Group has fully implemented the reform of its marketing
system and tapped into omnimedia channels such as television, printed media, social media and live-streaming, so as to
promote its brand names, products and culture, effectively increase the reach rate and provide high-quality products and
services as its first initiative. By promoting management reform, streamline of workforce, cost reduction and enhancement
of efficiency, we are devoted to promote high quality development with high quality management.

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,556.2 million (2020: HK$1,315.3 million) with a year-on-year
increase of 18.3%. Net profit reached HK$651.5 million (2020: HK$567.9 million) with a year-on-year increase of 14.7%.
Profit attributable to owners amounted to HK$607.8 million (2020: HK$542.5 million) with a year-on-year increase of
12.1%. Earnings per share amounted to HK$0.73 (2020: HK$0.65), with a year-on-year increase of HK$0.08. The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.28 per share (2020: HK$0.24).

Retail Network

TEERE

B3 Australia B A s Macao 2 Bl sweden st

Brunei JX3& Malaysia 552 &2 Bl Thailand %
Cambodia RiE%E Bl New Zealand % The Netherlands & &

Bl canada 2 x Poland J& & IB) the United Arab Emirates FaB# 24
Hong Kong & & Bl singapore 33 B united States 2
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hong Kong Market

In 2021, the Hong Kong market has been affected by the COVID-19 epidemic. There are still stringent inbound control
measures in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao, thereby severely reducing the number of visitors to Hong Kong. As a
result, Hong Kong’s retail market remained difficult. With the gradual lifting of Hong Kong’s local anti-epidemic measures
in the second quarter of the Year and the issuance of consumer vouchers to Hong Kong citizens by Hong Kong
Government in the middle of the Year to stimulate local consumption, the local consumer sentiment has been improved.
During the Year, our revenue from Hong Kong market amounted to HK$688.4 million (2020: HK$546.4 million) with a
year-on-year increase of 26.0%. Our same-store revenue increased by 13.6%. During the Year, there were 23 retail outlets
in Hong Kong, representing a net increase of 1 retail outlet as compared to last year.

Non-Hong Kong Market

During the Year, the Group’s business network covered major countries and regions in Asia, Oceania, North America and
Europe with 46 retail outlets, representing a net decrease of 1 retail outlet as compared to last year. The Delta variant of
COVID-19 rapidly swept the world since its emergence in the second quarter of the Year. Its strong infectious power
makes various countries and regions once again got into an adverse situation of the outbreak. In the second half of the
Year, the epidemics in Australia, New Zealand, Europe, North America and Southeast Asia have reappeared or have been
worsened. Almost all overseas markets in which the Group operated have been hit hard by those tightened anti-epidemic
measures such as lockdowns. Due to limited operations or suspension of business, the operating performance of most
overseas retail outlets has been severely affected. In adversity, the Group turned the crisis into an opportunity. In order to
resolve the epidemic crisis, we actively explored new ways of TCM services to control the worldwide epidemic. When the
fundamentals were showing signs of depression, the performance of the non-Hong Kong market was strong against the
trend. During the Year, the Group’s revenue from overseas market amounted to HK$441.3 million (2020: HK$337.9 million)
with a year-on-year increase of 30.6%. Our same-store revenue increased by 24.6%.

As for the market in Mainland China, the economy has been recovering steadily. TCM, which played a key role in the
prevention and control of the epidemic, was highly recognised for its remarkable effects on boosting immunity and
preventing and controlling the epidemic. During the Year, our revenue from Mainland China market amounted to HK$426.4
million (2020: HK$431.0 million), remaining stable with a slight year-on-year decrease of 1.1%.

Production and Research and Development

The Group kept focusing on its core business, while stepping up efforts in production quality management and
technological innovation, enhancing its development on product portfolios, and coordinating its planning and strategical
layout. Apart from that, the Group also strengthened its talent training and boost up its production efficiency, with the aim
to consolidate its foundation for further improvement and upgrade of the Group’s industrial production capacity.

The Group’s Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) for
Proprietary Chinese medicine certification, International Standard 1ISO22000 certification and the HACCP (Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Points) certification. The Group endeavored to establish and improve its quality control system which
covered the whole cycle from project initiation, research and development, procurement of raw materials to production and
supply, so that full guarantee for the production of quality products could be provided.

We will continue to develop new products in line with the development trend in general health in order to meet the
extensive market demand for regulating body functions and preventing diseases. Highlighting the Group’s innovation in
technology, 5 new products were examined and granted registration certificates for proprietary Chinese medicines during
the Year, which further enriched the product offering of the Company. With a focus on core varieties, greater efforts were
put into the development of independent intellectual property rights which involved invention patents, utility models,
appearance, copyrights, authorship, and etc. While expanding to the overseas market, Tong Ren Tang continuously
accumulated independent intellectual property rights, explored global patents layout and applied rules of international
intellectual property rights in order to protect and enrich the core values of Tong Ren Tang’s products. As at 31 December
2021, a total of 56 patents were granted (including patents in the Mainland China and Hong Kong) and 2 applications for
international PCT (Patent Cooperation Treaty) patents were commenced. In addition, the Group proceeded to file
copyrights applications and received 33 registration certificates of works in respect of all applications, which provided
sufficient protection for the dominant products of Tong Ren Tang.
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Management Discussion and Analysis BEEETRRON

Brand promotion i b8 B (B

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness”, and AEERSIEBLCE BHELE I NWEERY RAERAEERBES AFEHER
thoroughly puts the idea of general health services into practice. Although we were still affected by the COVID-19 epidemic TZHAFTEEFE  BNEERE—RIREEEREREZD  SHARARBCERERES
during the Year, the Group actively launched a series of brand promotion activities and strived to enhance brand influence KRB ED  USENREGRNEIRRIPEERBAEESET  EFPERE
of Tong Ren Tang in Hong Kong and overseas, with a high sense of mission and responsibility, devoting itself to the XAEREIZE RS EE -
general health business of TCM service and facilitating the dissemination of TCM culture and the brand culture of Tong
Ren Tang. AE AKEHEHBEBE2 TRBEHREEEZRNE N EXEEAREHELHERE X
BRETICNTANLHETFR  HRAGEHEZTEE AKEARSEBEMEESE
In order to cater to an increase in public demand for health and wellness with the epidemic, the Group focused on RIFZHMETRETE DRV EEESRE REIREBRAERTEBMESR  BAER
developing a large variety of marketing plans, opening up a brand new experience in innovative marketing through ZREE REBIEN EXERTERRAENEERR  RBRBEEZE  LEH
diversified platforms and marketing approaches this Year. To align with the Consumer Voucher Scheme implemented by BEED  HEAMKHEER -
the Hong Kong Government, the Group devised multiple rounds of promotional activities as well as filmed and produced
its consumer vouchers videos, and also released information on mainstream media and social platforms, as a result AEEERESTELHERN MABLERER  MWARXEEBELS  HRRELCES
increasing both target audience of its products and the frequency of exposure, thereby effectively realizing the promotional BEEE  BEESEFEHABERRITABEHETED  MAURIMRBIE » REWGE -
effects of its products and brand. At the same time, the Group stimulated and drove consumption, which in turn 618FHE - 9ARRE - E+-—BYHZERHEFERER  EnRERE FEEEYEANRE
contributing to local economic recovery. RA BEVFEARERGEANY B ZAFARMZANKRLFEETERER £8R
BKOLPHAANLBFEPEMENRCEESR HARKLESH  REHEREELERNE &
The Group actively modified the retail marketing model and devoting additional resources to online marketing. The Group RTYRZECEERNSE  EBRSHREEERARAFHERNDESRLREC 2T LS
established its presence on the official Tmall (X 3#) Hong Kong platform by setting up a flagship online store of Tong Ren 2 BigBigShop PERHEEBERHBE LERFETE  MBRFNEHNR BARCER
Tang in Hong Kong. The Group actively collaborated with the official marketing schedule and designed its own marketing REATISNFED o o RMEBMANEREBHREEMER  TEFEAUTH
activities on Tmall with an increase in its marketing efforts both on and outside the platform, thus achieving continuous LE TEBYEIRBREEZHAIFHBEUIZENIF #EBRAFIRITE RHE
sales growth and significant increase in product browsing volume and quantity of orders from customers, etc. at Opening BEESREBIREFEFES BIREEERTEREERHE  ROIRAERNAHAE -
Day, the 618 Mid-Year Celebration, 99 Big Promotion Day, Double 11 Shopping Festival, etc., ranking top among
healthcare products on the platform. Also, during the Year, we launched live-streaming marketing events on online AE . BMEBEESE  REFHBBTEFECNMEER  SHAPLHTRZESS
platforms several times, cultivated internal KOLs network celebrities and invited Chinese medicine practitioners to EMNZ S BRRBELE | EE BERE BOIAESETD BEREBERRKEE
introduce Tong Ren Tang products, interacted with netizens, answered related health and wellness questions, thereby AZEF87 > REAPMRKERELEI0HRUTRERTERDRE  OLEEEBEE
accumulating many Tong Ren Tang die-hard fans; in cooperation with Sino United Publishing (Holdings) Limited, the Group BE - AKBHESHEEZ B CEERTR] TEFRRTE RIUtRBFHPREBIESET
produced an online TCM course currently available on the Internet. The Group invited famous doctors to share the causes FREDRTCESGF  BRIHERE  AHEZXBEHTRAEES  UHEREBE  &IE
of stroke and ways of prevention; the Group joined the Big Big Shop platform and its live-streaming marketing programme EEREPENLEER SECEAUBELENESRPEENREDEFRTREBRR -
on a television show, yielding desirable marketing effects, and ultimately enhancing brand influence of Tong Ren Tang in
the local market. Besides, we made bigger efforts to promote our best-known products in Hong Kong continuously. With geoh - AEAEBREBERMBLEIHEHREARBBUTELR  RALE - X
the respective themes of “Protecting the Most Precious Heart with the Most Precious Ingredients” for Angong Niuhuang BRARZBEEE  ARREAZEL R HEELRBBRAEEREARL ERKRY - ER
Wan and “Better Immunity Better Health” for Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules, TV as HHHE  UBRAR-FHTRARAET  MRRFUENWAREE  ATREHEEENHELE
well as bus and tram body advertisements were placed. Buses and trams travel around various busy areas, gaining much BBREZEMEE -

wider product recognition.
AEESHNREESNEENERRESZETSREZRTRESR - AF» AEEKES

During the Year, in active response to a call for actions, we fulfilled our social responsibility of a century-old pharmaceutical _— B#E  BFERMEINTRERMEEEZESHEBPIRRTREBRNRER B 2021
company during the epidemic period by taking part in a series of “Medical Services to the Community” (&R ELE) / FERRBEBFR(ETERR) | REMBITHRERNEEEZSSHEEM 2021 FHRE
events held by the Beijing-Tianjin-Shanghai Branch of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association to provide free / BiEEIRI2021 FEEHS/ER | BRARERETEBHBS ML [2020-2021 FH s
medical consultation services and medicines, sponsor events in various Kowloon districts and donated more than 1,000 TEEE — hELEHTEE ] HIK Influential Brands BE N 2021 ENEHFEFED
sets of health supplements and protective masks. We offered free medical consultation services from Chinese medicine M ERTEE - RESEERE] REBOIBRLAGAEENIOILESBR — HH
practitioners for over 400 citizens in the two communities of Lei Yue Mun and Sham Shui Po, passing care to the \ PEERE ] BRTACE|REERLCEREEERR

grassroots of the community. The Group has launched campaigns focusing on a theme of “Show Love and Care to Stroke \
Prevention”. We cooperated with a century-old charity Sik Sik Yuen in Hong Kong on the “World Stroke Prevention Day” to |
visit the elderly in the community, give them care packages for stroke prevention and hold health seminars, taking up social
responsibility during the epidemic period and bringing the Tong Ren Tang’s concept of Benefiting Mankind and Preserving
Health and the TCM diagnosis and treatment solutions to the general public of Hong Kong.

% Fl 4= %

In addition, the Group set up retail outlets on Matheson Street, Causeway Bay and at Mong Kok East MTR station in Hong
Kong this Year, which penetrated into communities, commercial areas and densely populated areas. Different from
traditional retail outlets, the new retail outlets adopt modern decoration style, product display and store decoration, etc.,
for attracting customers with a brand-new image, accelerating the pace of local expansion and providing citizens with
more convenient TCM services and more product selection.

The Group’s outstanding brand image and excellent product quality were also widely recognized and appreciated by the
market. During the Year, the Group had received a number of awards, which demonstrated the success in
internationalization of the “Tong Ren Tang” brand, including the “Star Merchant Award 2021 (Retail Category)” from the
Macao SAR Government Consumer Council and the Macao SAR Government Tourism Office, the “2021 Best Certified
Shop” and “2021 Excellent Certified Shop” by the Macao SAR Government Consumer Council, the “Chinese Medicine
Industrial Award 2020-2021 — Outstanding Contributions in Chinese Medicine” by Chinese Medicine Industry Council of
Australia Ltd, the “Most Influential Brand in Asia 2021: Traditional Chinese Medicine — Most Trustworthy Brand” by
Influential Brands in Singapore, and “01 Gold Medal Award 2021 — Outstanding Chinese Medicine Brand” by HKO
Company Limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources Management
As at 31 December 2021, we had a total of 745 employees (2020: 754 employees).

The staff costs of the Group for the Year were HK$216.7 million (2020: HK$183.6 million), representing an increase of
18.0% from last year. To ensure that the Group is able to attract and retain talents, remuneration policies are reviewed on a
regular basis. In addition, the discretionary bonus is offered to employees with outstanding performance with reference to
the Group’s results and individual performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$1,556.2 million (2020: HK$1,315.3 million), representing an increase of 18.3%
from last year. During the Year, COVID-19 epidemic has been effectively contained in Hong Kong, coupled with the gradual
relaxation of local epidemic prevention measures and the issuance of consumer coupons by the Hong Kong Government
to Hong Kong residents to stimulate local consumption, the revenue from the Hong Kong market has increased by 26.0%.
For overseas markets, the overseas countries and regions covered by the Group were still affected by the epidemic in the
second half of the Year and various stringent epidemic prevention measures were re-emerged. In adversity, the Group
turned the crisis into an opportunity. In order to resolve the epidemic crisis, we actively explored new ways of TCM
services to control the worldwide epidemic. When the fundamentals were showing signs of depression, the performance of
the non-Hong Kong market was strong against the trend. Revenue from overseas markets increased by 30.6%. Revenue
from the Mainland China market remained stable with a slight decrease of 1.1% from last year.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit was HK$1,119.6 million (2020: HK$952.9 million) for the Year, representing an increase of 17.5%
from last year. The gross profit margin slightly decreased from 72.4% last year to 71.9% this Year, which was mainly due
to the increase in cost of raw materials.

Other Gains, net

The Group’s other gains, net was HK$8.0 million (2020: HK$24.3 million) for the Year, which was decreased by HK$16.3
million from last year. The decrease was due to the decrease in the COVID-19 pandemic related government grants
received by certain entities of the Group from the local governments this Year.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses were HK$186.4 million (2020: HK$168.9 million) for the Year, representing an
increase of 10.4% from last year. The increase was mainly due to less rent concessions received in respect of leased
properties, as well as the increase in advertising and promotion expenses and staff costs during the Year. Distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage to revenue slightly decreased from 12.8% last year to 12.0% during the Year.

General and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses were HK$162.8 million (2020: HK$138.9 million), representing an
increase of 17.2% from last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff costs this Year. General and
administrative expenses as a percentage to revenue slightly decreased from 10.6% from last year to 10.5% during the
Year.

Finance Costs/Income, net

The Group’s net finance costs were HK$330,000 (2020: net finance income HK$17.4 million), which included the finance
income of HK$4.4 million (2020: HK$21.7 million). The decrease in finance income of HK$17.3 million was mainly due
decrease in the average short-term bank deposit interest rate and the average bank deposit balance from last year.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense was HK$126.8 million (2020: HK$118.0 million), representing an increase of 7.5%. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in taxable profit during the Year. The effective tax rate for the Year decreased from
17.2% for last year to 16.3% for the Year, which was caused by the change in the proportion of the taxable profit
contribution from entities in different jurisdictions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the Year, Profit Atiributable to Owners of the Company,
Basic Earnings Per Share and Dividend

The Group’s profit for the Year increased by 14.7% to HK$651.5 million (2020: HK$567.9 million) with a net profit margin of
41.9% (2020: 43.2%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$607.8 million (2020: HK$542.5
million), representing an increase of 12.1% from last year. The basic earnings per share for the Year were HK$0.73 (2020:
HK$0.65). The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.28 per share for the Year (2020: HK$0.24).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

During the Year, the Group funded its liquidity by internal resources. Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet the daily operations and working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$2,275.6 million (2020:
HK$1,847.1 million) as at 31 December 2021. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi, and were deposited in reputable financial institutions with maturity dates falling within one year.
The table below sets out the information regarding cash and bank balances, working capital, total equity, current ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 and net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities, investing
activities and financing activities for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021:

EEEARRIT
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AEENEEFBERI147%ZE651.5BB BT (2020F 5679888 T)  MAXA
41.9% (20205 : 43.2%) - AAREE AELFEA607.8 BE BT (202045 : 542588
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MEERRABHES
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sE

R2021F 12831 B AEERERSERMBERR  ReRBRTHEKRRAEE 2275688
BT (2020F 11,8471 HBE L) - RERBITERTERAEBARARYE  UFEFHAE
EBRENESBMEBAN -FREH - TRHFIIN2020F %2021 F12 831 BB RIRIT
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As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2021 2020
HK$’000 T3& T HK$°000 F T

Cash and bank balances I & & R 1T 45 84
Working Capital &E& & O

Total Equity #4248

Current Ratio® fiEjtk & @

Gearing Ratio® & f&LL & ®

2,275,568 1,847,137
3,063,754 2,716,331
3,539,504 3,129,510
15.4 13.5
3.6% 3.4%

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B E A IR S F4E
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities X & E &) (Fr ) FIEENE S FHE
Net cash used in financing activities @& & B 7 F K38 & /F 58

™ Being net current assets
@ Being current assets divided by current liabilities
® Being borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$23.4 million (2020: HK$12.9 million), which was mainly
used in purchase of machinery and equipment for production and operation purposes.

Major Investment, Acquisitions and Disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any major investment, acquisitions and disposals.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net property value of HK$10.4 million (2020: HK$11.3 million) has been pledged as
securities for bank borrowings. Such bank borrowings in Australian dollars bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in
Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s main business operations are conducted in Hong Kong and other overseas countries/regions. The
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US
dollar. During the Year, the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies did not have material impact on the Group.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure during the Year.
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Owned Products
HEEm

FHEEm
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TEEEH

Angong Nivhuang Wan

Functions: To clear heat, remove toxin, settle fright, open
the orifices. Febrile disease caused by pathogenic factors
entering the pericardium, high fever and fright syncope, loss of
consciousness, delirious speech; Wind-stroke coma,
encephalitis, meningitis, toxic encephalopathy, cerebral
hemorrhage and septicemia with the pattern mentioned above.

A BAMS AFMR - ARAR BALE  SRER
WEEE  PEERRME - BEEL - hEMERE - KM - Bun
SER EMERE o

Active ingredients: Bovis Calculus, Moschus, Margarita,
Cinnabaris, Realgar, Coptidis Rhizoma, Scutellariae Radix,
Gardeniae Fructus, Curcumae Radix, Borneolum
Syntheticum, Powdered Buffalo Horn Extract.
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REEEZSHFHEBE
Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma
Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules

Functions: To enhance immunity. For the elderly and
the frail or the people with low immune function, and for
patients after surgery or medication.

haK @ wreEh -  FREERE BB HRSSERRHE
BTAL ARFMREMARENEE - B28E > REE
R o

Active ingredient: Ganoderma lucidum spores
BRAEG  BEBT

BCREBE

F2EZBER
AREZBE
Ginseng-Antrodia
Camphorata Capsule &
Schisandra-Antrodia
Camphorata Capsule

Antrodia camphorata plays an
important role in protecting liver
and improving metabolism,
reducing the rate of acute liver
injury caused by alcohol, as well
as regulating immune function.

WBZERRE R REEE - RENTH

BB iEf - EROMERERS
ERM¥ELER ©

BEAZRASHE
Korean Red Ginseng & Red
Ginseng Granule Tea

The Korean Red Ginseng products
come from Geumsan County in
South Chungcheong Province, a
place known as the home of
ginseng, and are manufactured by
traditional preparation method of
Korean Red Ginseng. Korean Red
Ginseng can strengthen the
immune system, increase blood
circulation, antioxidant, improve
memory and fight fatigue.

ERAZERREBREAZ ZBEE
FERLE - KASEASESMT
TERERMS - SBAZARERR
Bh - MRKE - il - BEHK

R

ASABEREEBASIBE
Rhodiola Rosea Capsule
Blueberry & Rhodiola Rosea
Capsule

Rhodiolae grows in high and cold
areas. It helps enhance immunity,
anti-hypoxic, anti-fatigue and
enhance memory.

ASR—RERESEMLT - AFE
BB TUERE - TURS - RS R
EEMERESEM -

Reviving Prebiotics

This product contains high-quality
fructo-oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with Astragalus
extract, Scrophulariaceae extract and
Angelica Sinensis Extract, and is
manufactured by a modern
technology. It is suitable for people
that suffer from both Qi deficiency
and poor blood circulation and people
with poor intestine activity.

FRERREERRBEAEE  BUER
REY - Z2RBMMNERRIY - A
BRI EERMA - BARRIRERS
BRETREERE AN AERE

Cranberry Collagen Prebiotics

This product contains high-quality
fructo-oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with cranberry
powder and marine collagen peptides
and is manufactured by a modern
technology.

FRERRERBREARR - BUEH

BRY  BFBREARK  ZARKIE
FBRMER
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Lingzhi Collagen Capsule

Lingzhi Collagen Capsule consists
of premium quality spores powder
of Ganoderma lucidum,
Ganoderma lucidum extract by
advanced technology and Marine
Collagen Peptides and is easily
absorbed and taken.

BREBRUBENREESHT
¥ BUARARMRERNEZRZR
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BFRBRERK
Marine Collagen Peptide

The product is made of marine
collagen peptides imported from
Japan. These peptides are got by
enzymatic degradation of scales
of red snapper by the specific
technology. It is easily digested
and absorbed by human body due
to its properties of small molecular

weight and high water-solubility. /

This product is prepared as oral

tablets with grape seed extracts |
and jujube extracts by the ‘
advanced modern process. (

\
ARRAMBAEOSEBRES |
K RUAHHANABARY B8
BRBEAGETEEIBEL 2 F
B/ BEARK  BEWABRY
BUEENEENMAEREE  KAL
ENTIERMORS - RAGE -

/

BEEBRBE

ervus Elaphus Linnaeus
Collagen Capsule

The product contains collagen
peptides that are produced by
hydrolysis of the scales of Ocean
Lutianus Sanguineus via an unique
Japanese developed enzymatic
technology, formulated with Milk
Mineral Salt and Cervus Elaphus
Linnaeus, and is manufactured by
a modern technology.

AREARRRRBAHEARANA
8 ARBEBRIBRITRANE
FRREORK  BULBEYE 5E
ENRER - RARKTEERMAA

WD R
Ultra Fine Pearl Powder

The product helps settle spirit and
convulsion, clear the liver and
improve vision. It is used for
treating fright palpitation and
fearful throbbing, vexation and
insomnia, etc..
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nfluential Brand

ALy

Most Trustworthy Brand
(Traditional Chinese Medicine)
RIESEBRM(ERPEE)

Outstanding Chinese Medicine Brand

R ERe
Awarded by Macao SAR Government

Consumer Council and Tourism Office

HEPIHEEZES SR RS AR

Awarded by Community Medical and
Education Services Association (HK)

HEBTERRAEREHTER

Awarded by Chinese Medicine Industry
Council of Australia Ltd
HIRAFIEPETERS RS

Awarded by Macao SAR Government Consumer Council

HEFETRERAHEEES 88
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Organisation Chart
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TRT International
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TRT (Singapore)
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Honour Essence

AEBS
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TRT Herbal
Heritage
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This chart is produced based on the information as at 31 December 2021.
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TRT (Australia)
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TRT Management
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Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Report
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ABOUT THE REPORT B A&

This report is the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (referred as the “Report” in the section headed “ESG
Report”) published by Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We”) for the purpose of disclosure of the Group’s policies, measures and performances
related to corporate social responsibility and sustainable development and performance during the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report covers the Group’s core businesses of the Year which including manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese
medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments on the business
operations of the Group located in Asia, Oceania, the Americas and Europe®. Due to the failure of providing raw data at
some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate their environmental performance. Data coverage of some
environmental KPIs may be inconsistent with the scope of the Report, details please find the notes in the corresponding
sections.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “ESG Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, with four reporting principles (materiality, consistency, balance and
quantitative) taken as the basis of disclosure.

™ The scope of the 2021 Report is the same as the year of 2020.
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ESG REPORT

Reporting Principles

Materiality

Consistency

Balance

Quantitative

Definitions

A report should include ESG issues that
have significant impacts on the Group and
its stakeholders.

A report should use consistent
methodologies on statistics to allow for
meaningful comparisons of data over time.

A report should provide an unbiased picture
of the performance in respect of ESG issues
and avoid any possible inappropriate
influence on a decision or judgment to be
made by report readers.

KPlIs relating to historical data should be
measurable and, where appropriate,
comparable in order to evaluate and validate
the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems.

Responses of the Group

During the Year, the Group invited internal
and external stakeholders to conduct online
surveys to identify material environmental
and social issues and determine the key
disclosure content of the Report.

Unless otherwise stated, the statistical
approach used in the Report is consistent
with those used previously.

The Group complies with the principles of
impartiality in the preparation of the
Report.

The Group continuously recorded KPIs and
made disclosure in a quantitative manner,
where practicable. In addition, the Group
engaged an independent professional
consultant to conduct carbon assessments
in accordance with international and local
standards to ensure the accuracy of the
data of KPlIs in respect of the environment.

The Group made disclosure on related
KPIs in a quantitative manner.
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The section headed “Content Index” on the last chapter of the Report is available for quick reference.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

All the qualitative and quantitative information cited in the Report is sourced from the Group’s public information, official
documents and related statistical data. The Report was confirmed and approved by the Board of the Group on 9 March
2022.

FEEDBACK AND OPINIONS

Our continuous improvement relies on the valuable opinions from various stakeholders on the Group. If you have any
questions or suggestions about the content or reporting form of the Report, you are welcome to contact us via email at
ir@tongrentangcm.com.

ang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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In 2021, societies and economies around the globe were still affected by the coronavirus. In the face of the lasting impact,
the Group overcame difficulties together with stakeholders with its corporate spirit of fighting the epidemic together and
creating healthy society.

At the same time, as environmental disasters and climate change have become normal, all countries gradually raised their
concern to social and environmental issues in the course of their economic development and sustainable development has
become a common path and goal. The Board of the Group realized that the direction of sustainable development could not
be disregarded, and worked with the Audit Committee and risk management team to explore the path of sustainable
development for the Group.

This Year, the Group continued to improve its mode of operation and measures through regular self-review and
improvement. Also, from the feedback of stakeholders, the Group understood the expectations of all parties on itself to
give response to views from society. These measures further consolidated our years of efforts in ESG aspect, laying a solid
foundation for promoting our future development.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to review and improve its own direction and strategy of sustainable development
under the leadership of the Board with the support of various stakeholders for the accomplishment of its vision and mission
of “Healthy Life Global Choice”.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman

"
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ESG REPORT

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GOVERNANCE SYSTEMS

The Group understands that an efficient and clear governance structure is useful in building and achieving sustainable
corporate governance and long-term development. The Board is responsible for overseeing ESG matters in its operation
through established corporate governance practices and procedures, thus maintaining the level of governance for
sustainable development. Apart from supervision and confirming this report, the Board is also responsible for supervising
risk management and internal control systems, regularly examining their effectiveness, determining risk factors faced by
the Group, reviewing existing and potential risks and mitigation measures as well as risk management reports.

In order to improve corporate management performance and level of governance for sustainable development, the Group
is studying the establishment of an ESG governance structure comprising the Board, management and key departments
with an expectation to identify and respond to related opportunities and risks through regular review and formulation of
strategies and policies for sustainable development. Meanwhile, the Group will regularly review the existing governance
structure to assist the Board, management, and various functional departments in achieving long-term and sustainable
development with their dedication and unity.

RISK MANAGEMENT

To achieve the effectiveness of risk management and ensure timely response, the Group has established a risk
management and internal control system, which is continuously monitored and reviewed by the Board on effectiveness.

The Board also determines the risk factors within the acceptable tolerance, monitors the risk management framework, and

reviews significant existing and potential risks, and their relevant control measures in response to the changes in
environment. At the same time, a risk management team is established by the Group to monitor the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system as well as the changes in risk, and also reports and prepares risk
management reports semi-annually to the Audit Committee and the Board.

To identify, evaluate and manage the significant risks, the Group implements the 5 major components of risk management

and internal control framework and the “3 lines of defense” model. Details of the related risk management and internal
control system, please refer to pages 140 to 147 of the Annual Report.

B
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In addition, the Group has established a clear risk monitoring procedures so as to identify and respond to the relevant risks

and opportunities.

o AEEC T EMNEREERF - UBREAI R B EARES R RS -

Risk
Identification
2 B 58 B

Major Risks
Related to ESG
BB B8R
EREREZ
FERRK

Human
Resources Risk
ANER R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Risk v
Assessment [ S
B R

If human resources planning is
formulated without comprehensive
and strategic consideration, no
human resources strategies and
plans in line with the Group’s
sustainable development are
formulated and implemented, or no
competitive remuneration packages
or incentive systems in terms of
development prospect, salaries,
benefits, working environment and
training, etc. are provided, which
results in the Group having
inadequate talent supply (such as
professional Chinese medicine
practitioners, experts familiar with
overseas markets and professional
management personnel) for its
future development, the
development of the Group will be
subject to risks of restrictions on
human resource allocation.
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Response
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Major Measure(s)
TEEHIER

The Group establishes overseas training center to train
various successors abroad through the master-
apprentice learning model as well as strategically train
overseas talents and maintains a backup talent pool to
satisfy the development needs of the Group and secure
the provision of talents.

BBRIGIINASIFINE M - U ETEREREEIME
Ao BBREERAS  WETEHBEEMIATEERRE
BAT B UERRREAEBEREFTENREANS
REE o

The Group works with tertiary colleges in Hong Kong in
personnel recruitment to employ talents with
professional expertise and multiple skillsets that meet
the development needs of the Group; puts greater
efforts in attracting and training local talents of overseas
markets and provides them with trainings on corporate
culture and professional skills, so that the local talents
of overseas markets can better integrate into the Group
and contribute their wisdom to and create value for our
overseas business development.

HEBRRBERAE  REMAASERETENTER
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
BHEE - HEBR
ERMEEZ
TERE

Quality Risk
ERAR

Quality Risk can be divided into
four main areas, namely
procurement, production, testing
and sales: If the quality of raw
materials, proprietary Chinese
medicine and herbs provided by
suppliers does not meet the
requirements, risk on quality of
procurement may occur; If there is
inadequate control over the
production process, risk on quality
of production may occur; If there is
lack of testing procedures or if the
procedures are not stringent, it may
result in products in poor quality,
and mixed with other prohibited
ingredients, and risks on quality of
product testing may occur; If there
is quality problems on the sale of
Group’s Owned Products and
Non-Owned Products, the
manufacturers and distributors of
the products will bear the
responsibility. If the products are
not put off-shelf and recalled in
time, there may be a risk on quality
liability for product sales.
BEERRATMASARE £ B
B HEHMOATHE : FHEFRM
WEM FRERRSRETHEE
RO BEUREEXKBEERR &
SEBREETR  HEURELE
EEEEAR  HERZMARE - 88
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mETEE QW BEARELHE
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Major Measure(s)
FTERYIER

Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Procurement: Through materials testing, the Group
prohibits unqualified raw materials and auxiliary
materials from flowing into the production process; The
Group enforces the suppliers on proprietary Chinese
medicine to strictly implement product quality standards
in various countries and regions, evaluates and reviews
export suppliers on herbs to ensure quality; Retail
outlets in each regions gradually improve procurement
and supplier management procedures to strengthen
compliance procedures.

RREERBNEEREER  BEHYRETRE > K&
ERETEENEMBREBRRALEERS  AEEEB
ERFREMEFREATEEARRBENERRER
> HRAHOHERETTIEER  BRmE  SHEE
ZEARBZ S ZERBREBHEERE  BLERR
2o

Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Production: The production management of the Group
strictly follows relevant regulations, workers in the
production workshop shall undergo training on
production techniques and pass the corresponding
examination. Production team leaders are thereof held
accountable for the production quality. Each production
process is recorded in details to ensure that it is
operated in accordance with established procedures.
TEEERBNTIZRYEER  ASELEEETEREHT
HERE £EEHEIXEALBEERMEINE K
HEEENMARAELEERESER  £EBRTIFH
BRMTE  BRERBEENIFRREZRE -

Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Product Testing: The quality standards for products of
the Group are in strict accordance with the laws and
regulations of the relevant countries or regions.
Processes of product inspection are refined while
standard operating procedures for each inspection
methods are in place and details records are made. The
Group regularly calibrates measuring instruments to
ensure the accuracy and credibility of test results.
ERRIEERBNEZELEER  AEENEREER
ENRBEBERR M EEEEZRBREEE  Blls
EUFERERFRARFMARLE Ut 2BRETED
RE » R ERERALE -

Major measures to address the Risk on Liability from
Quality of Marketed Products: The Group keeps abreast
of the changes in regulations on the external packaging
and labelling of products in and outside the PRC; Retail
outlets in some regions have drafted management
procedures for quality risk reporting, pharmacovigilance
and product recall and destruction to safeguard the
quality of marketed products.
HEEREESARBNTIZRYEER  A5EEBEBH
FERAMNERIMEEBEBRAERZ(L ) BOBLETER
iy bl TE R A B SRR R BE B R I B W (I B 8H B AR
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
HER  HER
ERMEEZ
TERK

Business
Partner Risk
(Procurement
Partner)
EBEEBHE
Bk (RS 1E
)

Price Risk
(Procurement
Price)
B E R (5
B1%)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

The Group may suffer from weak
cooperation due to improper
selection of procurement partners,
poor management and coordination
capabilities, unsmooth
communication of information, or
non-compliance with the
cooperation contract, etc, which
may affect the development of the
Group and adversely affect its
operating performance and financial
conditions.
AEBUEERRBSEEINEER
E EEBRAELE EANBETH
B RPEFEERNERE - #5
HEFES FELAEERRERNE
B HREXERIBIRTBERTF
-
The prices of TCM herbs may
fluctuate significantly due to factors
such as production volume and
demand for TCM herbs,
environmental protection and
contingencies (such as climate
disasters and epidemic outbreaks)
and affect the entire industry chain
and accordingly the procurement
prices of raw materials, auxiliary
materials and proprietary Chinese
medicine, thereby increasing the
Group’s uncertainty in cost control.
HAPEMNESE TR -BREAKRRE
BREM(REXLE  EBERE)ESR
BRE  SIBHhEMNERELERE
ENRE HEEGEEE R
B BRI P RENRBERBIR
FE BENAEEHRAZENT
EEM o

Major Measure(s)
TEEHIEE

In strict accordance with the procurement requirements,
and according to a supplier audit system, the Group
conducted audits on suppliers, updated supplier
qualifications, and also ensured that suppliers meet the
Group’s relevant requirements. In addition, the Group
strictly implements the review system for the new
suppliers who cooperated for the first time, carries out
bulk purchases when conditions permit, operates in
accordance with the normal procurement process, and
explores operations such as import and export
procedures, taxation, customs clearance, and
transportation.

AEEBRRIZBEBIENSEER  RIEM/ERETS
B HEHEEHETET IR ENHEHNED  BiRAHAE
BAREAEEMEEER - B/ HRERESENLHER -
AEBBRHATHEEENELHE  EREATT &
THENRE RREFSRBRAERAE RRELOF
BB B ERSRE-

In the process of procurement, the Group controls the
cost for procurement by identifying new suppliers,
diversifying supply channels and comparing prices via
quotations. The Group pays close attention to the
market conditions and policies of TCM herbs so as to
provide timely communication with end-users on
procurement status, the Group can thus have
quotations from suppliers in advance and ensure the
most appropriate price for procurement can be
obtained.

AEEERENBRRET  SRBEENEED  hEHE
EiE - ZHAEBLE  EHRERES S BIOBEHEMT
B FEMBRER ) REEKHEREFBEFALEERR
RAEOMEBAE  BRUSSENEKRETRS -

In order to cope with the increase in the procurement
price of certain scare TCM herbs, the Group actively
purchases such herbs in the international market as
inventory.

REHENEREMNRBER LA AEEEBE R
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
HEE - HEBR
ERMEEZ
TERE

Risk on Risk on Intellectual Property Rights
Intellectual can be divided into three main
Property Rights areas, namely overseas registration
0 R R B of intellectual property rights,
trademark licensing agreements
and intellectual property rights. In
the event that the trademark “Tong
Ren Tang” is registered by any
other entity or individual or a patent
application is filed overseas, there
will be risks of overseas intellectual
property registration; If the Parent
Group terminates or amends the
“Tong Ren Tang” trademark license
agreement and authorization letter
entered into with the Group, there
may be risks on trademark license
agreement; If competitors copy the
Group’s research and development
results, there may be intellectual
property risks occurring.
SR R R B FT A 0 0B S IR EE
2 BRI ABEEL=
REH: BZIEACE | BEEEMK
HB M@ AEMB BRI RS
BEAREESMIBERZIME
B EESEEA LB EASEEE
AZIECE  BERESNRERE
B #EAREEESETAHER
B ERFHFERLIEEMERK
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Major Measure(s)
FTERYIER

Major measures to address the Risk on Overseas
Registration of Intellectual Property Rights. Through the
agent appointed by the Parent Group, the Group
monitors the use of trademark of “Tong Ren Tang”
overseas and sees if the trademark has been registered
by any other entity or individual or if any patents have
been filed overseas.

BB ERIMEABNEIEZRERER A5SEEBEE
EZENREEZESINIELCE | BE  BEIEENIE
BEREMENCREATMIEFKAFHER -

Major measures to address the Risk on Trademark
Licensing Agreements: The Group closely
communicates with the Parent Group, and promptly
updates and formulates contingency measures where
there is any change to trademark licensing agreements
made by the Parent Group.
AEFUHRERARNEIEREER ARER)EGER
BE NBEEUEERESNEEAEE  £-KAR
B I RIS

Major measures to address the Risk on Intellectual
Property Rights: The Group cooperates with
professional institutions and commissions them to
apply for various intellectual property rights and patents
for the Group’s achievement in research and
development.

AREERBNEIEREER  AEEEEEREBS(E
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MANAGEMENT ON COMPLIANCE

It is fundamental for the Group to operate in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group understands
that non-compliance with law and regulation will have an impact on the Group at different levels, ranging from business

Areas

e

operations and reputation to penalties and litigations. As various national laws, regulations and policies in the TCM industry

continue to be refined and implemented, the Group will put utmost importance on ensuring operational compliance as it
always does, as well as formulate and implement a series of internal policies and systems so as to strengthen the

Operation
B

compliance management. Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s policies and practices formulated
as required by legal and regulatory requirements, while the Board reviews the Group’s compliance on an annual basis.

During the Year, the Group had found no non-compliance in relation to each area in ESG.

AREE
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Issue(s)
RE

Emission

23,67

Environment
BIE

The Group’s policies
AEBBE

Measures on the
Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases
(EEEMRBRESERL)
The medical waste treatment
methods
(BEEYEERRE)

Principal Laws and Regulations in
Hong Kong (including but not
limited to)

ERTEAEGER (BREETRR)

Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Z=RI5 2 E HIEB)

Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance
CIREREEHRHD

Water Pollution Control Ordinance
KoK 35 2B H R A1)

Waste Disposal Ordinance

CREY R B AR 51D

Business ethic

Resource usage

BEREA

Measures on the
Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases
(EEEMBRBRESEIE)

Not applicable HEERE

THEA

Environment and
nature resources
BRERXAER

Employee
BT

Employment

(=5

Measures on the
Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases

(EEEMBREREETERE)

Staff Manual
(ETFM)

Not applicable
TER

Employment Ordinance
IR 5B

Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance
(EERERD)

Minimum Wage Ordinance
(BT EHRHD

Health and safety
REHEZ R

Rules on Management of
Retailing Safety
(ZEZ2EEHRRE)

Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance

(BEZE2REERD)

Development and
training

B R BRI

Staff Manual
(BIFM)

Not applicable
TER

Labour standard
LT

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Staff Manual
(ETFM)
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Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and various
discrimination ordinances
CEAER (FLBB) HRAD) R&E
1 43 15 451

Issue(s)

1

Supply chain
management
HrEEEE

The Group’s policies
AEBBE

Procurement Management
Rules

(RBEERRE)

Suppliers Management Rules

(HEBEERR)

Principal Laws and Regulations in

Hong Kong (including but not
limited to)
BEBEXTEAEMER (BEETRR)

e Not applicable
TER

Product responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption
RES

e

+

Rules on Management of
Retailing Safety
(ZEZ2EERE)

Staff Manual

(BIFM)

After-sales Product
Consultation and Complaint
Handling Management Rule
(EmERBARRFEERE
BRE)

Product Return Management
Rule

(EmEEEERRE)

Rules for Management on
the Quality of Retail Services
(ZERBEEEERE)
Adverse Drug Reaction
Report and Monitoring
Procedures
(ERTRREREMEDNE
BRE)

Internal Audit Manual
(B F )
Staff Manual
(ETFM)

.

tRECZHEEFRAE

Chinese Medicine Ordinance
(R B 2R 5D

Regulation of Registered
Proprietary Chinese Medicines
PR EE AR

Food Adulteration (Metallic
Contamination) Regulations of
Centre for Food Safety
EERYZREZPU(RYEBR (&
BHEZE) R

Pesticide Residues in Food
Regulation

(R ARERE BIFE AR B

Food Safety Ordinance

(RO Z 2560

Undesirable Medical
Advertisements Ordinance
(TRES (BE) (761

Trade Descriptions Ordinance

78 5 AR 1)

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

CEAE R (FABE) R A1)

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

7 1 H BE AR 151

Ui
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS #5{n&i&i#

Communication Channels
BREER

Stakeholders Communication Focus
HHE BRER

We believe the participation of
stakeholders is an important part in the
business development. The stakeholders!
opinion helps the Group to establish

a more comprehensive sustainability

development strategy.

Opinions from different stakeholders® are essential to the Group’s
business development and management, and it allows the Group to
review potential risks and opportunities so that the business practices

can be more in line with their needs and expectations.

The Group is dedicated to establishing an open and transparent
communication mechanism. During the Year, the Group
communicated and maintained good relationship with its stakeholders
and responded effectively to its stakeholders through various targeted

channels. The specific types of stakeholders, communication focus
and communication channels are shown below:

Stakeholders
¥ioE

The Board, senior
management and
employees

EEE BREEA
ERET

“Stakeholders”, also known as “interested parties” or “interest holders”, refer to groups and individuals who have significant impact on the

Communication Focus

The Group understands the needs of its employees
through various channels, such as performance appraisals
and questionnaires, and encourages communication
among employees and their supervisors to support
employees’ career development and create a workplace
facilitating advancement, health and safety.
AEEERBRIAARETHMEIZER NERTEHRESEH
E O FBMETHIERE UXKHETIHWRXRE IHE
—fEREER  RENZZNITESH -

RMEEHNEZRERERS
HRN—EEERD 0
BENSRENAEEEST
ERERAERRRE

Communication Channels
BEER

Questionnaires
BEHRE

Suggestion boxes for
employees

BT

Training Programs
EAIRE

Staff activities
BIES

Corporate Communication
B

business of the group, or those who are affected by the business of the group, including the internal Board, senior management and
employees, external customers and consumers, shareholders, suppliers, business partners, trade associations, government and regulators,
community organisations, potential investors and banks.
[HHE] XBIASEBES I EEA EH-—ECENEREEANE  JETEBVENHBANEA EEANNESS -
EEAERET BN EFREEE  RR - HEPEBEMH TEHS BNKREERE HEAS BEREERBITS -
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TEAFHEONRRAAKRENEBERREE
EREE AUAKEFEREENEAMERKS
TEBREREURAMBMOHFTENGHE -

AEBFNRBAMEANBEELS  ~FEB
EEHHMENRERBHERE HEBOHER
BFREWER AFEHEREE - ARENEA
MRBBERMRENT

=R

Shareholders and
Investors
BRREEE

Suppliers and
Business Partners
HERRSEBHE

Customers and
Consumers
EFEREBE

Government and
Regulators

B REEHE

Trade Associations
TEGE

Community
HE

The Group holds regular general meetings and discloses
important information by means of annual reports, interim
reports, financial reports, ESG reports, corporate websites
and other disclosure documents to keep investors and
shareholders updated on the Group’s position, results and
ESG performance.
AEBEHBTRRAS  WEBFR - PHRE - PR
HEORIR A ERERME - AR E MR E M
EZEHM BREENRRTBAEENGHER - &M

R - EREREN -

The Group ensures that its suppliers understand and meet
the Group’s expectations and requirements through
screening, auditing and evaluation process, and
communicates regularly with its suppliers and business
partners to strengthen partnerships.

REBBBHE BEURALERE BREEDTHANF
EAREENBERER U EREHEERRSERHBEN
ISR R R o

The Group has access to feedback from its customers and
consumers through various channels, such as staff at retail
outlets, customer service hotlines, facsimiles, emails and
social media, and has a mechanism in place to handle
customers’ feedback and complaints appropriately.
AEERBIRAZCNBERKEL TRPRHFAE &
HE BEBURERER WRMEFRHEEENRE  URI
BHUZZREEF REMIR

The Group liaises with relevant government departments
and regulatory authorities to keep abreast of the latest
legal and regulatory requirements and to ensure
compliance of its operations. Any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations will be reported to competent
authorities immediately.
AEEHEBFEENBMREERBRERE  UEREHE
RERERREREESHR WHEERBBEEEELRNE
o AEEKZEEBEBPIRE -

The Group communicates with trade associations on a
regular basis for exchange of any industry information in
order to ensure that its operations comply with industry
standards.
FEBEHETEGEEE  XIRTEES  BREEER
THERBRE-

To better understand and respond to the needs from the
community, the Group organizes community activities and
services from time to time and encourages its staff to
support voluntary services.
AEFTHEABNELENER  AEEFEHRITHEE
BRRY  UHEE T XIFETRYE -

Questionnaires

BERHE

Regular release of financial
reports and data
EHIBRE R BB
Shareholders’ meetings and
activities

BRERERED
Corporate communication
B

Press releases

HEREMm

Investor relations
communication
REERFRER

Questionnaires

BERE

Regular communication
Assessment and evaluation
B2

Information sharing
Bfg=E

Customer services hotlines
B RIS H#E

Product labelling

BRER

Mails

4

Social media communication
HRERER

Regular communication
EHER

Compliance records
BRAHE

Policy documents

B X

Response to consultation

[l fE 5

Regular exchange

EHIRR

Participation in the affairs of
trade associations
SHETERESEH

Fostering community culture
HEXLER

Support to underprivileged
groups

KB EE

Community services
HER®

ERECERAEERAT | —B=—FFR




ESG REPORT

Materiality Assessment

To ensure the ESG Report reflects the issues of concern to stakeholders and the Group’s environmental and social impacts
regarding those issues, the Group conducted stakeholder communication and materiality assessment with the assistance from
an independent consultant, to identify the important environmental and social issues. The Group also understands and
responds to the expectations and requirements of its stakeholders through the below procedures on identification of material
issues.

EERMFME

AERRE HEREARSERRBOERINZE  URASEFRAFHEZEHRENGSIEANEE  AEEEBBY
ERETEOEEEREEMTMUBNEZENRARULEZRE - BBUTEEURERIINER  2EETUAXS THERK
ERSOENHEEER -

Identification of Key Stakeholders
AElAREHE

Step 1 Determining the Issues
SRI1BEERE
Review the past results of stakeholders’ participation and the Guide on the
Stock Exchange to formulate the list of environmental and social issues.
BEBENSNESHEERRBIMES) URTREREEREBE -

The Group has reviewed and adjusted its lists of topics and identified 25 issues,
covering four major areas, namely “environmental”, “employment and labour
practices”, “operating practices” and “community investment”.
AEBRBRBEECHBREBEELTHARE  LHBI25HHRE -
BMERRE | [REREIER| - [EEEH N HEIRE | HKAHE -

\/

Step 2 Collect Stakeholders’ Opinion
SHR2BERFHERR
Conduct questionnaires through online platform to enable
stakeholders to score the importance of each issue.
ZERALFARBEASLSHAE  BEHENSERETD °

The Group collected a total of 168 questionnaires, among which 140
were from internal stakeholders and 28 were from external stakeholders.
AEEHBE168HERESE  HP 1400 REABREHE > 28 BRBEIBRHE

\/

Step 3 Identify Material Issues

SRIMIEEMZE
Independent consultant analyzed the importance of each issue upon stakeholders and
the Group’s business in the materiality assessment.
EEEMFGER  BYBEBIMSESZEHSHENEES
UREAREBEBNEEM o

There are a total of 14 material issues during the Year. Please refer to the materiality
matrix below for detail.

AEHB14BEEMRE  FEFSRBRTIEEZMHER -
Senior Management Confirmation

)
and Continuous Improvement \
™~

EREEAERANKFEATE
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Material Material
Issues Issues Issues Issues
3] EEMEE EE BEEMEE

Environment Ri%E Training and development

37
Greenhouse gas and air pollutant IR
emission Prevention of child labor
BERBRERTEY FRIEET
Sewage Prevention of forced labor
gk Fy LE 38 %5 T

Waste Operating Practices & E1&1l

BEEY
Supply chain
Energy fpEsE

BEIR )
Responsible procurement
Water SERE

KER -
Product responsibility
Use of resources EREE

EREA ) .
) Customers satisfaction
Environment and natural resources BB

RERARER : . .
Data and information security

Climate change HERERRE M

RIR2L )

. . Intellectual property rights

Environmental compliance s A

RESRM . .
Anti-corruption

Employment Practices E{&1&%l RES

Employment system Operational Compliance
EESE EESRM

Diversity, equal opportunities and
anti-discrimination .
%4t « FERE R ILE Community needs

HEER
Occupational health and safety i o
BERRERS Community investment

Community Investment # B&R &

. . . Materiality Analysi
Through questionnaires and analysis, 13 SIS

most critical “materiality issues” located
at the upper right of the materiality matrix
curve are identified for the Group,
“Employment system”, “Diversity, Equal
opportunity and anti-discrimination” and
“Waste” have been added. In order to
fully consider the issues concerned by
stakeholders in various areas, the Group
also includes “Community needs” in the
materiality issues to reflect the focuses of
different areas. Except for the above
mentioned, material issues for the
reporting period are similar to those of
previous years, mainly based on
“Employment Practices”. The results of
the materiality assessment have been .

. Importance to Tong Ren Tang’s business
reported to the Board for review. B HECEEBHNEER

Importance to Stakeholders
HIFMENEEM

ERMERE BRI T 1I3R(UREZEMEEMRE LF)UAEEEHEENEEURE] METIERHIE] - [Zxk
FERERRERIRIERY ] - AXSZEFOERSEBEINEE  AEETEHEFR I AAREEZELZEED
URMRAESEBNEIER - Rtz REMANEEUZERTFREAYN - AT EREES | HE - EEUTHERER
RRESEEH -

ERACERAEARAT | —E-—FFR
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OPERATING PRACTICES

A business and working environment
with equality, ethics and compliance
is the foundation for the healthy
development of the Group.

Protection of Privacy and Intellectual Property
Rights

The Group respects customers’ privacy and protects intellectual
property rights. In the course of our operation, we are devoted to
protecting and properly managing all the customer information gathered
from purchasing records or medical records. Our “Staff Manual” and
“Rules on Management of Retailing Safety” stipulate the staff’s
responsibility in keeping information confidential. All staff are not
allowed to disclose customers’ or internal information and data to third
parties without prior consent of the Company. Meanwhile, security
training and education on confidentiality are also provided to staff with
access to confidential information to raise their awareness towards
confidentiality. No staff is allowed to disclose customers’ personal
information without any prior written consent. To ensure the
confidentiality of personal information and data, the Group respects the
rights of all companies, individuals and creators, and expects to protect
intellectual property rights through internal regulations and external
laws.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report

=EEH

AFE. BEREREGHNED
BTHREREAEERRSR
RAIRE o

AR R E R

FEMEEFEFRALRENARER - TLEB
BH BB GERZEEERMARBETLR
UEFERENHEFER - AEER(ETFM)
F(ZEZ2EEAR)BATEIHERREN
B BERMBEIARTEREHAENER @
F=AHBEEMEFIABERREE - BILE
B AREASRREBABTNETIRH/RETHE
ZEHE URSHRAEZE - REE@HT -
FEETIHFBHIREEFEAEN BRTR
BEAERREBENRENL  AEEZEREA
A EARAEENES HEEBRABRER
SNEREG] - RERHERE -

BiFEia

To further monitor its compliance and confidentiality, if customers or third parties suspect that their privacy or intellectual
property rights have been infringed, concerns or complaints can be submitted through established reporting channels
including phone calls, email or written requests.

Besides potential internal risks, the confidentiality of information may be affected by network security. To avoid disturbance
produced by hackers or illegal software causing leakage, staff may download software only with the consent of the
Information Technology Department. At the same time, the Information Technology Department may upgrade the mail
defense level in various ways including mailbox security verification and phone SMS verification to further ensure network
security and avoid problems.

Anti-corruption

Advocating the work attitude of “Virtue”, “Honesty” and “Integrity”, the Group does not tolerate any bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. The Group has set up an independent internal audit department responsible for monitoring
areas such as the Group’s business activities, corporate governance and workflow, as well as independently auditing the
effectiveness of internal audit regulations and internal control system, so as to continuously enhance internal supervision
and anti-corruption management.

Also, the expectations to and responsibilities of employees are detailed on the “Internal Audit Manual” and “Staff Manual”
to provide guidelines to their daily work, which set out the Group does not allow any disclosure of trade secrets, abuse of
power for personal gains, abuse or infringement of the Company’s property or acceptance of advantages in the name of
the Company under any circumstances. In addition, the Group has set up a supervision office and has an anti-corruption
officer in place, which both are fully responsible for the disciplinary and inspection work of the Group through assessment
and spot checks. To strengthen the regulatory capacity and scope, any suspected corruption cases can also be reported
by employees to the supervision office by phone calls, email or in person.

This Year, the Group offered directors and employees with anti-corruption training as a reminder to ensure compliance
with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations as well as internal policies by internal personnel, hence creating a
clean working environment. The training covers anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws and regulations, as well as case
studies of past violations, in which proper ways to handle potential and actual violations were discussed in particular.
During the Year, the Group did not have any corruption lawsuits.

RE-SEEHSAMRRENL NEFIAFNEZSERECHBASINAERZZEL  TEBCEYNERERE 8
B ERHAEELAER-

BT RMHEERE  ENNRTEUEEREIAKZLEYE HBERZIBERTERGHE - SIBCEENREE  EIFRER
FEERMBEER A THEM - AR SERMBTERABAHERE  AABKEZ2RE EFEARBETRS
FoE-SHRRAAKRZE BRIIFE-

R&S

FEBERIME]-TH]-[FINIHEEFR  TSEJHE DR FFERABRETA -FEEBYNAERBTEAEEES
SENXBEY  CEXEARIERES  URBYFLABENREFNERABEZRAANERM - WFERANIERE
RRESEH -

EMTRAC(ABEFFMRCGEIFM FIAUETINHMEUREER  BAFITHFRMES  ETBENASITEEMARE
RTHATATREBEED  REAAFNZEABERIANAQRRAEE  EARBRARNMMRUZENE - ki AEERBERR
RERERAE  BRTERHNE  2HEAEKELAREETIF EITTEABES  ENIHRIMEERIZERIERES
R LmaREEIREE -

RE AEEAESRETIRERESEZN  URERBRABASEEBEEZEARADBEIRNER  HERZNITFR

B BIABREBERESRRBEBENEZZELS UARBAEERTANERAT ETZERNIMNZEREE
EMEBRERBER - AF  AEERBEEAESHRARMF -

ERECEAEERAT | —B=—FFR
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Process
HKMERL MERESELF ks
HEAT > mMREBESLF
BRMA . & ¥H
SEMHEERETmEE
SEFRREMHZTIE
RERSHBHIPEER °

We adhere to the corporate motto
of “Never cut corners on labour and
qua|i’ry, no matter how comp|ex the
process or how costly the materials”

Materials
Processing
w3

and devote to the optimization of supply />
chain and product quality management,
so as to offer diverse, safe and highly
effective Chinese medicine products.

WHOLE-PROCESS QUALITY
MANAGEMENT

Product safety and quality management

Tong Ren Tang adheres to the principle of “honest operation and
morality” as core value of quality management. The Group upholds
good product quality to ensure all Chinese medicine products provided
to our customers are excellent and complied with relevant laws and
regulations. The Group’s modern Production and R&D Base in Tai Po,
Hong Kong obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice)
certification for Proprietary Chinese medicine, ISO22000:2005 (Food
Safety Management Systems) and the HACCP (Hazard Analysis and
Critical Control Points) certifications, and all Chinese medicine
products produced and sold by the Group are registered with the
Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong and complied with
international and local standards.

EREEEEE

EmREREEEE

BCE-—UBZRIHAEHEE HBARIFHRE
EEEROER FAEERFRINERESR
BRAEFEMHEERERNTREER - A&
ERREBBENBERCEENXEMEEES
PREGMP (LEEEEHRE) AH  EREE
1ISO22000:2005 R mEZ 2 EE B A K HACCP (&
ESHEEEHE)RAE  UKBEBTRESTHEE
ERHMAEPHEER  UBRRMELEERD
ENEREIFTEEBRRAMZE -

Production
HEBRBRE

Major Quality Management System Certification of the Modern Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong
BEREAHENARLEENRZRELNNETEREEERERR

———

Buiifirg Tong fen Tang Chinana

Baijeg Tivg Aan Targ Chenave
Wergersren o, Lid . =
LR EEEVELE

Inspection
EmigR

GMP Certification for
Proprietary Chinese Medicine
BB PR EE GMP R E

1SO22000:2005 Certification
1ISO22000:2005 52 5%

HACCP Certification
HACCP 23

To ensure the quality of owned products, we adopt a stringent quality standard. From material procurement, reception and
storage, production and even inspection, we formulate management and operational guidelines in accordance with the
quality requirement of each process, and stipulate the duties of responsible functional departments and key personnel so
as to ensure that the arrangement on its production process and product quality are excellent and complied with relevant
laws and regulations.

ABRREFERNRE  RMNYURABRKESEE - YRRE  BURESF £EURSR  BIREBNEEERFE-E
ERRBMFEES YA AEEREIERTIEASHRE  URBLEEBENSHZIREREESARER -
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BDEE - MRS IRERE

Major Quality Control Measures
TEEEEEER

Carry out field inspection for the growing, collection and processing environment of raw
materials, auxiliary materials and packaging materials
EEREME  HRANERMBANEE REREERR

Upon arriving manufacturing plants, materials are subject to preliminary inspection for its
variety, specification and packaging quality etc., and then quality checked by quality
department after passed

PREFE SRR HIERENEREES  SREABHEEBETEERS

Distinguish and store qualified materials and unqualified materials separately to prevent the
use of unqualified materials during production
BORBILGFHREEMASHEOTE  BHLERSBYRRALEE

Qualified materials will be labelled with the inspection date, its expiry date and re-inspection
date, and will be re-examined one month before the review date and those expired will no
longer be used and will be scrapped and destroyed immediately
BBRESHENYSELRBES HEXNORERAD  YREBERSI—ERNETER - BB
BRANYBETBERER - L7 BNRERHRK

Establish guidelines on temperature, humidity and storage environment requirements for the
storage of different raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished
products, and also store in normal temperature storage area, cool storage area and cold
storage area according to its serial number, nature, toxicity and species, to prevent the growth
of micro-organisms and cross contamination

AAFFETAREEME - @ BRMBNERROES  SFRE RERFFREER AR
HiES Bt SUHRRERE 2FRRERARTE BREFENLSE  BRAEHEY
REXBH

Ongoing monitoring on the temperature, humidity, air pressure and cleanliness level in different
production areas, as well as cleaning the production equipment and measuring instruments
with filtered and purified water or 75% ethanol regularly and evaluating cleanness
BEELETREERENEBE - BE - ZEREBOARZFE > UREHEHAAKR75% 2 BERE
EXRERFTESE  RETRETMGE

The production area is installed with cleanroom to avoid contamination during production
LEBERAERFE  BRNEBEI TR

Operators should put on specific work clothes. Different corridors for operators and materials
to enter and exit the production area to prevent micro-organism, particles and other pollutants
from entering the production procedure

REABEFERETIFR REAERYMEANEEESNEBRBAREYREBE  LURERK
£ MNETRYRARERRE

Stipulate internal quality inspection standard, set out the requirements for the qualification of
inspectors, inspection methodology and inspection equipment
AVABBRESEE  JIPRBASER BEH L RBESBIEE]

Set up laboratories with different functions to perform inspection on materials and environment
RETEIDENERE  EFEETYRRBRERR

Conduct a comprehensive internal quality inspection on each batch of finished products, and
those related safety projects will be inspected by independent third parties recognized by
the government to ensure the products comply with safety and quality standards in Hong
Kong

BELANERREYEEBABNEEEEMY  HEERNZEHEAKLABRFRTNELE=
FERE  URFERENRERMERE

ERECERAEERAT | —B=—FFR
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The responsible officers receive training regularly regarding all the procedures to ensure a comprehension of relevant
requirements. During the Year, the product quality training covers GMP, materials management, inspection management,
medicine equipment, manufacturing equipment management, quality standard, manufacturing techniques, equipment
operation, cleanliness and hygiene as well as employee discipline.

HERERE  AEASAEREREI UEREZD THEBRRE - AF  ERREEIREGMP - HERE - BRBE
BoOEMIE - WERBER éz%é SETE BRBRF BREELERABLESIH -

In order to have a further improvement on product quality, the Group established its strategies on quality development and
risk management, which set out its quality development strategy including objectives, targets, planning and annual plans
for quality control, and also formulated a series of guidelines and measures to guide all functional departments in improving
their management system on quality control on an ongoing basis.

RE-—STEEREE AKEFTUTEERRNARERRE JHHEERREK QFEEEERFH  BR  RAREF

B EE - MRS IRHRE

Enhancing standards on quality control
TEEBREEEE

Management of quality risks

Enhancing and adopting a more stringent standard See “Rules of Quality Risk Management” for details.
that covers the management and control over TCM FR(EERMEBRRE) -

herbs and raw materials, selection, cooperation,

assessment and review of suppliers, product quality

control and management, and scopes of retail and

medical services, to further improve the management

standards.

TENRAEBRENEE  REPEMREHNERE - #

EERE  SF FRANER EREE TEREER

R g - E—SRAGTERE -

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Creating a management system
and culture for quality control

BEUEEBAMBEEEEL

Forming a quality management committee which is
responsible for formulating, assessing and adjusting
the strategies on quality control.

RUBEEEZRET 5T  MENRAEE2H -
Enhancing the management structure on quality to
clarify the responsibilities of each working unit so that
a culture for quality control can be fostered.
TEEESEEEE  PRIBEANET NRESEE
At e

Materializing a zero-defect
quality control management
ERTREEEEE

Setting up a zero-defect management panel which is
responsible for determining objectives for achieving
zero-defect, performing regular assessment thereof
and offering corresponding remedial solutions.
RUZHEEE N BERESHRBEEER  EH
ETERTME  WRHBRSES R -

Developing a recognition system to encourage
functional departments and staff to achieve “zero-
defect” and provide suggestions.

BBREHE HBRERENEIBER[ZTRBIR

Eitd . YHET -RIESINER  EERRENERECZEEEERR -

Forming a competent team
ER AT B

Strengthening the management capabilities of quality
control-related technical staff and the training of
technical and operational staff, to build a team with
both quality and quantity.
MREEEERMASNEERE
WiEE RREHESUFHEE -
Developing a more comprehensive mechanism for
talent selection and incentives, which includes the
procedures for identifying, training and managing
talents, as well as the employment packages.

EATERMBBES  BERE BHENEE B
fgﬁﬂﬁ—rum& °

R BREERIEAE

Enhancing the flow of
quality-control related information
mEEEEZEEMRE

Enhancing and making the good use of digitalized
product management system for statistical and
analytical purposes, and establishing a system on the
reporting and handling of quality control tracking for
the whole product life cycle, quality risks and
pharmacovigilance.
mERELANAEREE(AEERRETRIT RN
BYEm24EanBENEEEY  HE2RBMEYER
ERREEHS -

Annual Report 2021

The Group has also formulated “Rules of Quality Risk Management” to further strengthen risk management, eliminate
quality and safety incidents and enhance prompt response to these incidents, improving operational performance.

In addition, in order to assist consumers in their purchase of authentic products, our products contain labels applying
anti-counterfeiting technology to eliminate counterfeit ones, further boosting consumer confidence in the Group.

B AEBHET(EERBEERE)  E-—SNRETHEARESRE  BRESRZ2BHHE  URMBIHRHEHR

RESH  TELEERR -

Btz ABBEHBEEBENERER  A5KEERS BN ARMNER

F -

C DU ERE

o E-SINEEEEEAREENE

Risk analysis Risk control Risk evaluation
BB 2 #7 R B 42 ) [ B R A

Identify and evaluate known or
potential risks and assess the extent
and impact thereof.
Bl EECHRBENERE  UR
AEEREREE -

Corresponding measures are
established with reference to the
extent of the risk exposure and
previous experience.
REREERBALR FTLEHE
¥ o

Communicate with relevant
functional departments to master
information and monitor the process
of quality risk management and
phased evaluation, continuously
improving the management process
and adjusting response measures.
EAERBAEBERE  UEREEAR
EREESRREERERBEERMLESE
ERE BFERAEERE AE
¥ ER -

BEERAR | —B=-F5#H
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CREATING A BETTER EXPERIENCE
FOR CUSTOMERS

Improvement on Customer Consultation and
Product Return

The Group produces its product with great dedication and places
emphasis on after-sales management, while continuously values
customers’ feedback on the products. The “After-sales Product
Consultation and Complaint Handling Management Rule” and the
“Product Return Management Rule” are in place, and the “After-sales
Management and Product Return Procedure” is further established to
improve the customer services quality. If there is any query about
product information and usage after the purchase, or complaint on
product quality, durability, reliability, safety, effectiveness or defects in
design, customers are able to make consultations and complaints
through phone calls, emails, written request or visit our retail outlets in
person as well as return the product.

Meanwhile, the Group stipulates the requirement to be complied with
by staff at retail outlets in the “Rules for Management on the Quality of
Retail Services”, which covers courtesy, reception, hospitality,
knowledge of customers’ needs as well as introduction of products.
The Group also provides relevant training to its staff at retail outlets on
a regular basis in order to provide excellent products and customer
services. Preparing for the new retailing and consumption patterns of
the digital era, the Group diversifies its sales channels, including the
establishment of an online shop on the Company’s official website to
provide customers with seamless experience both online and offline.

The Group received 10 complaints on products and services for the
Year. Following our investigation, it was confirmed that there was no

problem with our products, and we had taken appropriate actions and
replied to relevant customers.
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REGULATE PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group strictly regulates its product labels and description to ensure
their compliance and conformity with relevant regulations. Also, we do
not tolerate any misrepresentation of drug labels and description. The
labels and description attached to the proprietary Chinese medicine we
sold and exported are in compliance with the Hong Kong Chinese
Medicines Regulation, Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese
medicines of registration regulation of proprietary Chinese medicines
and Guidelines on package inserts of proprietary Chinese medicines.
The package insert and description for proprietary Chinese medicine
must be supplied with information such as the names of the main active
ingredient, the dosage and method of usage, functions or
pharmacological actions, storage instructions, contra indications or
side effects and the expiry date. Hence, customers can choose suitable
Chinese medicine products to safeguard their health and safety. At the
same time, the product advertising and promotion implemented by the
Group have to comply with relevant laws and regulation. Any
advertisements and labels must be reviewed by the compliance
department before being released to the public so as to ensure that all
information is true, accurate, healthy, clear and without fraud.

Should we receive complaints related to product advertising and
labelling, we will investigate the case immediately, identify the causes,
and then formulate solutions and improvement measures to prevent
recurrence of similar complaints. During the Year, the Group did not
receive any complaints in relation to advertising and product labelling.

In the future, the Group will continue to review and optimize relevant
policies relating to product responsibility.

B EE - MRS IRHRE
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AFT

ER-SALES MANAGEMENT AND

PRODUCT RECALL PROCEDURES

When the after-sales service ho

EEHRERDOUKIER

tline and mailbox, or the retail terminal receive enquiries, complaints, or

request for product return or exchange and etc. from customers

ERBBAR  ERRBBERTELREIFTFNEH - RiF - BERRELSHER

Queries about product prices,
discounts, sales or business-
related matters will be sent to
the designated staff of each
retail outlet to directly reply,
or be sent to the sales and
business department to
follow up and reply.
FRERER BE #HEZX
KR ENZH  $RETELR
EEASEHOBSERMHEE
REBIPIRERE -

If the reason of return is
related to delivery or order
error, product will continue to
be sold after passing of quality
inspection.
EREFRERBERTEER
EmEREELEmERR
ERETSHENE -

If the product is confirmed to

Queries about product Regarding the complaint of product
indications, usage method quality, request for product return or
and quality will be directly exchange, the quality assurance

replied by after-sales department will conduct examination
service personnel or be sent and formulate measures based on the
to the quality assurance actual situations which include sample
department to follow up check, product recall and etc..
and reply. EHEREENRE -  EERBREHF
TREMBREE - fREER mERIEDHEERETERE
mEZEH  HHERRKE RARER G EREREHE -
EASEEOBREBERHME BIEMERAREIKRERS
RFEIDEBFIREDE A -

If the complaint is related to a product causing a customer to
have adverse reactions, the quality assurance department will
handle the complaint in accordance with the “Adverse Drug
Reaction Report and Monitoring Procedures”. If the case is
confirmed to be serious or unexpected adverse reaction,
meeting will be convened and investigation will be conducted,
including inspection of the batch of production record, product
samples and etc..
BERFHEEFHERELETRRELSH  HEERENAR (ERT
REREREMENEERE) BE - AAXRCEIABRENFEH
NTIRRER  KERESERFERERE  SFREZHEERDE
EmBERS -

have potential If corresponding adverse drug reactions

safety hazards or quality problems after are established and updated, solutions
investigation, the case will be reported and the and preventive measures will be formulated,
product will be recalled and destroyed in including revision of product instructions

accordance with laws and

regulations. and etc.

FERKAEARBFERERENEEMNE & EHEERTRREEIEHE  SHERRT
EEREREIRETEBRERDRHRTIE - RRFERER  BESITERKAES -
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AND INNOVATION

Keeping up with the development of general health industry, we have
been focusing on the scientific development of TCM to promote our
organic growth and continuous upgrading of technologies. During the
Year, the Group continued to develop new products adapted to more
diversified market demand, invest a lot of money and research &
development personnel in this field, such as nourishing of body
condition for the prevention of diseases. In addition, the Group actively
advanced its scientific research on key product categories to facilitate
further product upgrades and future product development.

The Group will continue to adopt “industry-academia collaboration”
strategy through collaboration with world-renowned universities for
joint research on key product categories, ranging from their safety to
mechanism of action. It is expected that the results of scientific
research will contribute a large amount of quantitative data for the
future global expansion of the Group’s TCM, and will be treated as a
foundation for the public in overseas to further familiarize with, accept
and consume TCM and as technological and data support for the
Group in further expanding its presence in overseas markets and
reducing potential market risks.

B EE - MRS IRHRE
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain stability is one of the factors for sound corporate development. Effective supply chain management helps
companies ensure that the supply of raw materials and production lines of products can operate as scheduled, in turn
contributing to their achievement of long-term development. The Group has formulated the“Procurement Management
Rules” and “Suppliers Management Rules” to provide clear guidelines for requirements and procedures of supplier
assessment and approval.

In order to ensure the performance of existing suppliers meets the Group’s standard, we will have a regular review on the
performance and product quality of suppliers to protect the cooperative relationship and ensure both parties are consistent
with the contract made. The evaluation on new suppliers of the Group covers areas including their production capacity,
supply capacity, material quality and reputation and etc. At the same time, for new suppliers of raw materials and auxiliary
materials, we will ask for a small batch of samples from them and send the samples to our Quality Inspection Department
to undergo a comprehensive test for ensuring that the active ingredient content, physical and chemical indicators, heavy
metal content, pesticide residues and beyond meet the Company’s quality standards before we proceed with the official
purchase. In respect of the Group’s suppliers of major raw materials and auxiliary materials and suppliers of packaging
materials that may have significant influence on product quality, the supplier evaluation team will conduct sample testing
and field evaluation to ensure the material quality meets the Group’s standard. The audit team is responsible for reviewing
the suppliers every two years by reviewing various legal licenses, professional qualified certification documents, etc. of
suppliers, as well as assessing the supply capacity, production management level and quality management level of
suppliers. If there is problem in quality, we would perform re-assessment on the field and request improvement or even
terminate the business with relevant suppliers if such improvement is not satisfactory.

The Group understands that identification of environmental and social risks in the supply chain as well as formulation of
such monitoring policies are conducive to stronger supply chain management. The Group will further improve its own
supply chain management and processes in the future so as to achieve a more stable and sustainable development.

During the Year, the Group had a total of 188 suppliers for procurement, which are located in Asia, Europe, Oceania and
the Americas to provide stable supply.

Field audit and

assessment of the
Sample testing quality of suppliers
Bl HERRSEE
Sample i
testing is
passed
BBl e

Key materials suppliers
BERYE Mt ES

Written information such
as certificates and
licenses documents

Preliminary review
provided by suppliers

on new suppliers

B EE - MRS IRHRE
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Conduct field
assessment on the
quality of suppliers
bi-yearly
SmEEt
EEETH

Approve suppliers and Evaluate and file SHEEBET

add in the supplier list records regularly

ERMER R I AR T REEZFE

B = REERAE d Non-key materials suppliers
15 38 &R 3 ) FRAR YR ERS

HEEEER

Suppliers of raw materials,
auxiliary materials and substantial
packaging materials who first
cooperate with us

BREEHRE SRR
TEGEMBHEER
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We are committed to the concept of
“people-oriented and mutual benefits
for employees and the Company”.
People-oriented thinking, team culture
and corporate responsibility principles
urge us to pay close attention to staff
development and create a friendly,
equal, healthy and safe working
environment for the employees.

EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM

{2 1%l =

To retain capable staff and enhance our competitiveness, the Group rEEBEEEIERE - FE %t BEMR
believes that a friendly, equal and diversified working environment with B EWIRET I BEREZERR > URKSI&

mutual respect helps the employees to capitalize on their strengths.

TEAENEARMNBEFE D (BT FM)HER

The “Staff Manual” stipulates clearly the measures and arrangement EREH BEREA IFESRARBHSERE

related to remuneration, recruitment and promotion, working hours
and holidays, which provides a better understanding on the
employees’ rights and obligations. Our staff are allowed to
communicate with their departmental managers or the Human

Rz UBMEITHRESNEFREK BT
FAREETIES  BEREBESEQNMLE
FANERBRR - FEBESRARE  ETR
ERRE HEREEINIHFEREREEES -

Resources Department on employment related matters based on the RERR  AEEETHEARTREHR(ETF
guidelines. The Group will handle their feedbacks, do follow-up, and MYURESRERGRENERFE -

then provide a working environment and business operation model

which meets both needs. In the future, the Group will continue to

review and update the “Staff Manual” from time to time to ensure our

staff of a high standard and compliant employment system.

Remuneration
and Benefits
£ D&

The Group provides a fair and competitive remuneration and benefits to our staff,
regularly assesses and reviews the remuneration and benefits policies with reference to
the industry level and practices of each regional market, to improve its arrangement and
requirements. Also, performance-based bonus and awards will be issued according to
staff qualifications, performance assessment and individual or team performance for the
year to support and recognize staff.

AEBRBEELFHATRITXEN DEIRMUATFEARFINFMRER  UAREH
BEBE ZEEFPZERER - ZATFFREIMNIERRE BEHT6E  EESHEZRREM
RERKIE » URIZFRHEE -

The Group provides comprehensive and regular medical check-up upon staff joining the
Group, also offers basic medical, dental and accident insurance to employees. Staff and
their direct relatives are provided with free TCM consultation services.
FEBRETIRMUEFZA2AABRESNFHEEE EXBERTINRRE BIMBER
B BERARBEAETREDEZARE -

To take care of the personal health of staff and their families, the Group distributes
shopping coupons for different company products to staff and their direct relatives.
Meanwhile, the Group also converts vacant rooms into nursery rooms for its postnatal
female employees.

AREEIREIANBARE EIREEBEREREMHSEAIERBEES - F
B BAEAERAESTILEERRHEAMAE -

To create a relaxing and pleasant working atmosphere, the Group organizes various kinds
of after-work activities from time to time for employees to join. During the Year, the
Company held a wide range of cultural activities, including poetry reading competitions,
team competitions and a number of fun quizzes, putting people in the festive mood.
AEEREMENIEEESE AEETERERSEIRNTHEETIZHE - KF - A4
AIERZTAED  BESFAMREGRE  BERGSRER AR 2 EBREELE - EAR
—ERZH HHRFEE o
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Leave
Arrangement
R HA = BE

Diversity, Equal
Opportunity and
Anti-
discrimination
Zrik FEHRE
ERER

Recruitment,
Promotion and
Termination
HE  BARMRE

Prevention of
Child Labour and
Forced Labour
Fr Ik B T K 18 &l
2T

PDAGSE :BEEAE  AEHE

Apart from local statutory leave, the Group provides additional paid holidays, including
marriage leave, compassionate leave and home leave, to ensure employees rest well.
AEERBEEMEZERY  UARBENEHFRD  BFEER  RREKEHRRS  BREIFE
ENRE -

The Group follows the principle of “distribution based on contribution” and “equal pay for
equal work” and provides equal development opportunities for all employees and
applicants. No biased decision are made due to their race, gender, age, religion or other
factors that are not related to their ability, qualifications and experience to build an
inclusive and fair working environment.

AEEEF LS - BIEMRE  AAEEIREEATRETIENERERE £
SRER - R TR - RBESHMMED  EXRLRBENEZRFEHREORE  UE
REBRDAFHWIERE -

To enhance the diversity of the Board, the policy on diversity of the Group’s Board
members states that difference factors such as gender, age, culture and educational
background are taken into consideration when selecting new directors.
RREABEES L AEENESERES TBRAAREHESE - SR - F&t -
YERBEEREFTRAERIAZEHE Z2H -

All recruitment, promotion and termination procedures adopt the principle of fairness and
openness, and such decisions shall be made based on factors including work
performance, attitude and development direction of employees or applicants.

FRIEHREE - BEARBEREYE/AFARWERA - AREESTHEEALHIERR
EE - BRERZERRELRE -

Procedures related to recruitment, promotion and termination are specified in the“Staff
Manual” to help employees understand their rights and relevant procedures.

HHERBE  BEARBERECHARCEIFMT  UBHETTHAE SHERREERE

No tolerance for the employment of child labour or forced labour in the Group’s operation.
During recruitment, job applicants have to provide identification documents for our
verification and documentation to ensure they are qualified and complied with relevant
laws and regulations.

AEERLIRESEAEANET YR FREBRITREREA TN S HEAXH LT ES
B BREAIFEERRSBRMKE -

Working hours and job duties are specified on the employment contract. Employees are
only required to perform their job duties thereon and strictly prohibited any forced labour
and job duties mentioned outside of the contract in any form.

BRI ESEARBESERGIANERSNT  ETRFTREFERBITHYE  BREUE
AR B ERE BT E K A2 R o e 8 DS RS

In the event that there is any employment of child labour or forced labour, the Group will
handle including reporting to the enforcement branch, assisting the aggrieved employee,
and also taking disciplinary actions in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
MBREMETHRHE THERER  AEESREBBEEFERER  SEEIEIM
BE HYHEZTEET  URKHLRESD °

As at 31 December 2021, there are 745 employees in total, including 233 males and 512 females. In additional, the turnover
rate for the Year is 8.72%, including 30 males and 43 females.

HZE20215 128310 AEBHEB7458ET EhEIE233 B EMRS12B LM - i NEMNRAEEH8.72% » B

0BREMRASBELME -
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GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION
OF STAFF

ZIRETH#

Number of employees worldwide ?4

2HRETAH O
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EMPLOYEES RELATED
DATA OVERVIEW
FOR THE YEAR OF 2021

2021 FEETHEHIBEAE
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RIEEF12A3MANETARE
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TEEAARBILIFITES
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BAGSE :GEEAE  AKHE

Proportion of
expatriates
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STAFF HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group provides a safe and healthy working environment for
employees and adheres to the production principle of safety and
hygiene. According to the “Rules on Management of Retailing Safety”,
Tong Ren Tang lists out the regulations on safety management of

;'! Iﬁ%% E"ﬂz—fé Execution

AEESETRUIRER2NIAES 2% AT
PREEMEES - A ERE(EER2EE

BE) SIMIESFREER2BEENRE - I
BERGAETARNERE LY -

workplaces and warehouses to reduce the risk and impact on the

employees’ position.

Planning
R El

Health and safety hazard assessment

REER2FEENMG

Labour Department and Department of Health conduct regular health and safety inspection
and check-up on employees at Tai Po Production and R&D Base.

S IR A EEEHARBLEENREMETETHEEZZNAERRSE -

Workplace and storage layout

TERBRESHHE

All workplaces, including retail outlets and warehouses, shall have fixtures required for safe

working practices and have conspicuous safety signs in place. For instance, items shall be

stacked at a safe distance from heat and electrical switches. Adequate firefighting equipment

shall also be available in the warehouses and the operation staff shall be familiar with the

equipment and its usage. Firefighting equipment shall also receive regular inspection and Investigation
maintenance performed by designated professional. E%
FEEXERS  ARZERFERAESEREZEFENHRENERNZZERERS - flm - ¥

MEREEARR ERMABERSREER RETEREANEL RN BIEABTERE

BEEBEMMERGTE - BBV T EHEACTHETRENRE -

Inflammable items, poisonous and hazardous substances in the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base are stored in designated space and labelled. The storage space is equipped with good
ventilation, smoke exhaust and fire safety systems in compliance with safety standard. A
valid license has been granted to the Group and annual safety and electricity inspection has
been conducted through Fire Services Department to maintain safety.
RFLEEMBERN SRR R ESEENETHREENERZH YW LET - ZFHEE
REEREEERBEHE HMERZ2HARE AKEFEEYER B - FEBHEHEE
TR2REIRE  UXKZR -

Safety rules and guidelines

Z2HRERIES

Based on the requirements of different workplace and job nature, safety rule for our
employees has been developed to stipulate the safe operation procedure for each position,
aiming at minimising the risk of injury and occupational diseases. In respect of retailing, the
Group formulated the “Rules on Management of Retailing Safety”, stipulating the
requirements for safety management in workplaces and warehouses.
RETIESHARIEFR  Z2HARBECABRETHE  MBAZHUZERFES - UWELEE
RBEBEMRFNEAR ETEFH AEEHET(ZERE2EERRE)  JPAITESHAR
EEREEEMNRE -
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Establish safety culture, enhance safety education

BREZE2X MEREHE

To enhance employees’ health and safety awareness, we develop annual training plan which
includes monthly training with different themes in accordance with the requirements of the
Hong Kong’s Department of Health. Before the end of training, employees are required to
complete relevant assessments. We will also keep record of the training sessions and
assessment results for each employee to ensure each employee obtains necessary safety
knowledge for the position.

RANBETHREREZER  AMESFHREBHLEBERFTEFEIINE  ETEHEEA
HOTFEEEMNIZN - TRIFNA > ETHAEZHBEZ RN TFEABNETIREMSHE
HiEHl c ERAERSEHEBRR  BREIECAGEUMENZZHAMT T4 -

Production employees are exposed to relatively high risk during the operation of the Group.
To ensure that they have sufficient knowledge about factory safety, regular safety production
training will be conducted including standard operation on equipments, safety and
emergency management, fire safety knowledge and system usage as well as traffic and
security management.

LEETIRASELETHERSERNEML AEREMEGHENZRZAR  RELEES
HEEEPET UREEREEREF ZE2RBESEE  HHARMRREER  URTBEM
BEREFLR -

Regular inspection and accident investigation

EHREREHAE

Labour Department and Buildings Department conduct regular inspection on safety and
environment in Tai Po Production and R&D Base every year.
EIRFETFESTFEEHNABEEMBEMRETHTRKERERZEZRIRBER

Health management and promotion

BREEREE

During the Year, we have arranged several occupational health seminars for employees at Tai
Po Production and R&D Base, which covered scopes of fire safety, traffic safety, public
security management, to teach and demonstrate relevant safety and health actions.

RE RMARNBEERBEMBTLZH T2 EAMERRERE  GEREHAZE  RERZE
REREFEE  BRUTHEEBERZ2RRBEE -

Over the past 3 years (including the Year), there is no case of work-related death and work-

related injury. The work-related injury rate was 0%.
BEZF (BFEAE)  AEEYEBLERIRTHIEER  THEERO% °
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The emergence of the epidemic has had an indelible impact on society and public health on a global scale, threatening
people in all parts of the world. The Group understands our employees’ concerns about personal health and safety during
the epidemic, and hopes that by complying with government regulations and guidelines, as well as guidelines on internal
epidemic prevention measures, we can effectively ensure their personal safety in the working environment. We will also
timely adjust epidemic prevention measures to cope with the epidemic situation so as to boost the confidence of our

employees.

In order to further lower the risk of employees being infected, the Group has formulated a series of safety measures,
including flexible working hours, working from home and a shift system, providing training on epidemic prevention and
distributing epidemic prevention materials such as masks.

RENHRR/ZBHERAAREFTRITERNSE  REIN2HZUNAR - AEEROETINEBEHRBHEARER
ZE2NEE  FLEBBBBUANRERES - URAMHRERERE  TARHRESIETFRENEAZR - RMTFE
HERELS  EEARGEER  MERESIHNED -

RE-—SHREETIRFNEE  AEEFET —RIZ2ER SEBE LURD ERTERBES - R4HRMNBZEI

URIREOESHRME -

Before arriving at workplace

e declare physical condition
® ensure no travel history within
14 days

& TAE5 P Al
o BHEFMWHKR
o BR14RARAE IR

During work

Wear a mask

Measure and record body
temperature regularly on a
daily basis

Clean their hands with
alcohol-based handrub before
and after entering and leaving
shops, and touching objects

TEHARS

. BEOE

. SARBIBRAHESR

o REAEHREBWRAE
EEREFRLESEF

QM

.
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Leaving workplace

* 1:99 diluted bleach is used to
clean and disinfect frequently
touched objects
Enhance cleaning and
disinfection of waste containers
Carry out waste separation

s

o M1 OREEANERR
HBEREENY S
M ER R B RBESE
EITHRA B

BAGSE :GEEAE  AKHE

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Adhering to the concept of “business growth driven by talent”, Tong Ren Tang supports talent sustainability and career
planning to nurture talents and strengthen their sense of belongings. The Company formulates a promotion system and
clear guideline is given to employees through the “Staff Manual”. In order to formulate a suitable development direction for
employees, we evaluate and give feedback on staff performance through regular performance appraisal and assessment.

Also, Tong Ren Tang specifically design training programs based on the requirements of every position. For instance,
regular trainings on the operation standard of equipment, safety and emergency management, knowledge on fire
prevention and facilities usage are provided to plant employees together with assessments so as to ensure they work with
safety knowledge required by their positions. At the same time, we provide trainings to retail outlets staffs so as to provide
high quality customer services. We also maintain detailed training records for each employee to assist them to review their
training joined and assessment results. We regularly collect opinions from employees to review and update the training
programs to further improve our approaches of training.

155 EA 3% R

BCEFHIERIAFREBRRINES  XBEETRARRRBERE  UEEESAY  RSEINGER - A2AHE
T-EEAREHE YBB(EIFM S TRHAEES - RECHETANTERER  BMFEEINIFERRAR
RUERE AETRISENRRESH -

BCEFSEEE TFREUNEE  SIHTSENEIFE  PINAREEIRHESNNEREERE Z2RESEE - HE
HFRREEASEI  AEIER BRAEIAABEBUAZENZZART I -BE  THAZEXRETRERMAEI - BX

RUSEENTFPRE SUEBIHEFMEIIER  HHEREMSENZIREZRER BEATHEEETER - #MR
HREHEIAR  UTEEITTEH -
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Focus of
training
EHIEE

Working
Skill

TEH: &8

Product
Quality
EmEE

Health and
Safety

REEZ2

New Staff
HABAS

Description of training
3% )l 4

Targeted on job requirements for employees, our staff knowledge on our products and work tasks as
well as their professional skills can be enhanced through provision of different kinds of skill training. For
example, trainings on management of manufacturing equipment and sampling are provided.
SHEETHRMER  REFEMNKEINR  MERERR THENRE  EXRESHE - FINRERER
B E TR R EARIEH

To enhance our employees’ understanding and performance of production processes and quality
requirements, the Group provides different trainings on product quality.

RIRETHLEEREREEERNIBBRRR  AREREFTEANEREEE -

In order to ensure the health and safety of our employees, the Group provides health and safety trainings
as well as special activities on different topics to teach and demonstrate different exercises for safety
and health to draw more internal personnel attention to occupational health and safety.
REREINRENEZE  AREREFTEIEIENERRZ2IRREETDY  BENTHEFIENRERRF
REF RERNMAEHBEREEZZNEE -

The Group is endeavored to providing an inclusive workplace. As a result, the Group provides induction
training and career training for new staff every year to give them a hand in understanding their own
responsibility, familiarizing them with the Group’s culture and its core values with the aim of adapting
themselves to new working environment and integrating them into the new organization.
FEBFLERHABRNITHEESH - Blt - SFHRMAFABE TEIIRBSIR  BBHETTHEIRE -
SEXENEERS  FEHFHMABITEABERINIERE  BAFAS -

During the Year, the Group provided trainings for 34.0% of its employees, in which male and female employees accounted
for 28.1% and 71.9% respectively; among those employees received trainings, 4.3% was directors and management,
17.8% was managers and 77.9% was general staff.

AE S NEEHMONETRMEEI > EFBEUHETINLMETHAIE28.1%M71.9% > M43%ZIHIETAESRE
17.8% BEEBRIMT79% BEKRET -

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

6)

Total training hours
of all employees
ERETHEIAKH

2084’:"

Training hours per employee

IHEZE TS 2.82(3%5

Male employees
BEMET

742"

Training hours per employee
FHEEZE TR 3.2 i)ﬁl%s '

Managerial grade staff
KEHKET

915%"

Training hours per employee
THZEE T E%;Q'I 3.3 t]?LHJ%s

Excluding Independent Non-executive Directors

TEREBLFUTES

BAGHE - GEAF  AEKHH

Directors ® and
Senior Management
EEREREEAS

2187%"

Training hours per employee
FHEZETEIIRY ]9.8 hours

UN:s

Female employees
ZHEET

1342"

Training hours per employee
THEZE TG 2.6 rflﬁlé_%s

General staff
BERET

951"

Training hours per employee
b2

IHEZE TR ].4hours &

N
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RIREH 5k RERIR

Hazardous waste B EEEY

Hazardous wastes such as a small amount of chemicals are generated from the Group’s production process while a
small amount of medical waste is generated from the Chinese clinical services at retail outlets. Paying attention to the
risk of improper disposal of hazardous waste, such waste will be disposed of with proper supervision and disposal.

BICE/Z "IEEEA
B FO0EXM, WE&E

B EHERPEERS AEENEEBRES VB ERSHEHEY MEERRNEBDEREFREL S BBERY - XMW TE

W w — RESEEEYNER FRIEZEEREE BELSEEBEEEY -
HEHERKENRERE » TF& Sk
Medical waste
BREEY

BRERENSE -
The acupuncture needles used in Chinese

medical consultation fall within the scope
of medical waste Group 1 — Used or
Contaminated Sharps. The “Medical
Waste Treatment Procedures” prepared
by the Group complies with “Waste
Disposal Ordinance” and “Codes of
Practice for the Management of Clinical
Waste”. Our staff at retail outlets are
required to recap and properly placed
used sharp needles in medical disposal
bin with special marks to separate from
other waste and avoid contact with
humans. The sealed medical waste will be
transferred to a licensed medical waste
collector for disposal. Meanwhile, we will
submit a relevant application to the
Environmental Protection Department for
follow-up actions.

12 14 PR B8 20 AR AR A B &t 2% P R RO & B B8 AR R
ME—HR — [REARZTFRAE] &
SEERBEEB(EDEERE) R(EEEY
BRI EFAFI(BREYEERRE)
TERREBTIABZNRBNHEAET  Z&
TR PA 4 B AR R Y BB R EE AR WO B H bR
A BOEAEBHKE SIZHER
BYE BRXEMBERBYREREE -
B%;EEI/ FABRREBEXHEARGE - UE
BRIE o

Forging the self-discipline of “Dedication
comes from the heart in the steps that
no one else can see for Tong Ren

Tang”, while we pursue excellence in
Chinese medicine products research and
manufacturing, and we are committed to
take up responsibility of environmental
protection.

Chemicals and other hazardous waste
tERREMESEEEEY

Understanding that the chemicals we use in production and
experiments pose a potential threat to staff and public health and
pollute the environment, the Group formulated control measures,
which are administered and supervised by laboratory
management, in accordance with “Hazardous Chemicals Control
Ordinance” of Hong Kong.
RREENETERRECANCEREETIRAREEBRNEE
Bk PEHRBERSR - At AEEXBEB(ESLLERE
HRG) Bl EZGER  THEREEEAEEEHTRES -

Complying with the environment-related laws and regulations, the AEEBRBERBHEBNERER  #IE(EER
Group implemented “Measures on the Administration of Environmental — #IRZERESEIHE)  RBEXBFEERBEHE
Management Protection of Production Bases” to regulate the FRPDER - RMEBHEHRDEEEE -
emissions of Tai Po Production and R&D Base. Through standardising {THIHNERERERESEIEE  BERBER
the emissions management, implementing resources conservation ERBERB AR FEEAURSERCHARE
measures and raising employees’ awareness, we monitor and WHADHKRAREEE  HEFG LHEESF
continuously optimise our environmental performance. Meanwhile, WRRREE  CMRNRTERERR  XHAA
with the enhancement of resource utilization efficiency and reduction BE—SHIFTREE - B SRS KNWERIE
of emissions as our environmental goals, the Group continuously B meERRR -

evaluates, records and discloses environmental data every year for

reviewing effectiveness of current measures, and further formulates

specific indicators for emission and waste reduction as well as energy

and water conservation in the future, improving governance

performance.

EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT
Waste

Toxic and hazardous wastes such as chemical containers and
waste oil are classified and disposed to specially-marked
collection containers, which are stored separately in the leak-
proof, dust-proof and explosion-proof facilities. Licenses from the
relevant government authority were applied and such waste is sent
to qualified recyclers for handling. The amount of recycling for
each time will be registered and recorded.

LBEREH BRHSESETEREY  EoERBERBHIEEN
WERSE BUIGFTHRERREL  FHRR - BHRIERBEESIHEN
R o KMEMERBBNEERZEER YBEREEEENES?
HEEWENEE  SXETELRTCHEEKE -

The Group also encourages employees to collect the hazardous
wastes such as ink cartridges and used battery for recycling to
mitigate the impact on the environment.
AEETHBETWERKE BEENEEEERY > WETEU
R EHIRIRHNZE -

HEE 2
EEEY

The Group, being well aware of the potential impacts of waste on the
environment and social, cautiously treats solid waste arising from its
operation. Solid waste generated during the operation is divided into
hazardous waste and general non-hazardous waste. In this regard, we
have formulated treatment measures for each category of waste. This
Year, a total of 0.70 tonnes of hazardous waste such as acupuncture

FEBRABRENHRERTENBECHE 2
HEBEEBETELENEREY RMEEPEL
WERBEENSAAEETERIR-—REZTERY -
WHEHSBEENT LREBEE - ANE > AEHE
ENHZHNREEEEERYHO0T0DM - 3
RHAERAAERE BRELENEFUREE

Non-hazardous waste EZ EE Y]

The Group’s daily operation generates non-hazardous waste such as packaging materials and domestic wastes.
By reducing waste at source, the Group supports reusing and recycling resources, and strives to reduce the
non-hazardous waste generated by the operation. During the Year, the Group recycled 10.57 tonnes of waste

N o paper and paper cartons, and discussed with recycling companies and had access to data of wastes so that we
neeglgs and COtt?n generated b}/ the Group were .handed over to E Fﬁ%% H49431.0 2 M » A E BT EPTU can further improve our relevant disclosures.
qualified companies for processing. At the same time, non-hazardous % - EEMEE - AEENANEEEEOEBHREIUHSHEERY RAEBETRERE  LHEBBARSREY - B
waste such as domestic waste of approximately 431.0 tonnes in total HEMSRNBEEEY - AF  AEEEKRT1057 AMYEARMAL  WEEKATA® > TIRESEZVEE
were handed over to local government authorities for collection, E—STEHBENKE -
clearing and processing.
Waste generated from the production :
: : Domestic wastes
process and packaging materials £ SERIR

EEREREOERAEENNR

The Group adheres to the approach
of “purchase on demand”, where we
purchase packaging material based
on the production volume of our
products accordingly. Employees at
Tai Po Production and R&D Base
are encouraged to reuse resources,
non-hazardous waste and prevent willful discard of
EEREE YR recyclable waste such as
newspapers and paper boxes.

0 3 Employees are required to collect

° and separate recyclable waste,
which will be sent to waste collector
for recycling.

03 AEERFREBEINRY &

WASTE &Y

Food waste generated from the canteen of the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base is collected and stored at designated rubbish bins to be sent and
disposed by our collector. The qualified collector will regularly collect and
handle sewage and waste oil being discharged from the kitchen to the grease
traps subsequently.
AEENEBNRRBUERRBERABEEAREMRENES  YAKE
E%E c EHRERBMISAER AXAEERUERTEDRRER
REBERHE o

@& Total

## & Total b

Intensity of
hazardous waste

BERRNEE

Total non-hazardous Intensity of

waste generated

FEEEERRAE

Total hazardous
waste generated

FEERERRNAE

R 0.0004

2021 2021 2021

0.55 0.0004

2020 2020 2020

tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue
AN BEBTERA

Meanwhile, office staff are encouraged to reduce using as well as making
best use and recycle any single-use items by types:
E  RASBHAZETHS —REARNER  URYF|EBAN D EE

e Establish a new electronic system, e Collect paper, ink

adopt paperless communications to cartridges and used
ERLEERBEHEERENE M reduce printing battery for further
Bo REBBBABEENRE WS BYMMNEFRS  BITEMKLESE treatment by independent
ISAER  ZIEEERTEWE 2 B ED &rc;ef&sional recycleg .
Y MBARER - B FER : Mk 25 BEE
ETWER S EAEKEEY  BX Use double-sided papers and reuse = B A E e

= o single-side printed paper BiEE
B 37 3% Wy £ 7 1F ) W R 22 ERemED . B EEEE BERE

tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue

tonneSiel W BRI

tonnes AM{
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During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 483.4 tonnes of packaging materials, which consists of 162.2 tonnes of
paper, 131.0 tonnes of plastics and 190.2 tonnes of metals. Through the optimization of our data collection system, data
accuracy has been further improved, thus the total consumption during the Year increased by approximately 8.80%
compared to that of the last year.

RE > REBMHREEISSAQAWEENE > EPEIF162.2 AMAAR  131.02MER K 19022 AHEE - EBEE=HBERE
R E—SRATEEERE  AMSAFELBERERL—FELA18.80% °

PACKAGING MATERIAL® &5 41 #1©

# 8 Total

Total Packagin
Moterialg ¢

Papers #3& Metals &8 Plastics 2} BEMEE

162.2 190.2 131.0 483.4

2021 2021 2021 2021

135.8 178.8 129.7 4443

2020 2020 2020 2020

tonnes ‘A tonnes M tonnes Al tonnes M

Intensity of packaging materials O.3 0.3

(tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue)
BEMNHBE aw aEsz8) 2021 | 2020

Note ffi & :

® It only includes the operation sites involved consumption of packaging materials.

REESREEMEENEEY -

Carbon emissions and air pollutants

During the Year, the Group also engaged an independent consultant to conduct a carbon assessment for quantifying the
greenhouse gas emissions (or “carbon emissions”) generated from its operations. The quantification process is carried out
based on a set of guidelines drawn up by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department and the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department® and other international standards such as the “Greenhouse gas accounting system: a
corporate accounting and reporting standard” and ISO14064-1.

During the Year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were 2,058.3 tonnes of CO, equivalent. The Group’s carbon emissions
were mainly from the use of purchased electricity in Scope 2, which accounted for about 94.1% of the total emissions,
followed by burning of fossil fuel in mobile sources in Scope 1, which accounted for about 5.1% of the total emissions.
Total carbon emissions for the Year decreased by approximately 3.4% as compared to that of the last year, mainly
because of the decrease in usage of motor vehicles and fixed facilities.

RHER B ZE RS RY
AE AEEFERBTMOETRTE  ABCEBELOBTABEN (RBBIR)  BLOBRSETERREN
BETREGEROKS O CEERBEFTRE | LEEFRASML) RISO14064-1 5 K BB REET «

RE S AEENABRERD2,083M _StHEE - FAEEANBEREIEREHE22IBENER  GAFREY
94.1% » HRAHE1 2 BB RN AR &E%mmzmsj%°$¢E%meﬁt FERPN3.4% TERE
HREERBENERAETR -
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CARBON EMISSIONS #z#Fp

Sc @& Total
#HE 2 )
Other

Direct emission Indirect emission indirectiemissions Total greenhouse
of greenhouse gas of greenhouse gas of greenhouse gas gas emissions
ERBEREHER R = R K HitB R ER BN BERBHHAE

1049 @ 19371 16.3 B 2,058.3

2021 2021 2021 2021

168.8 1944.4 17.7 2,130.9

2020 2020 2020 2020

tonnes of CO2 equivalent tonnes of CO2 equivalent tonnes of CO2 equivalent tonnes of CO2 equivalent
AE=—FtEHES NE—SLHEE AW—FtES NS tRES

«(\’ Intensity of greenhouse gas
(tonnes of CO:2 equivalent/HK$’ million of revenue) ® l .6
Q BERBHRBE cw-acngs SEBTHA) 2021 2020
>

Notes Fff 5% :

o “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purpose) in Hong Kong”.
(EBEEY (B &%‘E'D\%}ﬂb‘é)ﬂ’), REEHRRABRINZENREES]) -
Scope 1 includes direct greenhouse as emlsswns arising from gasollne and dlesel combustion from stationary source and mobile source.
HE1VELERAETRRABRAE S SRS RHNERAZTRES
With reference to “How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Gu|dance on Environmental KPIs” by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.
SERBXGM(NAEBERE HEREABREME T  REBRERIEEERIES) K (2006 F IPCCEARBRERBBFEER) -
Scope 2 includes indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchase of powers such as electricity from third parties.
BECEENE=ZSBRESHISRENEREEREH
With reference to “How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendlx 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
description of revision of “Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting Methodology and Reporting Guidelines for Power Generation
Facilities (2021 Revised version) (Draft for Comments) by Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China and calculation
of electricity rid coefficients at each operating site.
SERBR %F)gr@ﬂﬂ EERG  HERERBREMES BERREYEEERES) EP§}\E#\$H@]$§EP“ (R EBE R
B REREIEE B ERIE (2021 iﬁﬂ%JHﬁ)»(fﬂ‘R R B RSB N ENRE YitE -
Scope 3 includes other indirect greenhouse gas emissions derived from electricity needed for water and sewage treatment at Hong Kong
i‘peratlng sites and business trips. B

EEEESEESREERKRSKAENENREBRTHECEERZRBIN

With reference to “How to Prepare an ESG Report A endlx 2 Reportini Gu|dance on Environmental KPIs” by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
SEBBRE AR R EARE N« 5 0 AR R B SRIE 51 ) o

0.2% 0-3%
0.3%——=
@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — stationary source

e AR E — BEER

@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — mobile source

e ERERE — BEIR

[ ) Purchased electricity
MBS

. Water consumptlon
RIKER

@ Sewage discharge
SEIKEER

@ Business travel by air

REB D8

Air pollutants are mainly generated from emissions from gasoline and diesel burned from vehicles operating in each
operating sites, liquefied petroleum gas consumed by cooking herbs in Asia operating sites, the burning of natural gas by
cooking herbs in the Americas operating sites and the burning of natural gas in Europe for heating purpose.

For the purpose of reducing carbon emissions, the Group encourages its employees to replace business travel with video

conference or teleconferencing, to use more public transport and switch off idling car engines. Air pollutants for the Year
reduced as compared to that of the last year mainly because of reduction in consumption of gasoline for vehicles.

ZRFANEIBFEASEERNWERMREVEMNGH  TNEERREEMBERRCOAR TNEBHIREMRERR
RoURBNHEBRERARARSELNTER -

AROBER - AEBESBMETUREGREFZZBZHRARETELT  SREARRBIARFERRE - 7F - ZRITRYR
FT—FERLETERARERHVHERERD ©

ERECEAEERAT | —B=—FFR
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EMISSION B sk #p4s)

Nitrogen oxide Sulphur oxide Respirable suspended particulate
agy Li=Rlet/) QLION S:2ves

609.2 | 155 § 78.0 | 516 45.3 | 775

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
kg T kg T kg T5=

Including air pollutants generated from gasoline burned from vehicles.

BERBEFREIREENZRSRY -

Emission factors are calculated with reference to “How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, “Technical Guide for the Preparation of Air Pollutant Emission Inventory for Road Vehicles” by Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China, “Compilation of Air Emissions Factors” by United States Environmental Protection
Agency and “EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission inventory guidebook” by European Environment Agency.
FREAFSEEBXGM(NMERRR HEREABMEME "  BRBEREVEZERES) PEARAMNEBERREHCERED
BARSRYHFBEERHZRMER) ZEARRB(E ﬁx’i*%ﬁ?ﬁi/%%(?ﬂﬂ)} LUK BN B8 35 B (EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission
inventory guidebook) &t & °

Wastewater

Polluted water discharged by the Group is mainly sewage from production and domestic sewage. Sewage discharged in
operation is discharged to specified sewage treatment system via government pipes, and it is collected, sampled and
tested by government authorities on a regular basis. Meanwhile, in order to minimise the impact of sewage discharge on
the environment, we perform random sewage tests at our Tai Po Production and R&D Base every 5 years to ensure the
standards are complied with for further supervision on the sewage quality.

The production equipment, containers and tools are cleaned and sterilized with self-produced purified water and
formulated alcohol. The cleaning and disinfection of medicine equipment are processed without any use of detergents to
ensure the water discharged are “residue-free and pollution-free”, which minimises the detrimental impact on the
environment caused in the production process. We adopt food-grade lubricants on production equipment which are easily
degraded to reduce pollution.

5K
AEEEENSKEIEREEERETEK EERFRNSKEEHBFHENEEHFRSKERESKERRE  LH
HEEBERRERBERR - B BRESKEREREENNEE  RMNSSFRABLEERREBR  BRETE

% - S BESKEE -
EENRE A8 TAYEAREARAKRE AR EENERETERRES - EBERNREAZRESARSES

TREAERMABERE  BRABHWAKIZRE - TR CHEBBRHRBSANBERERIZE -MEERETRAR
ZOBNRREHBELURDITR -
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RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Resources Conservation

The Group fully understands that energy and water are valuable natural resources on Earth shared among humans. This
Year, each operation sites of the Group obtained water from local governments, and did not encounter any difficulties in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We pay great emphasis on electricity and water conservation and require the
employees to be prudent in the use of electricity and water resources without wastage. The Group has implemented a
series of measures to enhance resources efficiency. Among which, as energy consumption is the primary source of the
Group’s greenhouse gas emissions, we will continue to focus on and strive to enhance the energy usage efficiency at the
Tai Po Production and R&D Base, offices and retail outlets.

BHER

FEERAERRBRADRAMBENBERRER  TRAENHAZER - AF  FARESLESMAKRBEBRG - X#
ﬁEY}E'JﬂKEJ:ﬂEﬁFﬁEE EMERFABERAK  EREIRSSEMRR  HBRENFL - AEBCER—RIRA
BEFRMENER - B - BERERERRFAEERZERBHRNEIERE  RAKEERIYS HREABEEN AN - B
RERTFELRIHEEREA NS -

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emissions
RABRUBER BB RO EERE

Tai Po Production The air conditioning and lighting system of the Production Base are set at day or night
and R&D Base modes to reduce the energy consumption during night time
RIFEEMEE M SEEMNZARRARSARABREEER - B REERER

Install timers along the corridors, the surroundings and the concourse of the Production
Base
REEEMER BARRAZERIGHE

Maintain energy consumption at a reasonable level based on the production requirement
RBEEEZER  GEBTHASE

Turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before leaving for the day or
when not in use
RTURBEAEAGRAEMERE  ZARRBRALS

Regularly check and maintain energy-consuming production equipment to sustain its energy
efficiency

EHREREFRELEERR  URSHERNE

Install information card for production equipment to make it easier for professionals to
perform regular monitoring and follow-up

REERBRERBRES  TREEXASEHENRRE

Taking into account the actual needs of the environment, timers are installed for outdoor
advertising signs so that the signs are turned off for a designated period at night
ZERSRTFE  REIMBEEHRIBHEE  NEERBIFRER

Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions

BEXRAARX REARAZRRARSGREEE

Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency

ERSRRENRNERER

Regularly perform inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning of water
equipments and pipes

ERRENREAKREREE  BREFERE

Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
EHREMBE AERFAKELED R E

Select and plan the plant species for greening Tai Po Production and R&D Base
REEBRRAZRITAHEEMRE M FRECEYNESR

LERCEREBRLA | ZS=-FFRK
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Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emissions

RAER K ROm D PR E B e

Hong Kong office The air conditioning and lighting system of the office are set at day or night modes to
and retail outlets reduce the energy consumption during night time
EEPLAER MAZMNZRARBARSRABRRERN - RO REREIRER

Air-conditioning temperature of office is set at 25.5°C
REZARBERFERNRE 25.5°C

Regularly educate the employees on the importance of energy and water conservation

EHEE TENERHKNERMY

Place different green plants in office to adjust the air quality and relieve the monotony and
weariness from work
RBAEHRBEREZCEY  UASTEZRRER TESRNEFERE

Remind employees to turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before
leaving for the day or when not in use
RAEINATHRBAFERAKERMERE ZARBHRS

Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BEXRAARX REBRAERARSGRZELRIE

Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
ERASHRNENERESR

Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
EHWENREAERAKEUESMRE

During the Year, the Group’s total energy consumption was 3,121.2 MWh equivalent, and the total electricity consumption
was 2,681.1 MWh. Other energy consumption included liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The
Group’s electricity consumption is mainly derived from its business in Hong Kong. Total energy consumption for the Year
decreased by approximately 31.3% as compared to that of the last year. Apart from the significant increase in consumption
of diesel, the consumption of other energy decreased due to the decrease in relevant usage at operation sites and the
decrease in the number of operation sites.

AE S REBNWEREEESS 1212 KkEREHE BXEEL2,681.1 KK HUgEREABERLEGHET - XAK 7
HALEH AEBHNEEZTERBEEER AFEHRARER L —FERLHN31.3%  BRTEHWERERBE LT
e FREERNEEEREREESHERIM TR -

ENERGY USED &R Ao

# & Total

17

I Liquefied Total energy
Gasoline Diesel petroleum gas Natural gas Electricity consumption

R o ELFHA R RS & .

185.7 51.7 73 3,121.2

2021 2021 2021 2021
222.1 [VA] 21.2 560. 4,542.2
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent
JKFLRE Pl I LB KRB TR TR

Intensity of energy used
(MWh equivalent/HK$’ million of revenue) ® 3.5

BB kEE BEEETHA) 2021 2020

The energy consumption of some operation sites is estimated based on monthly average consumption.

BOEBHNERERERSAVIREGH -
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Water Resources Usage

The Group’s total water consumption for the Year was 22,481 m?, and the water consumption intensity was 14.5 m¥/HK$’
million of revenue. Compared to the pervious year, water consumption for the Year increased by around 19.1% and the
reason is the significant increase in water consumption for cleaning during the pandemic.

KERER

AE AEENERKER22481L 5K BABER4SUAK BEEBTRA - HBEE—FE XEXEKELAHD
19.1%  RERZFEHE  AREENEKERBLEH -

CONSUMPTION OF WATER RESOURCES /K& B & F 7

#E Total

Total water consumption Intensity of water
HMITKE consumption

MKERE

22,481 14.5

2021 2021

18,883 14.4

2020 2020

" m3/HK$’ million of revenue
m? 52K MR EBBITBA

Notes Fff 5% :

an As water resources of its offices, warehouses and some operating sites in Hong Kong are managed by property management offices or there are
no physical operating sites, the data only covers some operating sites.

HREBHAE  AERMALENNKERRAYEEEREESIARAERLEEN  RERRENILEEN -

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In compliance with the environmental laws and regulations, the Group regularly supervises each operation site in its daily
operation to ensure its emissions complies with statutory requirements. Despite that its daily operation has no direct
impact of material nature on the environment and natural resources, in view of the growing attention of all stakeholders in
community on sustainability, the Group intends to alleviate the ecological impact from perspective on product life cycle by
reducing waste generated from the disposal of products.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group understands that climate change brings changes to society and daily operations. With its growing influence, we
recognize the importance of identifying and formulating countermeasures, and will formulate monitoring mechanisms and
policies in the future to increase the stability of our own operations.

- C 7=

RIERXAER
FEBTHREETETERRENEARER  ERERSLEN  BRAFRUFTEEEER - BEAKEANRFEER
FERUBRERAREREREAYE  OREL S LERDEARVEITHERR  FREASHIAREREHBRAE -
ZERBEHLEERENZE UL ERREELENERY -

et 3 -1 14

FEEHARRSCAHERABEETRES - BEHLEZMER  RMAARBRI IEEEENERM  XERK
RHETEERBIREE  RABSGEBNREEN -
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We are committed to the corporate

spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue,
Preserving tranquility and wellness” to
promote healthy life and TCM culture in
the community.

As a time-honored enterprise with centuries of history, Tong Ren Tang
has always upheld the mission and vision of “Healthy Life Global
Choice” to improve the wellness of the community and actively
promote TCM culture across the world. While providing quality
medicine products to the Chinese medicine market, the Group also
actively participates in social welfare. The Group fully carries out the
responsibility of a corporate citizen and gives back to the community.
We leverage our expertise in TCM to facilitate cooperation among
different sectors of community and encourage employees to care for
and serve the community. We promote community investment in four
aspects, including “caring for public health”, “supporting the
grassroots and the underprivileged”, “promoting TCM culture”, and
“boosting TCM education”.

RAERARER
Caring for
Public Health

BAIZHREEEE (L
Promoting TCM
Culture
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HfiRE "AECE: &
HEE, NEXEEH >
HTEHEERREERER
REZEAL -

ER-—XEFEFR RCE-—BEUTAERE
2HRAZ | AEGES  RALEREKT  X&
BREMERFEE L  AEEEATHEE
TERUEEERNER  tEBRINLER
BEX 2AIERTLEARFBEENEME B
HE -BMEATEBENER  BEBELSR
ROSRHETAZNBRELE -KMEODSEE
BHERE BETHEELRRER] [HKEER
EE | - [MEPBEX IMIEDHTEEHRS |-

KEEFEEE
Supporting the
Grassroots and the
Underprivileged

Since 2020, the epidemic has brought a significant impact on the
global society and also brought people to raise considerable concern
over personal health and hygiene. In response to the community
concerns in the field of personal health, the Group held Chinese
medicine talks online for the Year, with total number of impressions for
such videos reached over 250,000 times, in which 14,000 people
watched them online and 50,000 views for talks were broadcast live
and replayed. While maintaining social distance to lower the chance of
virus transmission, the public can learn about epidemic prevention
measures through online media to alleviate the impact of the epidemic
on their own health.

Apart from online activities, the Group also held Cardiovascular
Stiffness Test Day cum Free Chinese Medical Consultation and “Show
Love and Care to Stroke Prevention 2021 ” during the Year, for
instance, we paid a visit to the elderly for stroke prevention in Sik Sik
Yuen Wong Tai Sin Temple and Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong
Choi Wan Elderly Centre, with around 660 people having free medical
consultation and a total of about 300 participants in the visit. The
event is beneficial to the public and the elderly in understanding their
own health conditions and taking corresponding measures as soon as
possible for protection of their personal health. The public can also get
in touch with TCM services through free Chinese medical consultation
and visits, contributing to the promotion of TCM culture and gaining
more public recognition.

Meanwhile, in response to social needs, the Group offered discounts
on products or services in order to relieve the burden on the
community during the corresponding period. In the light of concerns
caused by the epidemic, the Group has launched anti-epidemic
discounts to assist the community in the protection of personal health
and safety without increasing the financial burden. Also, Tong Ren
Tang provided eligible persons with anti-epidemic soup packs and
supplies for their better personal health, thus lessening the possibility
of infection.

Success can in no way be achieved overnight but it takes continued
effort to reap rewards. In order to realize the mission and vision of
Tong Ren Tang, the Group understands that long-term efforts and
perseverance are indispensable. The Group will continue to give back
to society in various ways and promote the improvement of health and
TCM culture, so as to achieve “Healthy Life Global Choice”.

ﬁﬁEFQﬁFﬂﬁm¢ﬂ,
® S I [ e

IREHE: AliSRE 2=

H20205 RBEREREETRATZEN
FE TRARHEARERFENEIARE
Bt - REEHEEEARERIBNET A
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HRBABBBR  ERFE1B4TARE
BERSEXAERERRERAE - KRWHE
RIFUHTER  HREFSEERSNEE 3B
BR-EERRHRER  HERBEHESR
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EDAHNE0A R EHSHEAHHY
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HEEEE  AEETEREHEER  BHE
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CONTENT INDEX

Subject
Areas Description
TEEHE AR

A1: Emissions

23287

General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
— MR E land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
ERERRBEREHEKR mMARLIHNHS FEREEEZEYNELES
B
(@) the policies; and
R R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBITABEAZENEELZERRANER -
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B ERR BEERBIE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
and intensity.

HiE(SBE) REREE (BE2) RERBHENEREE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FEEEEREYEERTE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FELBEEERNBEREE -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BT LEEREN B R BZETELBEMRMM LR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREEEERBREBREYNG L RELRMAITYNEAEEERAERELR
BRI SR o

Page Index

HiB%ES|

48, 76-77

78-80

78-79

76

76-77

76

76-77

A2: Use of Resources

HRER

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
Disclosure raw materials.
—RIEE BERERER (IR - KREMESR) BBER -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
RERIAINEER SBERERAEEREE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
BIEKBREE -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
AP LR REANBEEERAEDEL B EMERMMN S -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them and
results achieved.
WHREGERAKR LA EARE - URAFTINAKREEERREREL
BREMERRNLS R RAEHAR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced.
R GAAEEMHNEAERSEEENMGE -

48, 76

82

83

76, 81-82

76, 81

78
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RIE - EREGHRS
BEAERS]

Subject
Areas Description
TEEHE AR

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BERRXAER
General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
Disclosure and natural resources.
—RIKE WEBITABRRERARERERNERFENEE -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
WX EBHRERRRERNEALERCRNERTHALENTD -

Page Index
BB &L

48, 83

83

A4: Climate Change

RIREML

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
Disclosure which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—RIKE BRAIREHERRTREEHBTAEERENERREHBESENEER -
Ad.A Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.
BHEERAESEHBTAEEFENEAREERASE - REHTE

83

83

B1: Employment

=&
General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
—RiFE working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,

and other benefits and welfare.
EETMRMAE BEREHA TR B FEEE . 2t RER
UREMGBRENN :
(@) the policies; and
BE Rk
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFHBITABEAZENEELEZREHNER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.
B ERER FRANRBESINESEL -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BHR - FRANRBEEDNESRKLER -

48, 66-67

67-69

67-69

B2: Health and Safety

BEEZ2
[CENETE]] Information on:
Disclosure Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
—RIFE from occupational hazards.

FHRHZE2TIFRERRERERERRBMEMREN

(@) the policies; and
HE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIHBRTARERLENHEBEEIRRBAGINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.
BEA=ZF (BRERFE)SFERIFEABRMATHABRIEE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
AIBBEEAIHFEH -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored.
L FrER AN R RE R 2180 - URMEBHTRERLE -

48, 70

71

71

70-72
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CONTENT INDEX

Subject
Areas Description
TEEHE AR

B3: Development and Training

B R IE
General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
Disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities.
—RIKE FHERAREETITFRENNBREENBE - #HlZIED -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
ZHBRESEMNESNZIEETDL -
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
ZHBIRESERNES  SEREETHZINFHREY -

Page Index
BERB#ESL|

48, 73-74

74

75

B4: Labour Standards

YT

General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE BEABLEEIREHEITH :
(@) the policies; and
BR R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIHRTARERLENHEBEZERAGINES -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
BHEREEANEEABRET REHET -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
B EHRERBEREREEE RN o

48, 66-67

67

67

B5: Supply Chain Management

HEEER
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
DIl | EEMESMNREREERRBR
—RIEE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
R @ D MHEREE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers

where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

BREEEAREENES  mEMSTERAEANMEREE - UREEHNT
RERGHE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HREEBNHEERSERGNREREERBNES  URAEBEHT
RERFGE -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BREREHESRECZARARERRBHEONEN  URMEBEATRERS
& e

49, 64-65

65

64-65

64-65

64-65
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R -HEREGHRS
HEARTRE

Subject
Areas Description
TEEHE AR

B6: Product Responsibility
EmEM
General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
— Rk E relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
FRRMHERANBRENRRREZE  BE SERLABSEURBRS E
"y :
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUBRTABEALENHEBERRBGINER -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
EESEEXERARETRZ L HRRERAMEARKNE DL ©

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

EERRERRRENRFHE AREBHTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

ol BRI AR PR AR E R B BB -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HIiEERETREREREKER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB EANRERLRBRE  URBEASTRESEL X -

Page Index
BEWB#EL|

49, 54, 59-61, 63

60

60-61, 63

54

57-60, 63

54

B7: Anti-corruption

RES

General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to anti-bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIRE EEA LI 5% - MEFRIABEN ¢
(@) the policies; and
BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIHBTABEALENHBRAEZERRINES -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPABHBRTAREHEEREYEEENE SHARTNEE RFRER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.

B EEEREREF  UREBERNITRESRESTE -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HmEER S TRENRETEI -

49, 55

55

55

55

B8: Community Investment

HERE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
—RIFE consideration the communities’ interests.
RN ESHER TREENMEHEEENRAREES TS ZEULEFRN
BER ©
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
BEXERERE -
B8.2 Resources contributed.

EEIHERBAER -

84

84

85
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Investor Relations Report
REEBRERS

MULTI-CHANNEL INVESTOR COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

We believe that expanding our diversified channels of effective communication will help us to streamline our
communication with individuals, institutional shareholders and public investors (collectively named as “Investors” in this
investor relations report), facilitate, open and transparent exchange of information. Investors’ understanding and
understanding of the Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategy, industry competition and operational
and financial performance will enable investors to make investment decisions in informed circumstances. The Company is
responsible for fair, accurate and timely disclosure of company information to ensure a high degree of transparency,
enhance the Group’s attention, stabilize our relationship with investors, and strengthen the mutual trust of each other.

In 2021, the Group continued to maintain a positive and effective communication with investors who are concerned about
the business development of the Company in a positive and responsive manner. The Group is committed to providing
investors with convenient communication channels and endeavored to ensure that all published data are true and accurate
and clear and balanced. The Group also collected feedback from investors and analysts and reflects the views to the
management and the board of directors. We are committed to maintaining healthy and two-way communication to ensure
that investors can fully understand the Group’s long-term development, strategy, industry competition and financial and
operational performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Group strictly follows the principle of fair disclosure to ensure fair communication with investors and the media and
does not selectively disclose significant non-public information to any person. We are very supportive of investor relations
activities. To facilitate the two-way communication with investors, the Group has adopted different ways, including local
and overseas non-deal road shows, investor meetings, annual general meetings, corporate meetings, conference calls and
e-mail consultation, to closely and frequently communicate with shareholders, analysts and potential investors.

This Year, despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic which caused large and small investment summits and on site
roadshows cancelled or changed to telephone or video conferences, our management still maintained close contact with
investors and actively communicated with them in various countries through telephone, email and video conferences to
discuss the Group’s development and direction, providing them with a deep understanding of the Group and also
strengthening investors’ confidence in our sustainable development.

The Group has made use of a number of channels to interact with investors and keep them abreast of the Group’s latest
developments.

Non-deal roadshows and investment forums

We held non-deal roadshows after the interim and annual results announcement so that investors can obtain first-hand
information on the latest release from the management. The Group also actively participated in several investment
conferences organized by investment banks of which the management of the Group directly talked with investors and
analysts to share our financial results, business strategies and etc..

Major investor conferences participated and roadshows held in 2021 are set out below:

Ongoing communication with the investment communi
Month B % Event =18

L EEIRE EBERR
EMBERRZTENERBERE  APRRCEMEEA  -HBERRRARKRESR (R
HHREEBFRRERBREEDETHE  EF ARMNERANENIR  BEMRRE
BUAKEzCXEORES BREK XARFERUZLERMBRATEZIAHAR
B AMBEREFEENBEZRERTHEHRERE - FEEUQF - ERREFHEAT
ERRER URRERSSENE  RAFKENEIE BERMRKEENEE  UR
BESTHBELNEST -

20215 AKEBEERAER  TRERKWRE  BEROE  BARFEEIQAER
BRONREENFEENEE - FAEERNAREERHERENBEERE  URIBRHAQ
NERBEIHETRRLBEN FEHBEY)  TERERE - AREATREREERDIN
BENREER UHZERRARAEEERESS - AMBORREREREQNESR -
BRAEELZALRBHEBERARENRMBEMRR - KR TERFRRAZHBRE
BRR

= 3
REERFREE
FEEBBBEATHRERD  BRUAFHAIXNEREEREHEER  ETEERENLR
EAALBEBEERFAMER - RMYREZFRRIFD T OXE  HREREEREZEZBNE
EEE AREBEBAMREANIMERZEE REESE RRBFAE 29EH -
EFEREREREASTRANRE  ERR - IMAREBEEREEFERHRAENIR -

TE BEXBRFESRENFEMERANNMNWREZRSREERSSEMAEIVS
FRUEBFRRELNET  ARRAEEENHREE " ERERERE  BRBEBES
ERRBGERSEENAESESHNREFEBREFAKENRRLD - RREERABR
AEENER  MAREEHRMNSABROED -

FEEZBZEREAREELDNR  SREEBSELEEBRHNERE M -

EXREERREERSS

EMRT R FEEERARBITHRREZRE  MEREEODEEBNSERABRNBRMES
MEH AEBBEBSMARERTHABNBREZELS FAEEEEENSTLERRES
RAWME  BHMIESARENKRE EBERSEHHEN -

R2021 F2E XBREFEERETZHRENT ¢

BENRERBE

March = B Post-results non-deal roadshow ¥#& % 3R 5 i8&
Post-results non-deal roadshow 4% 3 X 5 i &
Post-results non-deal roadshow 4% I X 5 B 5E
Post-results non-deal roadshow ¥4 % 3 X 5 i &
Post-results non-deal roadshow 4% 3 XX 5 B &
August \ A Post-results non-deal roadshow 4% 3 X 5 B 5&

Post-results non-deal roadshow #£4& % JERX 5 i &E
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Organizers £ ##E Location 2 / Form 2=
Morgan Stanley EE4R + £ %I Telephone conference E5E & &%
HSBCEZ Telephone conference B &%
CICCHEAT Telephone conference EA &%
First Shanghai %6 — L& Telephone conference B &%
Industrial Securities B3 2% % Telephone conference EFEE &
Morgan Stanley EE4R + 3 7 Telephone conference E5E & &%
CICCH£ AT Telephone conference E:E &5
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Investor Relations Report

The Group actively arranged various investor relation activities, including telephone conferences with analysts and investor
meetings and etc., in order to keep investors abreast of the Group’s latest updates and business operations. Through such
activities, we not only maintain close contact with investors so that investors can get more in-depth and meticulous
understanding of the Company’s situation, but also collect valuable advice from investor’s on the Group’s business
strategy.

Timely response to investors, analysts and media

Our investor relation representative provided detailed and accurate information in a timely manner in response to various
forms of enquiries from Shareholders, investors, analysts and the media via email, fax or telephone.

Besides the above systematic communication activities, the Company website also contains an updated investor relations
section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest information on the Company. We also promote
proactive communication through direct contact with our investor relations team via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com.

Share Performance BBEXE

Closing price as at 31 December (HK$ per share) 815 1176 1232 1062 10.48 9.88 10.78 10.18
R12A31 HWKHE (BRET)

Highest price during the year (HK$ per share)
FEBSE(BRET)

Lowest price during the year (HK$ per share)
FEREE(BRER)

Average daily trading volume (thousand share)
BRATYRXE(TR)

1450 1586 17.94 1200 1220 14.82 1250 14.90

775 988 1054 998 755 .71 9.09 470

1,531 854 925 469 424 883 1,120 4,200

MARKET DIVIDEND PER SHARE
CAPITALISATION ™) AND DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO
HE" B E RIRSELER
HKS'billion HKS %
tEEx BT B
12.00 030

11.23
11.00 025

10.00 0.20

9.00 0.15
8.00 0.10

7.00 0.05

0 28
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

™ Market capitalization are calculated Bl M Dividend per share @ Dividend payout ratio
based on the closing share price of the Company =143 TRE L=
as at 31 December of the respective years.

TERREXEREEF12A31 HNARRRTHRETH -
@ Not included 2019 Special interim dividend (HK$0.72 per share).
TRE2019FHHFHRE (BR0.72787T) -
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Investor Relations Report

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is a platform for face-to-face communication with Shareholders. Our Board members, senior management,

lawyer and external auditor will attend and answer questions on the performance of the Group raised by the Shareholders.

The 2021 AGM was held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on 28 May 2021, for

approval of, among others, the re-election of retiring Directors and the general mandates to issue and purchase shares.

Particulars of the major items considered at the 2021 AGM were set out in the circular dated 22 April 2021. All proposed
resolutions were passed by way of poll voting at the 2021 AGM.

The 2022 AGM will be held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on Friday, 10 June
2022 at 10:30 a.m..
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Yong Ling, aged 58, is an executive director and the chairman of the Board of the Company. She is mainly
responsible for leading the Board to determine the development strategic direction of the Group and the high-level
oversight of the management. Ms. Ding was appointed as a managing director (now namely as chief executive officer) of
the Company in September 2004 and the chairman of the Board of the Company on 11 March 2019. Ms. Ding resigned as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 18 April 2019. Ms. Ding joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 1984 and
was formerly the head of the foreign trade division of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, manager of the import and export branches
and the executive director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the director of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang International Co., Ltd., and also is currently the director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings. Ms. Ding graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in August
1997 with a bachelor’s degree in major of economic management, and she further completed an on-the-job postgraduate
course in international business administration at the Business School of the University of International Business and
Economics in April 2002.

Chen Fei, aged 51, is an executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for
our day-to-day operation and management. Mr. Chen was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 24
March 2020 and was re-designated as an executive director and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 11 March 2021. Mr. Chen joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in August 1994 and formerly served as the
deputy manager and manager of Operational Management Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy manager
of Pricing Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy manager of Economic Operation Department of Tong Ren
Tang Holdings and the general manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from School of Chinese Medicine of Beijing Union University in August 1994.

Lin Man, aged 46, is an executive director and chief operating officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for the
sales and business management of the Company. Ms. Lin joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company in 2005, the chief financial officer of the Company in 2008, and a Director on 1 February 2011.
Ms. Lin was appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company on 21 May 2020 and ceased to be the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company on the same day. Ms. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts in Polish from Beijing Foreign Studies University
in July 1999 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of Lancaster in July 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, G.B.M., G.B.S., J.P., aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 September 2017. Mr. Tsang is Honorary Professor of the Faculty of Social Science of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and the Convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme. Mr. Tsang currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (Stock code: 135) and DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 620) which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsang held a number of posts in
public service, including the President of the Fourth and the Fifth Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 2008 to 2016.
Prior to his election as President of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR, Mr. Tsang served as a member of the Legislative
Council from 1998 to 2016, representing the Kowloon West constituency from 1998 to 2008 and the Hong Kong Island
constituency from 2008 to 2016. He served as a member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR from 2002 to 2008. From
1992 to 2003, he served as chairman of the Democratic Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang was actively
involved in the establishment of the HKSAR. He served as a member of the Preparatory Committee established by the
Standing Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress in 1996 and a member of the Provisional Legislative
Council of the HKSAR from 1997 to 1998. Mr. Tsang was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013, a non-executive director of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission from 2001 to 2007, a member of the Executive Committee of the Commission on Strategic Development from
2005 to 2008, a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008, a member of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee from 2003 to 2008 and a member of the Disaster Relief Fund
Advisory Committee from 2002 to 2008. Mr. Tsang also served as a member of the Council of The Open University of Hong
Kong from 1996 to 2005 and a member of the Standing Committee on Language Education and Research from 1996 to
2000. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree at The University of Hong Kong in 1968, Certificate in Education at
The University of Hong Kong in 1981 and a Master of Education degree at The University of Hong Kong in 1983. Mr. Tsang
was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (J.P.) in 1998 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.) in 2002 and the
Grand Bauhinia Medal (G.B.M.) in 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

Zhao Zhong Zhen, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013.
Mr. Zhao is currently a professor of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr. Zhao has been
an associate professor of Hong Kong Baptist University since April 1999. Mr. Zhao is currently a member of the Chinese
Pharmacopoeia Commission. From 1985 to 1987, Mr. Zhao was a research assistant of Institute of Chinese Material
Medical China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. From 1987 to 1988 and 1991 to 1992, Mr. Zhao was a visiting
scholar of Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Science. Mr. Zhao was a research director of a laboratory for Chinese
medicines in Japan during the period from October 1992 to April 1999. From July 2009 to January 2010, Mr. Zhao was a
visiting scholar of Osher Research Centre of Harvard Medical School and was a member of Chinese Medicine
Development Committee from February 2013 to January 2019. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree, both in Chinese medicine, from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in March 1982, and from China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences in December 1985, respectively. Mr. Zhao obtained his doctorate degree in pharmacy in Tokyo
University of Pharmacy and Life Science in March 1992.

Chan Ngai Chi, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had more than 20 years of financial management, compliance and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and various Hong Kong and U.S. listed
companies. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1994 and,
also obtained a master’s degree in Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003 and an EMBA degree from
Peking University in 2021.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wu Wei, aged 51, is the deputy general manager of the Company and is responsible for the production. Ms. Wu joined
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 2002, transferred to the Company from Tong Ren Tang Research Institute in 2014, and
was mainly responsible for product, technology development and project management. Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Biochemical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1992 and a master degree’s in Medicine from
Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in 2007.

Shen Zheng Guo, aged 48, is the deputy general manager and general counsel of the Company. Mr. Shen joined the
Company in February 2022 and is responsible for branding, legal, compliance and internal audit affairs. Mr. Shen has over
26 years of experience in financial management and legal affairs. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Shen worked as the
deputy manager of finance department of China Railway Signal & Communication (Group) Corporation Limited and China
Railway Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (Stock code: HK3969), the manager of finance department of China
Railway Signal & Communication Shanghai Engineering Company, the Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel of
CRSC International Holdings Company Limited, and the Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel of CRSC (Beijing) Rail
Industry Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Shen is qualified as a senior accountant, a Certified Public Accountant, a Certified Tax Agent,
a Corporate Counsel and a Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Shen graduated from Beijing Jiaotong
University in 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in Economics and obtained a Master’s degree in Accounting at Fudan
University in 2007. He was awarded the National Accounting Leading Talent Certificate issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in 2018.

Tsang Fung Yi, aged 46, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Tsang joined the
Company as a deputy chief financial officer in October 2012. Ms. Tsang was appointed as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of the Company on 21 May 2020. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Tsang worked as a senior audit
manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1998 and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages
160 to 161 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.28 (2020: HK$0.24) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such final dividend will be proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on Friday, 10 June 2022
and if approved, will be payable on or before Thursday, 30 June 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 20 June 2022.

Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the dividend policy of the Company are also set out in the below section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(i) from Monday, 6 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 June
2022; and

(ii) from Thursday, 16 June 2022 to Monday, 20 June 2022 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (i) above
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15 June 2022.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no transfers of shares will be registered.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$2.3 million), details of which are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in notes 32 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 166 to 167 of the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to HK$2,477.8 million (2020:
HK$2,090.7 million).

DONATIONS

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$0.1 million
(2020: HK$2.0 million).

NINE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last nine financial years is set out on pages
16 to 17 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue received/receivable from the top five customers in aggregate and the
single largest customer accounted for approximately 48.2% (2020: 59.1%) and 19.6% (2020: 26.4%) of the Group’s
revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases paid/payable to the top five suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier constituted approximately 49.9% (2020: 53.2%) and 20.5% (2020: 23.7 %) of the Group’s total purchases,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, among the Group’s top five customers include a subsidiary of the ultimate holding
company, subsidiaries of the intermediate holding company and the immediate holding company. In addition, the Group’s
top five suppliers include the immediate holding company, the intermediate holding company and their associates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the top five
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group values the contributions of employees. The Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. Details are set out below under the section “Emolument Policy” and note
2(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

To maintain its core competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the Chinese
medicine products and service to its customers. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to fulfil its long term goals and carefully select (including and taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors) our suppliers to ensure that our commitment to customers
of quality and ethics. As at 31 December 2021, majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from the
date of invoices, and credit periods granted to customers, including related parties, normally range from 30 days to 180
days. Details are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)

Chen Fei (Chief Executive Officer) (re-designated as an executive director and appointed as chief executive officer on
11 March 2021)

Zhang Huan Ping (Chief Executive Officer) (retired on 11 March 2021)

Lin Man (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Director

Chen Fei (re-designated as an executive director on 11 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen
Chan Ngai Chi

In accordance with Articles 97 of the Articles of Association, two directors, namely, Mr. Chen Fei and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi
shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

With effect from 11 March 2021, Mr. Zhang Huan Ping has retired as the executive director and chief executive officer of
the Company as Mr. Zhang has reached the retirement age.

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi has served as an independent non-executive director of the Company for more than 9 years since 2013.
He satisfies the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Chan Ngai Chi has extensive knowledge
and experience in the finance sector and provide valuable independent advice to the Board. He is free from any business
or other relationship with the Company which could interfere with his exercise of independent judgment. The Board
believes that Mr. Chan is still independent and his re-election is in the best interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent. A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be found in the
Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) under “Investor Relations”.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Executive Directors, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Mr. Chen Fei and Ms. Lin Man, entered into service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years commencing from 15 April 2019, 11 March 2021 and 15 April 2019 respectively.

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, being all Independent Non-executive Directors,
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 12 September
2020, 15 April 2019 and 15 April 2019, respectively, unless terminated by either party giving at least two months’ notice in
writing.

None of the Directors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 96 to 99 of the annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee. The remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference
to the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance. Details of the fee and emolument of the Directors are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

5

REARBEARSAMILEZESWT ¢

HiTES
TH% (ZE)
MR (EEHITE) (R202163 8 11 AHEAHTESREEESERHTE)

RIGF (HEHTE)(R2021 43811 HEE)
ME (HEEEE)

JEHGTES

BRI (R2021E3 B 11 HFEEAHITESE)
BAUIEMITES

R

R
R 3% Bt

BEAQRRACEREI7HR MUEBSHRREERRRBEESREERRBFAERER
f MREFEER  UREREERRBFAS EBRETES -

RETAEEAREERAKFER  B2021F38 11 BEREARQRANTEERERHATE °

REFEEEB01IB3FRECEEARRABUFPTESBBIF - RHS LHRAIB 313K
P&z B RS REEEVUBAREFLENARER  TOESTRUFAEBEIR
RoMEXRDNAYBEMAEBREMAEM THEIETEB LA - ES2H87E - REED
Ayt MEERNAARBARRR2EBERE -

AAGEESUBYFIATEZRELTRAUESAISKRRERIEBILE - XATARBFA
EBUFPTESYHARABIAT AEBTEFARZESZEELZE MUK LI
(cm.tongrentang.com) i [ R EEBER ] & -

== =2
EFIRB =

HITEST AR BERAEALEEMELZLIZEEAQRTATIREEN 231 EH2019%4
B15H 20213811 BR2019F 4815 BHIF -

BUFHNTESEHEAEE HIREEREBHAESEEAQATTIEFE 2518
20209 A 12H *2019F 4 A15 AR 2019F 4 A 15 BB H3F  HEEM—FBEED
MEA NWEMEBE MK L BIBRS o

BB T TR LR E R HAE B8 CEEREBR ) WEABBEL -
ESFERSREEAEEE

EERAEEERERACBEESRHENAFREICEIH -

HEF e

FEEREZHFHNIESETEHRUARBEEBARE EERERREE - ES2HFMHK
SREBERE  THERL SUESNBENEARRRET - BRI RWEFBIANE
B BHRMEE

ERECEAEERATA | B —FFR


https://cm.tongrentang.com/
https://cm.tongrentang.com/

Directors’ Report

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates various retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interest and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) of Directors
and chief executives of the Company which would have to be notified to the Company pursuant to of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the
Exchange, to be notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares

Types of interests

EEny
The Company Z& 2 7]
Ding Yong Ling T k¥ Personal f& A
Chen Fei FR 7R Personal {8 A
Lin Man # & Personal 1@ A

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

To ensure that the business classification between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders are properly
documented and established, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 18 April 2013, details of which are set out in the Prospectus, mainly to the
effect that at any time until their collective beneficial interest in the equity interest in the Company is less than 30%, each of
them shall not, and shall procure their respective subsidiaries (except through its interests in the Group) not to, without
prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly:

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sales of any products containing ganoderma lucidum or
ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials in the Non-PRC Markets;
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(ii) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sale of any products with “Tong Ren Tang” brands in
Non-PRC Markets, except for the manufacture of the Chinese medicine products for the two independent third
parties in Japan; for the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the Deed of Non-competition,
except for the current excluded business in Japan, engage in arrangement with any other parties in the Non-PRC
Markets similar to the excluded business in Japan;

(i)  carry out any sales or registration (new or renewal) for Angong Niuhuang Wan in the Non-PRC Markets;

(iv)  engage in the distribution of any Chinese medicine products in Non-PRC Markets, except for certain existing
arrangements as disclosed in the Prospectus; and

(v) carry out any new overseas registration of “Tong Ren Tang” branded products ((i) to (v) are collectively known as
“Restricted Business”).

In addition, under the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has also undertaken that if each of
them and/or any of its associates is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity (the “New
Business Opportunity”) that relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, it shall (i) promptly and in any
event not later than seven (7) days notify the Company in writing of such opportunity and provide such information as is
reasonably required by the Company in order to enable the Company to come to an informed assessment of such
opportunity; and (i) use its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered to the Company on terms no less
favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered to it and/or its associates.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) will review the New Business Opportunity and decide
whether to invest in the New Business Opportunity within thirty (30) business days of receipt of notice from Controlling
Shareholders.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings has also granted the Company rights of first refusal to acquire its interest in Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Hong Kong Medicine Management Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (UK) Limited and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tai Fong
Co., Ltd. on terms which are not less favorable than the terms it wishes to sell to other parties.

In this connection, the Group adopted the following corporate governance measures to manage any potential conflicts of
interest arising from any future potential competing business and to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company:

(i) the Independent Non-executive Directors shall review, at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders; and

(ii) the Company will disclose the review by the Independent Non-executive Directors with basis on the compliance with
and enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition in its annual report.

In monitoring the competing business of the Parent Group, an executive committee (the “Competition Executive
Committee”) comprising two disinterested Directors, namely Mr. Chen Fei and Ms. Lin Man, has been established with the
following major responsibilities:

(@) conduct quarterly inspection of the distribution channels of the Parent Group, including retail stores and wholesale
customers, to check whether any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials (other than GLSPC) is sold in Non-PRC Markets; and

(b)  conduct quarterly communications with representatives of the Parent Group to confirm whether their research and
development portfolio has any products which contain ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials.

A supervisory committee (the “Competition Supervisory Committee”), comprising three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, has been
established, with the following major responsibilities:

(@) meet quarterly and review the quarterly inspection record and daily communication records by the Competition
Executive Committee (if applicable); and

(b) report findings during its review of the records provided by the Competition Executive Committee to the Board which
will be published in the Company’s annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Competition Executive Committee, they are not aware of the distribution channels of the

Parent Group selling any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials (other
than GLSPC) in Non-PRC Markets for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE

R2021F12A31 B ERAARDEEERGTIEEREZIFZRIEKRLAEXVHENS
ARATARBEIAREBLRAQRTAFIREESRAERGIEICHREFTECHHUEZRAEAR
AEMEZNAL (EERAQRAETETHRAERMNWT :

At 31 December 2021, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company were as follows:

Long Position in Shares BRiRIFE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares BB BITRAMN

BRRERE =27 BReEE BRABED

Tong Ren Tang Technologies B 1= E & Beneficial owner B A A 318,540,000 38.05%

Tong Ren Tang Ltd.  E{=E &5 © Beneficial owner E= A A 281,460,000 33.62%

Interest of a controlled corporation 3 1% %I 7] Ay 318,540,000 38.05%

Tong Ren Tang Holdings @B Z & B AR @ Interest of a controlled corporation 3 15 %l B KR 600,000,000 71.67%
Notes: P &E -

1) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly holds 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

) Tong Ren Tang Holdings directly holds 52.45% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. which in turn directly holds 46.85%
of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly holds 1.65% domestic shares and
H shares in total of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang Holdings is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000
shares of the Company and 281,460,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.,
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, certain of these transactions also constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of connected transactions/continuing connected transactions with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules (applicable to the Company prior to the
Transfer of Listing and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (applicable to the Company immediately after the Transfer of
Listing). Details of the non-exempted continuing connected transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 are as follows:

(1) PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 2 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren
Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its associates, other than Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and its subsidiaries) acts as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Owned
Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 2 December 2019) from the Group and then
distribute the same to retailers or end users in the PRC for a period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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(2)

(3)

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 are
HK$273,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$296,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC) and HK$322,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As the market demand for the Owned Products in the PRC exceeded the original projection, the aggregate amount
of the Owned Products procured by the Tong Ren Tang Group from the Group under the PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 was expected to exceed the original annual cap. With
the continuous business development of the Group and market demand for the Owned Products in the PRC, the
Board decided to revise the corresponding annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement. Except
for the annual caps, all other terms of the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement remain unchanged.

The revised annual caps in respect of the transactions under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and year ending 31 December 2022 are HK$363,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC), HK$430,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$470,000,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and the annual caps are more than HK$10,000,000, the PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements as well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing
Rules. Details of the revision of the annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The revision of annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the EGM held on 17 December 2020.

PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang
Technologies

On 13 May 2020, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Technologies entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
(collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries (either directly owned or indirectly owned),
other than the Group) acts as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Relevant Products (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2020) from the Group and then sell the same to
distributors, retailers or end users in the PRC or for the purpose of production for a period from 13 May 2020 to 31
December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the TRT
Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the year ending
2022 are HK$50,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$57,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in
the PRC) and HK$65,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework
Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the TRT Tech PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2020.

New Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren
Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Lid.

On 6 November 2020, the Company entered into new exclusive distributorship framework agreements (the “New
Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements”) with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. whereby TRT International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was appointed by each
of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies, its subsidiaries and its
associates (other than the Group)) and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its
subsidiaries and its associates (other than Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and the Group)) as the sole
distributor of Tong Ren Tang branded products in Non-PRC markets for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023. TRT International Natural-Pharm would purchase Tong Ren Tang branded products from Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group and distribute them to the Non-PRC Markets. Tong Ren
Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both the controlling shareholders of the Company and hence are
connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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The annual caps for the transactions under the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 are HK$53,700,000 (exclusive of value-
added tax in the PRC), HK$61,800,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$71,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang Technologies, as well as HK$86,200,000 (exclusive of value-added
tax in the PRC), HK$99,100,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$114,000,000 (exclusive of value-
added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang Ltd., respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps are more than HK$10,000,000, the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements as
well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. Details of the New Exclusive Distribution
Framework Agreements are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company in the EGM held on 17 December 2020.

Ercclxurement of Angong Nivhuang Wan Powder from Tong Ren Tang
td.

The Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into a renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase
agreement on 6 December 2018 (the “Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) whereby the
Company would purchase Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder, being the raw materials for production of Angong
Niuhuang Wan, from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Angong Niuhuang
Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are
HK$31,000,000, HK$42,000,000 and HK$55,000,000, respectively.

As the Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement expired on 31 December 2021, the Company
entered into a new Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase agreement on 28 December 2021 with Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. (the “New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) to renew the procurement
arrangement for a further term of three years from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. The annual caps for the
transactions under the New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are HK$54,000,000, HK$60,000,000 and HK$64,000,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
Master Purchase Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of the New Angong
Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2021.

Master Lease Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 30 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a renewed master lease framework
agreement (the “Renewed Master Lease Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has
agreed to lease and procure other members of the Parent Group to lease certain premises to the Group for its
productions and operations so that any member of the Group may continue, amend or renew the existing leases
with any member of the Parent Group from time to time and as necessary for the future business needs of the Group
for a period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed
Master Lease Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the year ending 31
December 2022 are HK$21,000,000, HK$16,000,000 and HK$11,200,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio and equity capital ratio) of the annual
caps exceed 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2019.
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(6) ﬁgvertising Agency Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Century (6) HREM{_EH PRSI IESKEBIERGS
vertising

On 28 April 2020, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising”) entered into the advertising agency framework agreement (the “Advertising Agency Framework
Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
act as a non-exclusive advertising agent of the Group, to provide the Advertising Agency Services (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2020) to the Group in the PRC for a period from 1 May 2020 to 31
December 2022.

A2020F4 8280 AR FELRE - EHLEEERATD((R-EHLES )T
VEEREEEGZ (BESREELHZ]  ACERRZENBEARRCEHLE
HEMR2020F5 A1 HE2022F 12 A31 BEAXERABRESNAED  RPERBAK
EERHEESRERE (RADQT2020F 4828 2D EFESE) ©

BECEREDIAATNERER  WARBELTRAIBEALATMNEEAL - HE2020
F 2021 FR2022F12A31BLEFE - BEREBERBEMIREGNFELRS
Bl %£6,200,0008 T(FEHEELEF) 7,600,000 T(FTEFHAEER) &
8,900,000 T (R EHEEER)

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is the controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Advertising Agency Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the year ending 31
December 2022 are HK$6,200,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$7,600,000 (exclusive of value-
added tax in the PRC) and HK$8,900,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but ARFELRN-ERZHREAT IR CEFELRRIN BB 01%BENREY
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Advertising Agency Framework HESREBERGERAPIRZHEAEFLETRANPE  2ERFEEZ  BF
Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the FEBIYRRME -

independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

PlSEBEERSHRE-SRMRMT

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further summarised as follows:

Transaction amount Annual cap
for the year ended for the year ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021

BZ2021F BZ2021 4
12831 HLE 12831 HL
FEXSE FEZEELER
Name of connected party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
BB 18 REME FHET FHExT
(1)  Tong Ren Tang Group Sales of the Owned Products 92,118 430,000
EI—Z&E HEBREm
(2)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group Sales of the Relevant Products 703 57,000
E-EREER HEMRBEER
(8)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group Purchase of Tong Ren Tang branded products 26,319 53,700
BE{EREEE BERCEREER
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group 14,299 86,200
BECEROER
(4)  Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group Purchase of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder 19,004 55,000
BE{—ERGEE BERE4EAY
(5)  Parent Group Lease of premises 985 16,000
BEE YEHRE
(6) Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising Provision of the Advertising Agency Services 2,652 7,600

BE-EHLEES

REHESRERY

The price and the terms of the above transactions have been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the relevant announcements.

PlRRZRZNERRGRCRERBEISMBEERREESIEE -

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors: BUYFHITESER

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

BYFITESCEN LABERERS  URARERERERZDALEE :

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (1) REEEAER-—BREBBREFRITL
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and (2 B-BEERRIFEGRAKTL K
(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the (8) RBRERAFEEAMFEAATDNRREENZNERABRET

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group on pages 110 to 117 of
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Exchange.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. There is no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report. Other than as disclosed above, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined
in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and believes business development and environment affairs
are highly related. This year, the Group implemented certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce
the consumption of resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented effectively. The Board of
the Company has also reviewed the 2021 ESG Report. For more comprehensive information, please refer to the ESG
Report on pages 36 to 89 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is subject to various laws and regulations including
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter
112) and Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to
ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the Group. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have significant event occurred after this year need to disclose.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance which it believes is
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company. Information on
the Company’s corporate governance principles and practices is set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages
122 to 151 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. The Company has not changed its auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Ding Yong Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2022
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L

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FRAMEWORK
RRERRE

SHAREHOLDERS
B

BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

E=EERER

LU
COMMITTEE

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

EEEEE

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

COMPETITION
SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

COMPETITION
EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

WENGCTREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EF&

responsible for the communication with
external auditors and review of the
Group’s financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control
procedures and risk management system
BEEIEREA BN EAAEE
BIEER - MM ERLS - AEPEER
BFREABERE

responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors
EEERNESSHE - ABRAR -
FHMEB M FHITEENE L ERREE
REGESNESSREEBES

responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure
of the remuneration of all the Directors
and senior management for approval

by the Board
BERADNRAESZRSREEAESN
ERFHBEREBOESSIRLE
BHEEEIHE

responsible for review of findings by the
competition executive committee on
competing business of the Parent Group
AEERRFNTEESRRESEE
REXEBHRE

responsible for monitoring of the
competing business of the Parent Group
SEERESEERTEEY

responsible for overseeing the
day-to-day management and
operation with Board’s delegated
authority, and implementation of
the Group’s strategy and policy
REESSHTNENES
EEREEEREE  Bit
AR B R BUR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group firmly believes that strict
corporate governance can enhance the Group’s credibility and
transparency, thus strengthening the confidence of the shareholders
and investors in the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had complied with
all applicable provisions of the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED
STANDARD OF DEALINGS IN
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Exchange. Having made specific enquiries to
all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the Period.

Directors

2

Executive Directors
HITES Chen Fei
Lin Man

Independent Non-executive Directors Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
BYFHTES Zhao Zhong Zhen
Chan Ngai Chi

Audit Committee
BEZEY

Chan Ngai Chi®
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen

REEEE

Competition Supervisory Committee
RRERESE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper” BEE O

Zhao Zhong Zhen i H R
Chan Ngai Chi TR 2% 5t

™ Being the chairman of the respective committee
RZEEEXRE

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)

Nomination Committee

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper® & &EgK ()
Chan Ngai Chi FR 3R Bt
Zhao Zhong Zhen R

AN iz £ 3 i

EEERER
ESE2RESRALAERBHNERRIW
SREARRERSF  AEEBE BRNLE
EABARNBRAEENEERENE iR
ABRERZEEHSEEHED o

HZ2021F12B31HILFE  AEE-—HBHEF
CEERTRNMEERKI

BF EHBITAZERET
AR ZHIEETE

AABCHRMEETRAME 10 BB ESEST
BEXZNEETE - KBETEANR 2RES
BRARABACET TREETRARIENTER
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TK¥E (XF)
R R
f28=d

Remuneration Committee

FHEEE

Zhao Zhong Zhen®
Chan Ngai Chi
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Competition Executive Committee
RENTEES

Chen Fei

Lin Man
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DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 6 Directors, comprising 3 Executive Directors and 3 Independent

Non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of the Board and the Directors’ biographical information are set out on
pages 96 to 99 of the annual report, respectively. At least one-third of the Board is Independent Non-executive Directors of
which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board are reviewed from time to time to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of the chairman, the Executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications by the Company.
The Company maintains on the Company’s website and on the website of the Exchange, (i) an updated list of its Directors
identifying their respective roles and functions together with their biographical information and whether they are
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (ii) the terms of reference of the Board committees to enable the shareholders
to understand the roles played by those Independent Non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board
committees.

Board and Committee Meetings

Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors
adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings. At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
regular meeting. Board meeting documents including supporting analysis and related background information are normally
sent to the Directors at least 3 days before regular Board meetings.

The Board meets regularly and held 7 meetings during the Year. In consultation with members of the Board, the company
secretary of the Company assists the chairman of the board in preparing the meeting agenda, where applicable, matters
proposed by other Directors are included in the agenda. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
arranged for 1 individual meeting between chairman of the Board and non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors). The senior management members are also invited to join Board meetings if necessary, to enhance the
Board and management communication.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the Directors’
attendance records in 2021 are as follows:

Members of the Board

EEEHRE

Executive Directors #{TEZ=

Ding Yong Ling T k¥

Zhang Huan Ping 5RJ&F (retired on 11 March 2021 j# 202143 A 11 AE{T)
Chen Fei R (re-designated on 11 March 2021 J# 202143 5 11 B 581F)
Lin Man 2

Independent Non-executive Directors B I {TEE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &k,

Zhao Zhong Zhen ##8/F#k

Chan Ngai Chi [k &t

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board committee meetings. These meetings minutes/resolutions:

. contain sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board committees and decisions reached;
o are sent to the Directors for their comments;
. are sent to all Directors/Board committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after such

meeting; and

o are available for inspection by Directors/Board committee members.
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Important matters are dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than written resolutions only. If a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter. Directors must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution, if
applicable.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2021, no claim was made against
the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, leads the Board in terms of formulating policies. The chairman of the Board
determines the board strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level
oversight of the management. With the support of the executive directors and the Company Secretary, the chairman of the
Board ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner. The chairman of the
Board promotes a culture of openness and encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully
engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions, and she may meet and/or communicate with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of the Executive Directors. During the Year, an individual meeting
between Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, and Independent Non-executive Directors was held without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

While our chief executive officer, Mr. Chen Fei (who was appointed on 11 March 2021 as the chief executive officer), is
responsible for business strategic planning and day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The Board believes
this segregation of duties helps to supervise and balance the power and authority of the Board and enhances the
independence and accountability of the Board.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The procedures for appointing and re-electing Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The appointment of a
new Director must be approved by the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account factors such as appropriate
professional knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender, age, cultural and
educational background.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those Directors
who have been Directors longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Articles of Association, two Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Fei and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi
shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has entered into service agreements with each Executive Director and also appointment letters with
Independent Non-executive Directors. The tenure of all Directors is 3 years.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible for
formulating the overall strategies as well as monitoring and evaluating the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or reappointment, approval of
major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial matters. All the Directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and pursue excellence in the interests of the
shareholders at all times.

Our Executive Directors, together with our Independent Non-executive Directors offer diverse industry expertise, serve the
important function of advising the management on strategies and ensuring that the Board fulfils high standards of financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Independent Non-executive Directors not only exercise their independent judgment and advise on the future business

direction and strategic plans of the Company, but also review the financial information and operational performance of the
Company on a regular basis.
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Every executive director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and operation in which he/she is charged
with. Appropriate attention to the affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of such
attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her area of knowledge and expertise, and his/
her global perspective. There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and from time to time thereafter the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments, identifying the public
companies or organizations involved.

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive information on appointment, so as to ensure understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company also updates the Directors on the latest developments and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable
legal and regulatory requirements in the discharge of their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors actively participated in continuous professional development,
by attending external training or seminars, attending in-house training and/or reading materials on the various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
which ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company.
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Types of Continuous Professional Development

Directors R E AR EEN EFAER EHEERAT HEATEE
2= BRI E RENZHER DHEKEBENER RREEH

Ding Yong Ling T k¥

Zhang Huan Ping 38/ (retired on 11 March 2021 #2021 43 A 11 AE{T)
Chen Fei (& 7 (re-designated on 11 March 2021 #2021 43 B 11 B F91E)

Lin Man # 2

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper Z &k

Zhao Zhong Zhen /1 ik

Chan Ngai Chi B3Rt

Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive directors representing more than one-third of the Board and they
possess professional qualification and experience in the three areas of financial accounting, social science and Chinese
medicine industry, respectively. All Independent Non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors makes an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that
all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Supply of and Access to Information

Board/Board committee meeting documents with adequate and reliable information are circulated not less than three days
before the regular Board/Board committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board committee members in making
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board committee meetings.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management of the Company, with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the bridge between the Directors and business units of the Group to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is provided, as
appropriate.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should such advice be considered necessary by any Director or any Board committee.

Delegation to Management

Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their respective areas
of expertise.

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to the Board for approval. For matters or
transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations appropriate
disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will be obtained in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations. Specially, the Board has had in place Guidelines
for Investments stating the authority approval limits and procedures.

The Board led by the chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future development directions; overall strategies and
policies; evaluation of the performance of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of a material or
substantial nature. Under the leadership of the chief executive officer, management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee, and is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties according to the Code Provision D.3.1, which includes:

—

(

) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors
and employees; and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee on 28 March 2013
with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Exchange. Board
committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee has 3 members (all of them are the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) comprising Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr.
Zhao Zhong Zhen.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independence and objectivity of the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial
position, the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management system of the Company and
making recommendations thereof.

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit Committee within a reasonable time
after each meeting. Audit Committee meetings were held in March, August and November of 2021.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2021:
(1) Reviewed the financial reports for 2020 annual results and 2021 interim results;

2 Reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit department on the work of various departments
and related companies;

3) Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;
4) Reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings;
(5)  Reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(6) Reviewed the control mechanisms for the risks of different business units and advising on action plans for
improvement of the situations;

(7) Performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices; and
8) Reviewed the connected transactions with the Parent Group.

On 28 February 2022, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2021 consolidated financial statements, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor. After
review and discussions with the management, internal auditor and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual Report 2021 complied with the applicable accounting standards
and the Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for 2022 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2022 annual general meeting.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years
after he/she ceased to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 to
Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has 3 members comprising Mr. Zhao Zhong
Zhen (Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Independent Non-executive
Director) and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Independent Non-executive Director). Ms. Ding Yong Ling resigned as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 9 March 2022.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board and review the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof in accordance with the Group’s corporate goals and
objectives; and to review and evaluate the performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any
discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee did consult the chairman of the Board and/or the Executive Director about proposals relating
to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
including but not limited to, succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for recruiting and retaining
qualified personnel. The human resources department provides administrative support and implements the approved
remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experiences, responsibilities with the
Group and general market conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee had held 1
meeting to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision A.5.1 and Code Provision A.5.2 as set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee has 3 members
comprising Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Independent Non-executive Director). Ms. Ding Yong Ling
resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee on 9 March 2022. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Nomination Committee had held 1 meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, and also recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election
at the upcoming annual general meeting.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection and/or
re-appointment of individuals nominated for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Director. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
would seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or document
of the nominee or candidate would be given to the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board and the
Nomination Committee reviews such policy periodically. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF ERRBREEE£E
DIRECTORS

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be considered: EFERBBBEAETESN  REAZE8R RESEEEETHEL

. Character and integrity. o Mm% B S o

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the . B BESEEE RD  AERRERAAEERRBEEBENLER  URESEMR
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy. EZTEBERRANZ TILEE -

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board. . AREYEETEHESNLMEMNNEMAFEEE -

. Requirement for the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered . BRELTRBNRE  UARSELTHRAARNIIBREARETHREABINIES -

independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, . BREANEEER HIT KR -BUM MRS FETAEEEET RN
independence, gender and cultural diversity. EMBEER °

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board . REHERREEARNRAREB T R ESENERETEZEBTZEENE
committee(s) of the Company. ENEE -

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan and where applicable, . HthBARAARAEEREETTENEMZTERE  BERZEER HEEETHE
may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination BEEERBITEHEEE -

of directors and succession planning.

NOMINATION PROCEDURE OF DIRECTORS
ESRBER

Nomination Committee and/or the Board d&
REZEER HEES - ) q A Nomination Committee 2 5 ZE &
Appointment of New Director ZF$E = - - e Should recommend to the Board to
e May select candidates for directorship from c ' 9 appoint the appropriate candidate for
various channels, including but not limited to directorship, as applicable.
internal promotion, re-designation, referral by . D) RETABAREFES—SHESS
other member of the management and ol B (EE) o
external recruitment agents.
THEERCREES AR AEETHERAR I~
HEA FBIE HEEBHMEREMIDRE & -
RIBAKER - o °

A
\

AN

: Z

The Board E£¢&

e Should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

B EERFEZREA  DRERGRBARTAERERES -

Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.
ERIEZEHESNEBIRREANBAER (HHEBEFE) 2R K
BERERFEZREN  UREZBRBARTEERELES -

NN Y

e Should make recommendation to shareholders of the Company
in respect of the proposed election of Director at the general
meeting, as applicable.

FERBRRAELHREAESHREAFSATRREBLER (WEA) -

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).
MBRSR—EHAZEBEENREA  BREAQXANFTEREN
REANZEREE (MER) HIIEMNELRF -

Shareholders & R

e Proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as Director at the
general meeting.
EARMBRRAEFBBEZEIRERR
BEE o

Re-election of Director ERE %=

e Should review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring director and the level
of participation and performance on the Board.
ERNREESHALNANBREMRERYE  URKE
EEENSHEERKRR -
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BOARD DIVERSITY By Gender

ZHRIE D
Selection and appointment of new directors will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board
process and such qualities and attributes that may be
required by the Board. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

p

4

@ Male 2% @ Female it

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial information on a regular
basis and the management provide all members of the Board with monthly updates of the Company’s performance.

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s sustainability strategy
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders to be our goal of the Company. The Board considered that it would be
prudent and appropriate to target a dividend payout ratio not less than 30%. In deciding whether to propose a dividend,
determining the dividend amount as well as to provide relatively steady dividend payout ratio, the Board takes into account
the Group’s earnings performance, financial results, cash flow position, investment requirements, business conditions and
strategies, future operations and earnings, future operations and earnings, and any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 152 to 159 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 106 to 107 of this
annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Fung Yi is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company, as well as a full-time employee
of the Group, discharges the functions of company secretary of the Company with her professional skill and extensive
experience. To update her skills and knowledge, Ms. Tsang complied with the relevant professional training requirements
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021. The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary is subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company Secretary
reports to the Board and also to the Chief Executive Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company Secretary
is responsible for supporting and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the services
rendered for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as follows:

Serviced rendered to the Company %722 7] Fri2 (IR 3%

~NEHWE
BREZTAXLARANBRAERAARE  TALEELHES TAGESEERRYEEL
BUBITALATLATINERK - 8F2021F12A31ALFE  EZ+t 2B F EHRAIES.29
HOMEBESEEIER  UEHFERERAE - REZEEHEBEAE  AARENTEALE
ES2HE ARARENESSER TOEFITEERAERERET - 2FREESH
ERABEHONESERUIBEER FEEFTUVESLARNEZERIRYE  UBRES
ERFRMEEARNNBHESES -

% A Bl 57 B

BE2021F 12831 BLFEEN BAARANIERHARIAKESHTMEHME
HRBOMEHIMT

Amount £ %8
HK$’000 T8 Tt

Audit services #Z EiR#%
Non-audit services FE#% E AR
Total #5t

Fee paid/payable to other auditors were approximately HK$1,309,000.

Non-audit services mainly include tax consultancy services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Group has set up a risk management regulation and internal control procedure to establish a clear structure and
procedures for risk management with a systematic and rigorous approach. The Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are aligned with the internal control framework of international body consisting of the five elements,
namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The
Group’s risk governance structure is based on the “3 lines of defense” model comprised of day-to-day operational
management and control, risk and compliance management, and independent supervision assurance.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness. The management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a robust risk management and internal
control systems to protect the Group’s assets and interests of stakeholders. The Board annually reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, and staff training programs together with its relevant budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting, and also the satisfaction with the adequacy of the parties concerned.
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Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile within the acceptable tolerance levels for significant risks,
overseeing the Group’s risk management framework, reviewing the Group’s significant existing and potential risks and their
response and ensuring risk management effectiveness. The Company has set up a risk management committee. The risk
management committee discusses and collects risk monitoring report through meeting to review the management of these
risks and effectiveness of response, and to constantly monitor the changes in risks.

Risk assessment is the identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks which identifies, filters and prioritizes the
significant risks faced by the Group by the likelihood and degree of impact of the risks to identify risks. The Group has
adopted a top-down approach to review and assess if risks are comprehensively identified and prioritised, and properly
addressed by the management to accomplish the Group’s objectives.

This Year, the significant risks were identified by the Group, which included strategic risk, market risk, operation risk, and
legal risk. Certain response measures for significant risks were established, and the relevant functional departments and
operation units performed daily monitoring on the identified risks pursuant to the established risk management workflow
and response measures, and then submitted a “Risk Control Report”, which summarised the overall status of the risks and
risk management activities, to the risk management committee. The risk management committee prepared “Risk
Management Report” in accordance with the monitoring status of the significant risks and the internal audit department
reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management programme is a structured mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating,
responding, controlling, monitoring and reporting of the risks that the Group faces. The significant process of the Group’s
risk management is illustrated below:

W FEREEEXRRNERS

ETEEEEEAREEARRUAZRENABER  ERAEENEARERER  FH
FEENRARETERRBUAREBEELEER  YRRAMEENERNE - XAEBSRIL
REBREE A BRERTRNRERREERESEA  FHERNERUREHERN
B TEERABAOEE -

AEBRBERRBENTEERSERENTEEEEENER - WS LmBMNUEER
FUGEBEXRER - AKRBEMNABLMTHAXTERBNEEERERAEBNEENFR
BE2EERNERE - ARBREASRIRTFUAZERE -

AEARECHMNHEARR HEFEREAR TSHEKR -  BERBEEERRAR £
EECHEERRABRWELER HEBESENEEECRBRENEABEETIFRER
EHERHCRBINERETAEERZ  AABREEMREIABREERS  HlEMREE
BRRERERES - EBRERNMBBEEARREZERERARERRE  BBALE
BEPIOEREESSER -

FEEZCEABERRFAREBIPIE - FERR - T BY  EZRERAE
EffEY AR AEELEARERZIERFIRAOT

Disfribution of the
Significant Identified Risks
SN

Risk
Identification

JE B e 1

Identify risks which affect the
Group’s goals achievement
through seminars, interviews or
questionnaires as well as the
Group’s strategic direction and
business development condition
BBWNE HAREERAEE
F3  BEAEEERET A
BERMR - HBIFEEEER
HBZENERE

Risk
Assessment

JE B P

Evaluate, sort and prioritise the
risks faced by the Group
according to the possibility and
degree of impact
RIERBR B AN TR R ERE
ErMhEEEHEE - WHE
L 5 e i DA B 38 I HE R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

Risk
Response

J i 4

Formulate the response
measure to the significant
risks assessed

R PTRT A 2 B8 KRB I T e

Hit

Risk
Monitoring

Ja o B 47

By monitoring the implementation
of risk management, examine its
effectiveness and improve in a
timely manner based on the
change of risk as well as the
deficiencies in risk management
bR SR B ERETE
LA MM ETIRE - RE

S EER M EREEFEN

R B % i 0 A BSGE

Risk
Reporting
J i

Prepare the risk management
reports in line with the risk
monitoring results
RIBRABREZENER  RERE
EIEIRRARE
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Major Risks of the Group  Description of the Risks

Control Measure(s)

TERREHEN

rEBEERE [ B
Investment Risk Investment Risks can be divided into four aspects: project decision-making, project
RERB implementation, effect evaluation, and suspension and quit. If the Group lacks of risk

awareness and risk control mechanism when making decisions on investment
projects, feasibility demonstration and lacks of scientific demonstration or formality
when due diligence, and fail to perform the correct decision-making on approval and
filing procedures, decision-making risks on investment projects may arise. If the
Group lacks in-process supervision and control procedures in the investment
process, lacks remedial measures when the decision-making environment and
specific circumstances change, and fails to perform the decision-making change
procedures on approval, it may generate investment project implementation risks. If
the Group'’s failure to analyze, summarize and evaluate the purpose, execution
process, benefits, realization of expected goals, rationality of the project and the
realization of benefit indicators of the completed investment projects, it may result in
investment effect evaluation risks. If the Group has not made a prudent investment
decision on quit, and the investment quit method is not selected properly, there may
be a risk of investment suspension and quit.

RERBAMDREEREK - BEEK - YR - PILRHAOKRSE - EAEEH
ETREEBAKFRZ ABSHMERS QS - TTERENERATRZREZ
W RRRER - REBTERNEARBRRER - BETREEREBBRER
o EAKEEREBERPREBINEENZHER  ERARRENARBREE
SRR - REBTEMAREREF BB RELEREEBEBBERERE -
EAXEEAEHETRREEANEN  FITERE & HHEENER  HAN
BEMRMBEEERSETON BERTE  BEUREERERNRTEERR -
EAEEARAEEMETRERIAE  RERHANBETE  #EURELERE

FUER R o
Macroeconomic Risk Macroeconomic Risks can be divided into three major aspects: changes in the global
LB E R economic environment, economic inflation, and the impact of public emergencies on

the macroeconomic. If there are major changes on national economy of the area
covered by the Group’s business, risks of changes in the global economic
environment may arise. Inflation risks may result in inflation, currency depreciation,
and a decline in purchasing power; unexpected social incidents and health incidents
may cause the retail environment to become quieter and cause the retail business
environment to deteriorate.

CEEBERR AT, AEREERESL  SBBR  REAASZHEREBLERE
H=ZKFH FARENXBEEEEENEREBEREERNE L TRELERHREE
RIBSEE  RERREARBTHRELIRERE SE¥ERE MBEHTE - =it
SEMANFLESEN  CIBZERENEL  BUTELERERL -
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The major measures to Decision-making Risks on Investment Project: Before making investment decisions, the
Group compiles decision-making documents such as feasibility reports and processes approval procedures in
accordance with relevant investment regulations; conducts in-depth research on project product registration,
overall arrangement of medical personnel, overseas market industrial policies, political economy, and
epidemics. Preparation in advance to reduce the risk of investment project decision-making effectively.
REFERRKREMRNEEZREER  RETRERKN > FRERBREMERE - HETITHHRESREX
HIREFPEEN  HHEEEEREM - EBTHERAT BT SERBCR « BUaKE - BEEEER
AHHE - RATER - BRONEREEBRERE

The major measures to the Implementation Risks of Investment Projects: The Group’s investment projects are
carried out in an orderly manner in accordance with relevant investment management systems; a reporting
mechanism for changes in project has been established; the system’s systemic requirements for demonstration
of projects are followed to ensure that the project is based on scientific demonstration.
REEBERRABNEIZELEER AREREBEEBRRETERBFET FHET B HIEE (W
EREST  BREIEHRIBEENRAMER  BREVENZREZL -

The major measures to the Effect Evaluation on Risk of Investment: The Group evaluates implemented projects
based on relevant measures for the management of post-evaluation of investment projects to ensure that the
risk of subsequent project investment effect evaluation is truly controllable.

REMRTERBHEZREER  ARERBREE B RTEEERBEINEH CBiE B ETTE  BRE
BIEEREY RN EBEE A o

The major measures to the Risk of Investment Suspension and Quit: The Group strictly implements the
decision-making and implementation procedures for project quit in the investment management, “San-Zhong,
Yi-Da” system, and strictly implements them in practice.

REHRIFERERBNTEREER  A5EEEHTREEE  CE-ASHEFHEERENRAERER &
HERFNER  EEEPEEHT

The major measures to the Risks of Changes in the Global Economic Environment: Under
strengthening epidemic prevention and control, the Group will resume work and production as
soon as possible, scientifically assess market risks, make prudent investments, and strengthen
internal management and control to minimize the impact of macro risks on itself.
PREBRRECEBOTIEZRERER  AEEEMBEBHENART H HE2FEHSEER  EER
& UMERANKEER  IFBCBABEBEINEERIGE -

The major measures against Economic Inflation Risks: The Group speeds up the return of funds
while increasing the procurement and reserves of expensive raw materials required for
production, reasonably controlling the cost of capital, improving the efficiency of capital use,
and alleviating the risks of inflation and rising raw material costs.

KEBRERBNIZEREER  AEENRESORFFENEEMZTEMAEMBNRBNERE &2
BEHEESHE  BAESHEARER  EHBERRREMBEA EANERR -

The major measures to the Macroeconomic Impact of Public Emergencies: The Group pays
attention to national and regional import and export regulations, actively responds to
endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and controls excessive heavy metals and
pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures that packaging
instructions meet policy requirements to reduce product import and export risks effectively.
REANHASHELELBELERBNIEREER 25ERBHERERE 828R T HEXER
B RESHMESEIREEREZZ HX FEESHIHESRTENER  LENEBER  HAR
THRIBYESAERBIX  BIREBELERRIBEENEEDZE -
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Major Risks of the Group  Description of the Risks Control Measure(s)

AEEZERBE B B e TERREHEN

Policy Risk (Impact on Policy Risks can be divided into four major aspects: Regulations on Chinese medicine
the industry as a whole) and Chinese Medicine Industry, Regulations on Food and Health Products, Access
BERRR (HEEEREN and Registration, and Product Import and Export. The Group’s TCM products, TCM,
®E) healthcare consultation, and food or health products are subject to regulatory
supervision. If the Group fails to meet the requirements of laws and regulations, it
may cause regulatory risks in the TCM industry or food and health products. If the
Group misunderstands or is unclear about the market conditions, standards and
approval procedures, or fails to meet the registration/filing requirements, it may cause
access and registration risks. The Group’s import and export activities of the products
are regulated by the laws and regulations of different jurisdictions; failure to meet the
requirements may result in product import and export risks.
BRRBEBAASBFEPBTEER  ERREMRER  EAREMRERELAM
ARGH - AEENFEER - H8  REFARERIRERIEREE  EEEKR
BERFEAEERER  BAELPHEIPBTELIAARIBRRBRERER - &
AEBBEMEASETSNEYS  BEREREFTEE - TEWMIAREFEE
i BRER  BUREEEAREMER - AKEFEERNELEBHZRER
EREERRE  MREREER  BEURELEEREL DRR -

Ev%]qaiion qn the erfectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems twice a year, covering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment of the Group, the effectiveness on the measures of
significant risks, the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems,
the duties of internal audit department and its effectiveness, and etc..

Based on the results of the above review, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board considers that the risk
management and internal monitor systems are well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Control

The Company has set up an independent internal audit department which regularly reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit department is responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management, corporate
governance processes and constantly supervising the work flow and risk assessment of each department of the Group,
and to independently assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk management programme in order to
seek continuous improvement.

Being an integral part of the risk management to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
programme and system of internal control, the internal audit department carries out assessment on the risk management
programme. When developing the annual project plan, the internal audit department identifies, prioritises and formulates
the audit works by a continuous risk assessment of the Group’s business activities with significant risks. The Audit
Committee reviews and approves the annual project plan and approve all subsequent major changes (if any) during the
regular meeting. In the individual audit project, the internal audit department will further assess the key areas of strategic,
market, financial operation and legal risks to evaluate the control effectiveness and the response measures adopted by
management.

The internal audit department reports significant risks, material changes and the associated response plans and highlights
to the Audit Committee regularly to enhance the accountability and quality of the risk management programme. The
internal audit department will communicate with management in details on all findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies identified from each audit work. Management will establish remedial plans to improve those internal
control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. The internal audit department will report significant deficiencies of
individual engagement to the Audit Committee. During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings with the internal
audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the works done and reports submitted by the internal
audit department and reported the results of review and discussion to the Board.
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The major measures to the Legal Risks of the Chinese medicine industry and the Food and Health Products:
The Group prevents risks by collecting and mastering the laws, regulations and policies of the country/region
where the project is located, improving the management system of overseas companies, strengthening the
construction of overseas product quality control systems, regular auditing and monitoring, enhancing
compliance awareness, introducing talents, and treating contract terms carefully.
FEMBTELZRABRERARBREAREBRNEIZREEE FEEBEBREEREL TEER it
BEREARBE  ZEBNIAAEEFE - NRERBIEMREEHRE  THEFTEE £RS
BREE - AAEIE - BEESSRABRRESFABERR -

The major measures to Access and Registration Risks: The Group dynamically grasps the access regulatory
policy of the country where the project is located, adjusts the product varieties sold in a timely manner; carries
out risk assessment, product registration, packaging design, brand use, etc. in advance; establishes an early
warning mechanism for product access policies.

EARGZMEABNEIZEREER  AEEHEEEREMCEEAEERR  ERARHEERRE
MREERG  RARRERZM BERFT REEASEIF BEYEREABRNEERS -

The major measures to Product Import and Export Risks: The Group pays attention to national and regional
import and export regulations, actively responds to endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and
controls excessive heavy metals and pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures
that packaging instructions meet policy requirements so as to reduce product import and export risks
effectively.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong and the Listing Rules that inside information should be announced to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o The Board shall take reasonable precautions for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication;

o Before the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group should ensure that all inside information
must be treated strictly confidential; and

o Disclosure must be made in a manner that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access to the
inside information disclosed, such as through the electronic publication system operated by the Exchange.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and position in
all shareholder communications. The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the applicable rules and
regulations about timely disclosure of inside information or matters regarding the Company and will authorise the
publication of such announcements as and when the occasion arises.

The Board adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy on 8 May 2013 which provides that the Board should
endeavour to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their participation. Such policy is being reviewed
from time to time to ensure its effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company establishes different
communication channels with shareholders and investors, including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications (including but not limited to financial reports, notices of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules;

(i) the annual general meeting and other shareholders meetings provide a forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board;

(i)  updated and key information on the Group is available on the website (cm.tongrentang.com) of the Company;

(iv)  the Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders;

(v) meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update on the performance of the Group;

(vi)  the executive directors and senior management of the Company hold meetings with institutional investors and
analysts through telephone calls, email and video conferences, and attend investor forums in the Mainland China,
Hong Kong and overseas countries from time to time;

(vi)  the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and
(viii)  the investor relations department of the Company handles enquires from shareholders and investors.

In 2021, the Board members, the Company’s senior management, external auditor and legal advisor attended the annual
general meeting, and were available to answer questions. The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

At the annual general meeting held in 2021, the chairman of the meeting (i) explained the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders; (i) exercised his power under the Company’s Articles of
Association to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes

cast at the annual general meeting held in 2021. Poll results were then posted on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board.
Any general meeting other than an annual general meeting shall be referred to as an EGM.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Company’s Articles of Association, an EGM
can be convened to consider proposals in accordance with the following provisions:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM, and EGM shall also be convened on such requisition, or in default
may be convened by such requisitionist(s), holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any Director
or any 2 shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may convene an EGM in the same manner
as nearly as possible as that in which a meeting may be convened by the Directors.

The requirements and procedures as set out in section 566 to section 569 of the Companies Ordinance are summarised as
follows:

o The requisition must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company which is presently situated at Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

o If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

o Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a
meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

In addition, shareholders are requested to follow section 615 of the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an
annual general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing not less than 25% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the annual general meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate, may submit a requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at an annual general meeting.

(i)  The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of an annual general meeting unless a request (a) is sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (b) the resolution of which notice is to be given is identified; (c)
is authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) is received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management and corporate
governance. The Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) provides email address (for enquiry purpose only), postal
address, fax number and telephone number by which Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board.
Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a new set of Articles of Association of the Company has been approved and
adopted by the 2021 annual general meeting on 28 May 2021. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular dated
22 April 2021 to the shareholders and the new set of Articles of Association of the Company is also available on the
Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_a

pwec

To the Members of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 160 to 265, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment of goodwill.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwill

Refer to note 4 (Critical accounting estimates
and judgements) and note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a
goodwill of HK$49,419,000 and it was significant
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management prepared the value-in-use
calculation based on cash flow forecast of the
cash-generating unit that included this goodwill
to determine whether there was any impairment.

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment of goodwill.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
goodwill balance and the estimation of
recoverable amount being subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered significant due to
subjectivity of assumptions used including
estimated growth rates and discount rate which
are subject to change of economic environment
in future.

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of impairment of goodwill and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk.

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of impairment
of goodwill to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process.

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment including
cash flow forecast, and the process by which they were drawn up,
and tested the underlying calculations.

Specific work we performed over the impairment assessment
included:

o comparing management’s short-term forecasted sales and
profit margins with historical performance;

° comparing the management’s key assumptions for discount
rate and long-term growth rate in the forecast with industry
data; and

o obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis over the key

assumptions of the cash flow forecast to analyse the potential
impact of a range of possible outcomes.

We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting the
growth rates and discount rate would give rise to indicators of
possible management bias.

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill
were supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
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information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. AR G

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form KR PAY S ERENSEIRTREEMEE RS THZEHEMEERRTARRNE
of assurance conclusion thereon. sk o

2 A

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, HERPEREVEBRENES  BANSESHELMERS  THBREG  ZEHMER

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or RS ANERERRMER T BRI THRVEBEREEEARIKBRE LT FEE KR
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. BRI EY 1B SR o

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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EEAFE BRMREEME/RSE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the

direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement fEaFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HLEEFE
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T % T HK$’000 F & 7T
Revenue WA 5 1,556,158 1,315,346
Cost of sales $H%E R 7 (436,535) (362,443)
Gross profit £ 1,119,623 952,903
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #5 & S5 &5 X 7 (186,368) (168,917)
General and administrative expenses and others —#2 & 17 B3 32 |2 H ith
— General and administrative expenses — % & 17 B BE &% 7 (155,312) (135,534)
— Net impairment losses on financial assets & &l & & 2 F E5HE 7 (7,522) (3,327)
Other gains, net FHE {15 6 8,039 24,278
Operating profit &% ;& 778,460 669,403
Finance income 871 7% Uk % 0 4,:;%'-1 --------------- 21,ééé-
Finance costs 817 tH 10 (4,707) (4,300)
Finance (costs)/income, net ;E81#% Gz ) /IS (330) 17,352
Share of profits/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{L iz E AR 2 RERE, (5518 "o 2-(-3i- S (éé(-J)-
Profit before income tax Bk 715 %% A1 Al 778,391 685,895
Income tax expense FF{§FiBI 12 (126,848) (118,014)
Profit for the year % E & 651,543 567,881
Profit attributable to: LA T A+ FE/EFIE :
Owners of the Company A2 F#H A 607,838 542,456
Non-controlling interests FE#2 % 2% 43,705 25,425
651,543 567,881

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the year (expressed in HK$ per share)

FRAFARAEBARBESRERN CLERETIT

Basic and diluted earnings per share &R EA K #5827 13 0.73 0.65
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BA k%55 FI 5 2% PE SR BE BT B X — PP RA A& -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEREKHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HLEEFE
2021 2020
Note Fff=E HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 T 7T
Profit for the year FE & 651,543 567,881

Other comprehensive (losses)/income: E 4R & (&518) W2 :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss AIEEE#T 7 B2 154 978 B

Currency translation differences &% i {2 2= 58 (635) 15,474
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss T&E# 7 EE 18519 EH

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UARBESEEHSHHAAMGRESRENEREEARBEEZD 18 (645) (4,875)
Other comprehensive (losses)/income for the year FEE GRS (BB, W&E 000 (1,280 10,599
Total comprehensive income for the year & E4# & W45 650,263 578,480
Attributable to: SA T A T &G :

Owners of the Company 482 B #EHE A 607,857 550,521

Non-controlling interests FE#% % 2 42,406 27,959
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 4 S W45 650,263 578,480

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. DEGZRE2E KR EEPEMHM G —OFRIE -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet EaEEaE

As at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31H
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 T3t
Assets EE
Non-current assets B & E
Property, plant and equipment #1% + BE K& 1E 16 183,309 187,379
Right-of-use assets FAEE=E 15 214,255 194,442
Intangible assets EEE 17 60,953 54,836
Investments accounted for using the equity method 2 E AR ZIRE 11 57,896 17,763
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income A A BETEAEE B AHMEEWRENEREE 18 5,463 6,108
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
BEYE BERREUREFEENENRE 14,245 10,430
Deferred income tax assets, net SFELE TSR EE 19 22,050 13,064
558,171 484,022
Currentassets REVEE
Inventories 7 & 20 431,865 495,378
Trade receivables and other current assets & 3 EW BN Htt R8I EE 21 569,378 590,432
Short-term bank deposits %8 2581717 5% 22 615,264 421,097
Cash and cash equivalents & R IREZEEY 22 1,660,304 1,426,040
... 3276811 2,082,047
Total assets BAEE 3,834,982 3,416,969

Equity and liabilities ## K & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 B H A FE(L

Share capital &< 23 938,789 938,789
Reserves & 24
— Other reserves Efhif# & (25,167) (18,917)
— Retained earnings 7 & Wi 2,504,551 2,097,617
3,418,173 3,017,489
Non-controlling interests JE 2} #E 121,331 112,021
Total equity i 4 3589504 3129510
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 3£ E) & &
Borrowings fA & 25 799 2,052
Lease liabilities fHE & & 74,475 63,095
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SHIELEFrE8H & & 19 7,147 5,696
R s2d21 70843
Current liabilities i & &
Borrowings fA & 25 480 260
Trade and other payables & 5 & E {7 1E 26 127,550 140,138
Lease liabilities fHE & & 52,722 40,603
Current income tax liabilities EHi TS &1& 32,305 35,615
o 219057 216,616
Total liabilities @&/ 295478 287,459
Total equity and liabilities # % & S5 3,834,982 3,416,969
The consolidated financial statements on pages 160 to 265 were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2022 and E160E 265 EMGE A M BMRN2022FIAOAEEST M A WAHUTRREE -

were signed on its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man Tk =]
Director Director EE3 EE3
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. PR EEEN M — R -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity FAESEEaE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company &2 T #H5 A FE{5

Non-
Share Merger Other Statutory Exchange Retained controlling
capital reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interests

L& AbHEE Htif e EERE B E RE Wi BE  FERED

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TiEn T T TiEn TiEr TiEn T T TET
At 1 January 2020 74202051 51 H 938,789 (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 2,659,501 106,135 2,765,636
Comprehensive income %4 Wi
Profit for the year & E I8 - - - - - 542,456 542,456 25,425 567,881
Other comprehensive (losses)/income Efti4&R4 (18 Wz
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
URABENEERSETARMGERENSREEAAEEED - - (4,875) - - - (4,875) - (4,875)
Currency translation differences &% 5 #1228
— Group &&H - - - - 12,861 - 12,861 2,534 15,395
— Joint ventures A& ¥ - - - - 79 - 79 - 79
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %44 (B8 /W85 - - (4,875) - 12,940 542,456 550,521 27,959 578,480
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners E2#Z B EUEEEN S RETHRS
Dividends paid E 1R E - - - - - (192,533) (192,533) (22,073) (214,606)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S A EUEREENERETHRZNAE - - - - - (192,533) (192,533) (22,073) (214,608)
At 31 December 2020 #2020 %12 A 31 H 938,789 (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172 2,097,617 3,017,489 112,021 3,129,510
At 1 January 2021 4202151 1H 938,789 (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 3,017,489 112,021 3,129,510
Comprehensive income %4 Wi
Profit for the year % & i - - - - - 607,838 607,838 43,705 651,543
Other comprehensive (losses)/income E 44 (&) /K%
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAABEMEERSEFARMGERENEREEAAEEEZD = = (645) = = = (645) = (645)
Currency translation differences &% H i £ 58
— Group A£E - - - - 624 - 624 (1,200) (675)
— Joint ventures and an associate A& £ R EE AT - - - - 40 - 40 - 40
Total comprehensive (losses)/income 44 (&) /K #E % - - (645) - 664 607,838 607,857 42,406 650,263
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 2RI EUEFEENSHETHRS
Capital injections to a subsidiary [EIfi[& 2 A& - - - - - - - 738 738
Transactions with non-controlling interests (Note 30) E2JFiZ IR ETHR S (if3E30) - - (6,269) - - - (6,269) (10,333) (16,602)
Dividends paid E % & - - - - - (200,904) (200,904) (23,501) (224,405)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners SEREZ A EUEFEENERETHRZNAE - - (6,269) - - (200,904) (207,173) (33,096) (240,269)
At 31 December 2021 42021 €12 531 H 938,789 (13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 3,418,173 121,331 3,539,504
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. LA L 4RE fE 50 4 B 7 B B B B B 5 — OF BAFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SAEShEs

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HLEEFE
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T % T HK$’000 F & 7T
Cash flows from operating activities L& EFETELNRERE
Cash generated from operations & & fiEA 2R & 27(a) 915,005 327,589
Income tax paid 217 FriE%i (137,835) (211,535)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% E B FIE AR S F 5 777,170 116,054
Cash flows from investing activities BEEBFELEWBETE
Interest received 2 W2 5,044 28,855
Dividends received & W% & 180 165
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months
FEHR B =18 A N EZEHRTER G20, R (194,167) 490,558
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment &2 - R R RIBFTER 27(b) 22 30
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets BE#% - MERREREFLEE (10,354) (7,190)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and intangible assets B E#¥% - MERREREFEENC S (13,074) (5,690)
Acquisition of an associate U iEEiE 2 &) (39,832) -
Acquisition of further interest in a subsidiary & ¥ 2 T 88 /MEZS (13,553) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities R &E8) (Fr ) FrE £ IR & F48 (265,734) 506,728
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBFMEEWRSTE
Principal elements of lease payments & EERI AR £ 2 (50,496) (46,613)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests JEiZ #I#EZS X & 738 -
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B 1342 AR R AR E (200,904) (192,540)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B 1 3E 1% BR 225 AU IR B, (23,501) (22,073)
Interest paid 214 % &8 (4,707) (4,300)
Proceeds from borrowing 1& & FT 85X 387 1,394
Repayment of borrowing {Ei& & & (166) (166)
Net cash used in financing activities B & & BN P IR £ %50 ... (278649)  (264,298)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents I & & 3 & Z B ¥ 1% i 7F 58 232,787 358,484
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £# 2R & RV EZEY 1,426,040 1,056,711
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents & & IR & S EYE & W& 1,477 10,845
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR 2 HERBREZEY 1,660,304 1,426,040

UEGEREMBREEGEN M —GBHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The immediate holding company of the Company is
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Technologies”) which is a joint stock limited company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company of the Company is Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited,
(“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.”) which is a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd.
(“Tong Ren Tang Holdings”) which is a company incorporated in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange starting from 7 May 2013 and were
transferred to be listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange starting from 29 May 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Adoption of revised framework and amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following revised framework and amendments to standards which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Hong Kong Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The adoption of the above revised framework and amendments to standards did not have any
significant financial impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBRBMEGE)
(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (o) IREBE®E(E)
(ii) Newf?tandard amendments to standards and interpretations which are not (ii) MRERRIFETER » ERZ BT RBE
yet eftective

The following are new standard, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been published THIFETER » R Z BT RBREEAEEN2022F1 81 B 2%
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 or later BHET SR EARBHET  BAEELERRERRM -
periods, but have not been early adopted by the Group.

Annual improvement project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 FEMESE (BTN BEVKREZER 2018-2020 F
(Amendments) K FEED

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope amendments ) EBHERELEDE IR NEBEMEET O
(Amendments) BBSTTEIE 16K

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 17 (New Standard)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause @

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current @

Insurance Contracts @

Disclosure of Accounting Policies @

Definition of Accounting Estimates @

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction @

Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture ©

™ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022
@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023

@ Effective date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new standard, amendments to standards and interpretations when they

become effective.

(b) Subsidiaries

(i) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

Except for business combination under common control, the Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition

date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interesfs in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint ventures or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes directly attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using equity method”, in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate
are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

(f

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

- all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

(h)

Buildings comprise mainly a factory, offices and retail shops. All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost net of their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

— Buildings 25 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
— Plant and machinery 3to 12 years

— Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years

— Furniture and equipment 2.5t0 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(j)).

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Gooduwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Gains and losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

(ii) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of the customer relationships of ten years.

(iii) Other intangible assets

Within the Group there are three types of other intangible assets: management contract, exclusive
supply contract and computer software. These intangible assets acquired have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(ji Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”),
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(ili) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

[a)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i

(k)

U

(m)

(n)

(o)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)
(b)  Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classified its debt
instruments into financial assets at amortised cost:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3(a) for
further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables and other current assets

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Other current assets include prepayment, deposits and other receivables. If
collection of trade receivables and other current assets is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables and other current assets, excluding prepayments, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

()} Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes which are defined contribution plans and are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds. The Group has adopted a
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, and has also participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by the
relevant local authorities for its employees in the Mainland China and overseas countries/regions.

(i) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

(ii) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

(v) Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of goods

The Group sells healthcare products and Chinese medicine to wholesalers and individual customers.
Sales of goods are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the wholesaler or
customer, being when the products are delivered to the wholesaler or customer.

Wholesales

For wholesales, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sales are recorded based on the
price specified in the sales contracts.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term ranging from 30 to
180 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered at the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional, which only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Retail sales

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling products. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(i) Service income

The Group mainly provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in retail outlets. Service
income is recognised over-time in which the service is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash
or by credit card.

(iii) Royalty fee income
Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total turnover of overseas entities for them

to use the “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis upon sales recognised by the overseas entities.

(iv) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income statement as part of finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

(x) Dividend income

Dividends are received from a financial asset measured at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other net gains
in the consolidated income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

ly) Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(if) variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

(i)  amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
(iv)  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

(i) where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

(ii) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing; and

(i)  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

ly) Leases (Continued)

(2)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(ii) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

(i)  any initial direct costs; and

(iv)  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties and equipment and all leases of low-value assets

are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

(aa)Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by management of each individual entity within the
Group.

(i)  Market risk

(1) Foreign exchange risk

Each individual group entity has its own functional currency. Foreign exchange risk to each
individual group entity arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. The Group manages its foreign currencies risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i)  Market risk (Continued)

(1) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollar,
with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2021 would have been HK$20,096,000 (2020: HK$23,294,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-denominated trade
payables held by a subsidiary in the Mainland China whose functional currency is Renminbi.
Whereas, the exposure arising from the other foreign currencies is not significant to the Group.

(2)  Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than short-term bank deposits and bank balances, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk associated with the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of the market interest rates on its cash flows are not
deemed to be substantial in the view of the Directors based on the nature of the assets and
liabilities.

At 31 December 2021, if the interest rates on bank deposits had been 50 basis-points higher with
all other variables held constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
HK$11,373,000 (2020: HK$9,231,000) higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher interest
income on bank deposits.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade receivables (including trade receivables from the
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and other current
assets.

(1) Risk management

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with good credit ratings to mitigate the risk. For trade
receivables (including trade receivables from related companies) and other current assets, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the counter — parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of
these receivables and follows up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The credit terms of
trade receivables are within 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 90 days). The management is of the
opinion that the risk of default by counterparties is low. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

As at 31 December 2021, excluding those customers under the common control of the ultimate
holding company, there were 2 customers (2020: 1 customer) which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s gross trade receivables. The amount of trade receivables from these
customers amounted to 59% (2020: 17%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

(2)  Impairment of financial assetfs

Trade receivables
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Trade receivables — related parties

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics with reference to certain factors such as
default rate given by external researches over the expected lives of the debtors, repayment and
default histories of different customers to measure the expected credit losses. As at 31 December
2021, trade receivables of HK$54,103,000 (2020: HK$378,725,000) are due from related parties
of which HK$1,357,000 (2020: HK$187,570,000) were past due. Given there is no history of
significant defaults from related parties and insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates,
the assessed expected credit losses are not material. As at 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance in respect of the trade receivables due from related parties was HK$24,000 (2020:
HK$1,137,000).

Trade receivables — third party
The Group measures the expected credit losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at
31 December 2021, the balance of individually assessed impaired receivables was HK$3,411,000
(2020: HK$20,420,000) and the loss allowance in respect of individually assessed receivables was
HK$3,411,000 (2020: HK$5,718,000). Please refer to Note 21 for details.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining receivables from third party,
excluding third parties which are assessed individually, based on geographical location of where
the customer operates in and the nature of business of its customers and their shared credit risk
characteristics, and collectively assessed for the likelihood of loss allowance, taking into account
the default rates given by external researches over the expected lives of the debtors, repayment
and default histories of different customers, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be
the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the expected credit loss rates based on
expected changes in the GDP.

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of HK$483,700,000 are due from remaining third
parties, excluding third parties which are assessed individually, and are assessed under collective
basis, of which HK$378,247,000 have not past due. The expected loss rate in respect of the trade
receivables was 0.02%-3.17% and the loss allowance was HK$11,286,000. As at 31 December
2021, if the expected loss rate in respect of the trade receivables had been 300 basis-points
higher with all other variables held constant, the loss allowance would have been HK$14,511,000
higher.

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of HK$154,300,000 are due from remaining third
parties, excluding third parties which are assessed individually, and are assessed under collective
basis, of which HK$83,316,000 have not yet past due while HK$67,517,000 and HK$3,467,000
were past due less than 60 days and over 60 days respectively. The expected loss rate in respect
of the trade receivables past due over 60 days was 4% and the loss allowance was HK$138,000.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost, including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month expected credit losses which is close
to zero.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised cost are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group has steady cash inflow from operations and has adequate financial resources
to fund its operations and future expansions. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial liabilities
were mainly trade and other payables amounting to HK$88,390,000 (2020: HK$106,677,000), lease

liabilities amounting to HK$127,197,000 (2020: HK$103,698,000) and borrowings amounting to
HK$1,279,000 (2020: HK$2,312,000).

The analysis of the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities is set out below. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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(b) Capital management (b) EAEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

(c) Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is carried at fair value as at 31 December 2021 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MHRKREEE)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is included in level 1.

Details on the fair value measurement for financial asset at FVOCI are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The rest of the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and other current assets, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, borrowings and
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment according to the recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates including five-year sales growth rate, estimated growth rate beyond the five-year period and
discount rate which are subject to change of economic environment in future. Details are set out in Note 17.

(b) Loss allowance on trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past experience, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”). The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on revenue and segment results
of each segment. The Executive Directors have determined the operating segments based on the location of the
entities and the information reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance and have determined that the Group has three reportable operating
segments.

The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on location where goods are sold and services are provided.
The details are set out as follows:

(i) Hong Kong — sale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments through retail outlets as well as wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products in Hong Kong. In addition, it includes the royalty fee income received from overseas
entities for using “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

(ii) Mainland China — wholesale of healthcare products in the Mainland China and the sole distribution of Tong
Ren Tang branded products of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. to customers outside
the Mainland China.

(i)  Overseas — retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments in other overseas countries/regions, including Macao.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, investments
accounted for using equity method, financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, deposits paid
for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, deferred income tax assets, inventories, trade
receivables and other current assets, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities
include borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payables, current and deferred income tax liabilities.

Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses.

Sales between segments are carried in accordance with terms agreed by the parties involved.

(@) Analysis of consolidated income statement

TE M ImERMEE

5 SDEREH(18)

DTHEECENE BERRE EAKEE BREE BRESZEARZEE U
DNABEFEEESHFTAAMGERENEREE BEYX BERRBURE
FEEMENRE ELFEHEE 78 E5RUNEREMRBEE - SR
TERRRERRESEEY  sHEECERFGE HEAE BEZREMEMCKE
ENRELEREHEE-

APBMEBETERELEME -

7 #B S EAR B AR B T M8 T 2 AR ST o

(a) FEHRRIHF

Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ 2021 F£12A31 BLLFE
Segment revenue 2 ZBULA
Inter-segment revenue 2 B A
Revenue from external customers 38 B SMEB%E 5 Z WA
Timing of revenue recognition U A #5249 B 26
At a point in time 7£ 5 — B 2
Overtime £ — EREF R A

Contribution to segment results 2 &8 ¥ 4& =2 & f&f

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #J2 - BiE R RIBITE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ FIfEEENE

Amortisation of intangible assets &7 & &= # 85

Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment HE&EYIZ - =R R E2EE

(Loss allowance)/reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 FEWFRIE 2 (BEFHR) R ERE
Impairment loss on inventories 7 & 2 R E T2

Write-off of inventories 17 & #fti&l

Segment results 2 2B 4&

Inter-segment elimination 235 &S ¥t &

Operating profit £ & X4

Finance income Bf 5 Uiz

Finance costs B %3 1

Share of profits of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{G R AE RS 7% A BR 2 12 & 754
Profit before income tax & 7 15%% 51 18

Income tax expense FriS#iBI

Profit for the year & ¥4
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Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
Bk RE Rt =3

HK$’000 T %7t HK$’000 T % 7T HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 T %7t
1,212,075 578,803 443,604 2,234,482
(523,680) (152,385) (2,259) (678,324)
688,395 426,418 441,345 1,556,158
686,576 421,775 404,994 1,513,345
1,819 4,643 36,351 42,813
688,395 426,418 441,345 1,556,158
718,039 36,228 111,279 865,546
(7,456) (491) (5,122) (13,069)
(31,126) (2,416) (21,106) (54,648)
(2,255) - - (2,255)
(12) (2) (423) (437)
(4,568) (2,968) 14 (7,522)

- - (58) (58)

(201) - (122) (323)

672,421 30,351 84,462 787,234
(8,774)

778,460

3,456 327 594 4,377
(1,671) (180) (2,856) (4,707)

261

778,391

(126,848)

651,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER(E)

(@) Analysis of consolidated income statement (Continued) (a) REFBRDF(E)
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
BB FRE A it y:SEN
HK$’000 T8t HK$’000 T8 7T HK$'000 T 7T HK$’000 T8t
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020F12 31 HLLFE
Segment revenue 7 ZFUTA 971,433 623,345 337,995 1,982,773
Inter-segment revenue % Z8 UL A (424,994) (192,315) (118) (617,427)
Revenue from external customers 38 B #MEB%E F 2 XA 546,439 431,030 337,877 1,315,346
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 52 i B 24
At a point in time 7£ & — B 25 545,445 425,819 306,392 1,277,656
Overtime £ —ERBEREIA 994 5,211 31,485 37,690
546,439 431,030 337,877 1,315,346
Contribution to segment results 7 &8 ¥ 4& 2 & f&f 617,721 69,638 85,872 773,231
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BEK R ETE (7,974) (494) (8,250) (16,718)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ff AL EITE (32,425) (2,053) (21,076) (55,554)
Amortisation of intangible assets &, & &= # &5 (1,300) = (4,514) (5,814)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment HHEY#% - ERRE2EE (13) - (2,111) (2,124)
Loss allowance on trade receivables B 5 FEURFRIE 2B {E 5T 1R (43) (3,044) (240) (3,327)
Write-off of inventories 1% & il (51) - (159) (210)
Segment results 5 2B 4& 575,915 64,047 49,522 689,484
Inter-segment elimination % 3p & 1 §% (20,081)
Operating profit 4% F;& 669,403
Finance income B #§ Uk 20,959 127 566 21,652
Finance costs 81753z (1,337) (132) (2,831) (4,300)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{L IR E AR 2 IREEIE (860)
Profit before income tax & Fr 58 A Fl 7 685,895
Income tax expense FTi8%iBI X (118,014)
Profit for the year & 754 567,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o & B TR IR i

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEEH (&)

. o = ==
(b) Analysis of consolidated balance sheet (b) FEABEEAEBERNHDF
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
B RE Rt y:SBYN
HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 T8t HK$’000 F &7t HK$’000 F& T
At 31 December 2021 74202112 A 31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 & E R & &
Total assets B & = 2,815,098 581,373 438,511 3,834,982
Investments accounted for using the equity method &2z A A BRZ & 9,260 40,599 8,037 57,896
Additions to non-current assets ) JERENEE 21N 52,206 1,196 28,231 81,633
Total liabilities & & (127,969) (47,554) (119,955) (295,478)
At 31 December 2020 742020412 A 31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 2EER & F
Total assets B&EE 2,383,239 653,722 380,008 3,416,969
Investments accounted for using the equity method 2 E AR Z IR E 9,074 = 8,689 17,763
Additions to non-current assets ) JERBENE 7= 2L MO 53,464 7,376 4,614 65,454
Total liabilities 28 & (117,320) (62,892) (107,247) (287,459)
o In this analysis, additions to non-current assets exclude investments accounted for using the equity method, financial o AR FRBDEEZENMTERREZTEARZIRE - LAAREEFEZ
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. BESBTAHEMGERENERNEENECHMEREE -
(c) Revenue (c) WA
The analysis of revenue by category is as follows: REREDHRADHAOT :
2021 2020
HK$'000 F 3 7T HK$'000 F 3% &
Sales of products $8&E ff 1,513,345 1,277,656
Service income ARFS UL A 42,495 37,487
Royalty fee income k& A& & 318 203
1,556,158 1,315,346
(d) Information about major customers (d EREEERINEY
For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from two (2020: two) customers each accounted for more BZE2021F12A31HLFE REWMA (2020F : MB) B WA S HAK
than ten percent of the Group’s total revenue. These revenues are attributable to the Hong Kong segment and EEBRAEBIZTULE - ZSEVWARBEBIBRTERMESE - REZE
the Mainland China segment. The revenues from these customers are summarised below: BEFHBABMMNT ¢
2021 2020
HK$'000 F 3 7T HK$'000 F 3% 7%
Revenue from: 8RB LT A AU A -
— Entities under the control of the ultimate holding company @ (Note 29(a))
RAAER AR FEGNER O (fE29()) N/ATEH 346,692
— Customer AZF A 305,388 265,670
— Customer B &F B 167,988 N/ATiE A
473,376 612,362
o It represents a group of entities under common control considered as a single customer. ) ESHEIZSN—EER BARE—XF o
There are no customers of other segments individually accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s total BE2021F12A31BLEFE - Htt o MHEEF (2020F : 8 @G ARE
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). BARANES ZTHUE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o B PSR I S

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEEH (&)

(e) Information about geographical areas (e) FRALhEAYE
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. An analysis of revenue from external customers and non-current RATRBEBEE - AEBRMES SN RENRBEFZUARERBEEN
assets of the Group by geographical area is set out below: U
(i) Revenuel” (i) HA™
HK$’000 T#&T HK$’000 F &7t
Hong Kong &8 688,395 546,439
Mainland China # Bl Ay tth 426,418 431,030
Macao &P 266,037 169,552
Australia JB A | 28 48,542 52,243
Canada & X 45,114 41,081
New Zealand ¥ 78 5 28,267 24,293
Singapore % HN3% 24,448 23,053
United States <] 12,175 10,957
Other countries E Bl 16,762 16,698
1,556,158 1,315,346
(i) Non-current assets®? (i) FERENEE?
HK$’000 T#& T HK$’000 F &7t
Hong Kong & & 292,593 278,916
Mainland China A B (A it 5,692 7,217
Macao &P 65,908 61,427
Australia S8 A K22 51,785 50,285
Canada & X 16,258 11,746
New Zealand 37 Bl 13,741 15,076
Europe BUM 11,797 12,177
United States %] 2,008 2,953
Other countries EfBEI =R 12,980 7,290
472,762 447,087
(” The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on the location where goods are sold and services are m BARREBIREEE R RIREREFAELDAT
provided.
@ The geographical location of non-current assets is analysed based on where the assets are located or held. In @ FRBEERMESINMERBEZEENMEM T EHEE - X547
this analysis, the total of non-current assets excludes investments accounted for using the equity method, FoERBEELRTERREREARZRE - UAAEAENER
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. HEDH AHAMBGEWBENEREENEEEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o & B TR IR i

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEEH (&)

(f) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (f) BEFARBHNEENE(E
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contract with customers: AEEEHRRAUTHEFAREBENERS

At At
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

MW2021F12HA31H M2020612H31H

HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F &7t

Contract liabilities — Service income &RIE & — RIFUA 4,508 3,734
The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract with customers as at 31 December R2021F 12 A31 HM2020F 12831 B ' AEBEABREAEFERAEENE
2021 and 31 December 2020. BEE -
There is no significant changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2021. BZE2021F12A31BLEE  AREENEERBEETRESE -

(g) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (g) EEZNESARETHIHKA

The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities in the year related to carried TRATAFECEIANESFEEFRANBUATEELESREBEFRANK
forward contract liabilities. AZH o

At At

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2021 %F12831H 1202012831 H

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& T
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities at 1 January E# 281 81 B &R EE @AW A 2,506 1,327

6 OTHER GAINS, NET 6 FHMFE

HK$°000 T & T HK$’000 % T
Government grants (note) BUF#EBY (5D 5,103 22,373
Unsecured government loans waived & £ & fY#IK I BUF &7 1,227 -
Others Hfib 1,709 1,905
8,039 24,278

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit directly from Mzt : WS REMESEAARENGFEIBEMERETG EESEEERETWEM

any other forms of government assistance. FERNWBF R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

7/ EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEESHENAY

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& T
Cost of inventories sold (Note 20) HE&F&E KA (fisE20) 351,189 284,198
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) {EE@AIR = (5 8) 216,711 183,587
COVID-19-related rent concessions 72 & ik i 5 i % 1H B8 € 5l :E (483) (3,360)
Expenses relating to short-term leases 8 #i7H & & F 14,291 13,042
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (note)
TEFENEEAERNTEHESENRER (D 205 193
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) E & E#sE ({5 17) 2,255 5,814
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) {F B EITE ({5 15) 54,648 55,554
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) #12 - B E Kk R ETE (5 16) 13,069 16,718
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 27) tHEW % - BiE -« RE2HE GtsE27) 437 2,124
Impairment loss on inventories (Note 20) 17& ZR{EFT1E FfFE20) 58 -
Write-off of inventories (Note 20) 17 & s (ftsE20) 323 210
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 21) B 5 FEWFIIE 2B EFTE GfizE21) 7,522 3,327
Auditors’ remuneration 1% (BTl &
— Audit services & IR#E 5,267 4,058
— Non-audit services FF#% B RS 430 304
Research and development expenses fiff 2 & A 11,273 9,462
Net exchange loss/(gain) BE %18 % (a3 (B48 152 (53)
Promotion and advertising expenses /& & E 455 23,579 16,821
Legal and professional expenses SAE R E#B 7,127 3,999
Note: Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by certain e IR ENREAEETEEEEENB A RE LT EABHEEEHESNERE -

retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

T E M IRR I3

BERAMMAY ' SIEFESEH

&

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t

Salaries, wages and bonuses ¥& + TERIEAL 187,914 164,366
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R & KA — EEEHARFTE 15,484 8,380
Other benefits E b 3@l 13,313 10,841
216,711 183,587

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, there is no forfeited contributions of the Group utilised and

available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

(a) Five highest paid individuals

BEZCRER-_ZFC-FHZAZT-HUESFE  AREREHARERNOHER
FRWRH AR D RRARB R

() ABEREHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include one (2020: two) AEBEANEEREHFALTBEE 1 (2020F - WD EE > HM SR
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 9(a). The emoluments paid or 9(a) DT RAR o FREATHAEMERT ML (20205F : =) ATWEEWT ¢

payable to the remaining four (2020: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F &7t
Basic salaries and other benefits 274" & &k E g F] 2,763 2,380
Bonuses fEAL 2,963 1,910
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & M4 — EEEMAKETE 220 136
5,946 4,426
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeENFUTEHE
Number of individuals A
2021 2020
Emolument bands i< 23 &
HK$ 78 7t 1,000,001 — HK$ % Jt 1,500,000 3 2
HK$ & 7T 1,500,001 — HK$ 7 7t 2,000,000 1 1
For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments (2020: nil) were paid by the Group to any of the five BZE2021F12A3BLFE  AEEYRAOEERSFALTIAEAMS
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of (2020F ' 8|8) > EARSIEMARIMAREEFNRBDABEBHEE T8RS
office, and no arrangement under which any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any of FATHESIREREZEETANESNZHE -

the emoluments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRE(SI')FORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULE

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out below:

e MR M

9 EEMNAHMES(BHEFB(RERHGINE 6225F)

EIBIERABD(HEEZFmER)ROINE
622CE )R ERMER LR AR EIKE

(a) EFEH=

HZE2021EK2020F 12831 AL EENAQTZESHFHUT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EREE TERFARAREFLAAERN BHBRBMH I REVNME

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2021 other benefits bonuses EEXzEKE
BE2021 51231 BILEE FERHEMER BB 1AL B RN
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 Tt
Executive Directors #I{TEE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling® T k¥ &+ ® - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping @ 3RJ& 54 @ - - 1,179 - 1,179
Ms. Lin Man & 22 £ - 1,069 637 78 1,784
Mr. Chen Fei® BR ¢ 4 @ - 1,035 - 63 1,098
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHTES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & #% 5% 5t 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen AR 54 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi BR 3% 5t 55 4 240 - - - 240
720 2,104 1,816 141 4,781

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EREE TERAQAIRAFARERN RERB M FRERNHE

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2020 other benefits bonuses EExZEKE
BZE2020F12 831 HIEFE FrE R HAEF By 1ETEAL TR
HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F & 7T
Executive Directors #{TEE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling® T k¥ &+ ® - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping® fRI&F E4£® - 741 1,763 4 2,508
Ms. Lin Man M 2+ = 824 896 4 1,724
Mr. Chen Fei® BRI %4 @ - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTESE
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &k &4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen IR 5E4E 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi PR %% 5t 5t & 240 - - - 240
720 1,565 2,659 8 4,952

o Ms. Ding Yong Ling is also the Chief Executive of the Company.
@ Mr. Chen Fei was re-designated as Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021.

® Mr. Zhang Huan Ping has retired as Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No directors of the Company waived or returned any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office as a director.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefit under a defined benefit scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to any directors as compensation for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of any directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

10 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET

Finance income Bf 3§ U3
Finance costs 81§37 tH

— Borrowing £ &

— Lease liabilities HE& &

Finance (costs)/income, net SF 813 Gz Hi) /S
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TE M ImERMEE

9 EFEMNFEMERS(AFEB(RATEMNE6225F)
EI8IFERAT (HMEBEZEENHEHR)RMIN(E
622CGE )REMNKER LHRBRERKE)(18)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

ERM=(E)

AARUBESHRARBETANE - AKETFEOESZAEAME - FH
WEIAEEZ REREMARRB DR -

EREBAERN
AEENLRENREGESRAER  EBHREAATREWEECEH
BRI E AL RS 2 BA 2 (20205 : ) ©

ERERERN
AEERLJOEEZHEANS - EHRIBHBEORBHE (20205 : 1 -

BES=FAEREETEZIHNE

AEERTEREEE=AAEBAR AR ESMEXNAZEABREEEN
KRB (2020%F : §|) o

EFE -EEENEE  EEMBERZEHR - £E X
PAR E 32 53 B =

AEERNNBES ESERFCE EFTEWUSECEN  EEFURHMK
ZHEEE (20205 : #8) -

%EE*E%IS‘ZH@B’EE cRUESAPHEXE

AEERARFER  AEEAREZTEASRAKACZEEMALNRAZESRE
BEREECATEEFEARSCEERS - ZHHAR (2020F : ) -

8

10 BEAFE (2 )Wz

HK$000 T3 7T HK$’000 T8 7T

4,377 21,652

2 )

(4,705) (4,293)
_______________ @77 (4300

(330) 17,352
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o B PSR I S

11 I,\IXIVES(BMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11 BEEEARZRE
ETHOD

(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as (o) RIFAEERGERERHSTNT :
follows:
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
At 31 December 7412 B 31 H
Joint ventures & & 3% 17,297 17,763
Associates B& A & 40,599 -
57,896 17,763
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as (b) RFESTHREZHBENMT -
follows:
HK$'000 3% 7 HK$'000 F 38 7t
For the year ended 31 December HZ12 831 HILFE
Joint ventures & 3% 124 (860)
Associates B A 7] 137 -
261 (860)
(c) Interests in joint ventures (c) eSS
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table analyses, in AEBEEETENTERNGELENER - TRONEAEBS /MRS
aggregate, the movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint ventures, and its share EELENERREEEZHNELZSSECENES  HGREWERAE -

of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of these joint ventures.

2021 2020
HK$°000 T 7% T HK$’000 F& 7T
At 1 January 1A 1H 17,763 18,544
Share of profits/(losses) FEA& 5 EE R, (&18) 124 (860)
Share of other comprehensive income FE{5 E 4R & Uk 3%
— Currency translation differences & %5 5 {2 =28 (590) 79
At 31 December 12 A 31 R 17,297 17,763
The Group’s share of joint ventures’ commitments 72~ 55 B fE{5 & & (D 2R IE - 555
Notes: BiEE :
(a) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) BELEAIALXT  HROILETIBRE -
(b) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in joint ventures. (b) TEEEAEEBMIZAECERENIEERE -
() Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 30. (c) SRR AIEE30 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY
METHOD (Continued)

(d) Interests in associates

(i) Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2021 which, in the opinion of the
directors, is material to the Group.

On 30 September 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 40% of the equity interests in Beijing
Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited (the “Target Company”) from an independent third
party at a total consideration of RMB33,109,300 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,832,000).

The management assessed that the Group has significant influence but not control over the Target
Company, as such, the Target Company is accounted for as an associate of the Group under equity

method.

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

TE M ImERMEE

11 REFHEARZRE(E)

(d) BEBMEATZIELR
(i) EERATXHINBLE ATN22021FE12 831 BEEAEEEENH L

AR e

2021 9A 30 ' AEBERAABIE=ZFWBLRABCEERELEY
EMERAR (BEQT) 40% HRHE - BEEHR AR 33,109,300 T
(FBE 439,832,000 JT) ©

ERENGEAEEHERARNAREASEETARTEMNE  BRHER
DERFEENBE LR RERERE -

RESEESBERTHRAZFENT !

At 1 January 1818
Acquisition of interest in an associate W8 — B = A 7 2
Share of profits FE{5 & I H
Share of other comprehensive income FE{L H {47 & U5
— Currency translation differences & 5 = 58
At 31 December 212 B 31 H

The Group’s share of an associate’s commitments Z< £ B FE{G B & 1 T & JE

Summarised financial information for an associate

HK$’000 T % 7T

39,832
137

630
40,599

BMEQTANGEMBERME

Assets and liabilities as at 31 December X112 31 BN EEREE
Current assets RENEE
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R IR & ZEY
Other current assets E At EE =
Total current assets AR B & E
Non-current assets 3Ei B & E
Current liabilities 721 & f&
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) £ @& & CRET IR
Other current liabilities E AR E & &
Total current liabilities #5781 & 15
Non-current liabilities JERE & &

Net assets FE&EE
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HK$’000 F % 7T

30,223
71,851
102,074
17,324

3,146
11,844
14,990

2,910

101,498
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o & B TR IR i

11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11 IRESEARZIEE (18)
METHOD (Continued)

(d) Interests in associates (Continued) (d) MEEATZELE(E)

(i) Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2021 which, in the opinion of the (i) EERATXHINBLE ATN22021FE12 831 BEEAEEEENH L
directors, is material to the Group. (Continued) AHE o (@
Summarised financial information for an associate MEATNESMEEHRE

HK$’000 T % 7T

Revenue LA 80,336
Interest income F 2 WA 211
Depreciation T& (522)
Amortisation ##5 (602)
Income tax expense FTiSFi & A (464)
Loss for the period Hi 18 % (490)
Other comprehensive income Efth47 & Iz 1,575
Total comprehensive income 4R & Ui z5 42 48 1,085
Reconciliation of summarized consolidated financial information FEMBERNBENEE

HK$’000 T 7% T

Net assets as at acquisition date FRAUYEE B &= FE 99,579
Profits for the period since acquisition 4% & % £ &S A1 5E 344
Other comprehensive income for the period since acquisition U 8% 8 H 4R & U & 1,575
Closing net assets HiR & ZFE 101,498
Interest in an associate (40%) A — BB & A 7 2 i (40%) 40,599
(i)  The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates. iy AEEEEETHEINTEANBEELTNES -
2021 2020
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 T8 T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associate B A & R E{E - -
The Group’s share of associates’ commitments 7~ 52 B FE (5 B & N TRIE - -
Notes: Fi 2
(@) The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) HELNRNARALT HRHIEHIGRE -
(b)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in associates. (b) TEEBEAEEMFHLEARDREZNIETEE-
(© In 2021 and 2020, the Group has not recognised its share of loss of one of its associates as its share of (c) AAEEEE-—RBEEARNBERBRAEENZBE AT ZRER
accumulated losses has exceeded its investment cost. AN R 2021 ER 2020 FW EHERHEEHNERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year of the subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

T E M IRR I3

12 FRriSRxZ

504 P i 5 BESR BRI 12 16.5% (2020 6F  16.5%) BB EH REBFEH - A E
s 2 2 B 23 ) P 6 B BRI R 2 25% (2020 © 25% ) OB EFHE hEI %
FAGHE o 15 5N T B B4 B 10 £F P i 5 ISR 0 0 ek 5 A 8 P2 B SR O TRAT B 32
s o

Current income tax & HFT 158
— Current year NEE
— (Oven/under-provision in prior years {4 (&) /Dt

Deferred income tax (Note 19) IEFEFTS % (fizE19)
Income tax expense 8% 3%

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 F 57T HK$'000 F3#&7T
135,399 120,643

(993) 1,041

134,406 121,684
(7,558) (3,670)

126,848 118,014

7 52 80 B B A LB 40 48 4 B4R PR PR A 4 G A B B MR8 0 I T 49 B4 R 3 B 32
HEEERMT :

Profit before income tax B} F7 158 51 FI ;&
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries
1248 Bl Bl R F A AE A Y Bl R B R 5T B 2 B 1R
Tax effects of: A T HIBIIEFLE -
— Income not subject to tax FFi W &=
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ &] f1%% B 52
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised R FRIEIE Fri5H & ENBEEE
— Withholding income tax on royalty fee from overseas entities EiS/NE 82 W F AE R FTEH
— Withholding income tax on dividend income B% S W A X F0Fr 88
— (Over)/under-provision in prior years {4 (&3 /Dt
— Research and development enhanced deduction #2538 3% & #Y inZ 4054 58
— Others HAth

Income tax expense Fi{5%t

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2021 2020
HK$'000 F &7t HK$'000 &7t
778,391 685,895
127,564 117,687
(1,134) (6,588)

2,458 4,560

774 2,030

a1 14

297 —

(993) 1,041
(484) (181)

(1,675) (549)

126,848 118,014

13 BiEF

BREABADEARDVEAABGFBRAFACS BT EBROMETIHAE -

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$’000) 4~ T #H5 A FE45F)E (T8 1)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 2 21T & B R IEFH9H (TR
Earnings per share (HK$) @R & F (B0

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive shares.
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2021 2020

HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 F 3% 7T
607,838 542,456
837,100 837,100

0.73 0.65

BZE2021FR2020F12A31HLFE RABABTEHENEZRY  SREE
ENERSRELRRF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

14 DIVIDENDS 14 22

The dividends paid in 2021 and 2020 were HK$200,904,000 (HK$0.24 per share) and HK$192,533,000 (HK$0.23 per
share) respectively. There was no interim dividend declared or paid in 2021 and 2020. Dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021 of HK$0.28 per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$234,388,000, is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting on 10 June 2022. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend

20214 K2020F 9 E 4 B B 2 5l £200,904,0005% Tt (8 ;0248 ) &
192,533,0008 jt (B % 0.2378 JT) ° 2021 F R 2020 2 IR F HI R B - B £ 2021 F
12A31HLFENKRESRO0.28 8 T (IR E# %A 234,388,000/& ) i RARQTE
2022F6 A10 R BITHRRBFAZLIEE - ZEVHBRUBRMZELRE ©

payable.

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F7& T

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.28 (2020: HK$0.24) per ordinary share
EEERETBRAIRKE 0.288 T (20204 © 0.2487T) 234,388 200,904

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 [EHESEE
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HEL BF A%

HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 F & T
At 1 January 2020 7420201 81 H 98,139 96,918 195,057
Additions 10 = 52,574 52,574
Modification &% - 150 150
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 3T & X H (&£ 7) (2,668) (52,886) (55,554)
Currency translation differences & %5 7 2 =58 - 2,215 2,215
At 31 December 2020 22020512 31 H 95,471 98,971 194,442
At 1 January 2021 7420211 81H 95,471 98,971 194,442
Additions 10 - 58,093 58,093
Modification & & - 17,788 17,788
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 3T & X H (£ 7) (2,668) (51,980) (54,648)
Currency translation differences & %5 7 2 Z 58 - (1,420) (1,420)
At 31 December 2021 22021 512 831 H 92,803 121,452 214,255

(a)

(b)

The total cash outflow for leases, including the payments made in relation to lease liabilities and expenses
relating to short-term and variable lease payments in 2021 was HK$69,697,000 (2020: HK$64,141,000).

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 10 years (2020: 6 months to 10 years), but may have extension options as described
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets must not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store. For
individual stores, variable lease payments are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by
certain retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.
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(a) 2021 FEEEHRENR SR M E 569,697,000 7T (2020 F : 64,141,000
BT BEUHEEENRS XN URENEETRENTEEENRE -

(b) EEMESESRESEHEIE

AEEERAZERAE EENZEEH HESRABETEEEHR 66A
E105F (2020F : 6AAE10F) 75 - BEUREEE T XM EMRZEE -

AEHREESEASNER LEAEY  LTRBE TRNERAGEE 8
EHETEELEAARENESEENERABZANEARY - AEEE
FERERRER -

BoFHEHELSHEHWHESRH BN TEIRERR - HRFEH - 7
BHENNERREZEEEBHEATHSNEXEN I MBI L EN -
REHEERENTEZHEECRBECHBEZSTIRENKERENBBT AR

%o
FEBEAERMERNEESEHEEENK LHERER  UWEAKEKE

FANEEERTAGAREHRSEENEENE - AREFAENAN2EA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

TE M ImERMEE

16 3% ~ MERK&R

Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Freehold land Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
KA SERE L BT HEMEEE BB R MRS FERZE RE
HK$’000 T &7t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 T &7t HK$’000 F3%& 7T
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020F12 A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount i # 1R EF{E 48,149 100,970 16,907 13,512 14,242 1,089 194,869
Additions & i - - 2,179 1,984 2,690 1,044 7,897
Disposals (Note 27(b)) EE (f3E27(b)) - - (2,048) ) 97) - (2,154)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) F &t F2%7) - (3,113) 4,871) (1,709) 6,671) (354) (16,718)
Currency translation differences & %5 7 2 =58 668 2,074 449 - 282 12 3,485
Closing net book amount i R ik F{E 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
At 31 December 2020 A20205 12 A 31 H
Cost {4~ 48,817 134,210 67,752 59,455 41,801 4,664 356,699
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2575 K& - (34,279) (55,136) (45,677) (31,355) (2,873) (169,320)
Net book amount i [E & 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Freehold land Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
KAFREL BF HEWREE NS BERRZRE RE
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 F & T HK$°000 F &t HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 T % T
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ£2021F12831 HILFE
Opening net book amount A # 1R & /F{E 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
Additions &0 410 1,641 2,681 2,765 3,856 - 11,353
Disposals (Note 27(b)) EE (fizE27(b)) - - (379) 2 (78) - (459)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) ITEXx H (fizE7) - (3,163) (3,392) (1,936) (4,167) (411) (13,069)
Currency translation differences &% 5 & =8 (405) (1,248) (169) = (64) (9) (1,895)
Closing net book amount i 5K iR /FE 48,822 97,161 11,357 14,605 9,993 1,371 183,309
At 31 December 2021 742021612 831 H
Cost A 48,822 134,457 68,211 62,123 43,118 4,615 361,346
Accumulated depreciation and impairment £ 51378 & R{E - (37,296) (56,854) (47,518) (33,125) (3,244) (178,037)
Net book amount R FE 48,822 97,161 11,357 14,605 9,993 1,371 183,309
As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowing is secured by a freehold land and building amounted to HK$10,406,000 A2021%F 128318 » RITHEFLLEREE 10,406,00058 7T (20204 : 11,255,00078 JT)
(2020: HK$11,255,000) (Note 25). Bk R 37 + i RRAE FAE R IR (FEE25) ©
Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statement as follows: REEFBERFFANERZIOT ¢
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 &7t
Cost of sales S8 &2 4,935 4,559
Distribution and selling expenses 7 85 & 551 % 4,428 7,391
General and administrative expenses — % & 1T B % 3,706 4,768
13,069 16,718

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the years ended at 31 December 2020 and 2021.
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18

The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is analysed as follows:

TE M ImERMEE

17 BR.EE

AEENEVEENREFEINOT ¢

Other intangible

At 1 January 2020 74202051 A1 H

Amortisation (Note 7) #$5 (ff5E7)

Currency translation difference ¥ 5 2 =58

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 142020512 A 31 H&2021F181H
Additions &l

Amortisation (Note 7) #85 (ftzE7)

At 31 December 2021 742021512 A 31 H

Note:

Other intangible assets represent customer relationships, a management contract and an exclusive supply contract.

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group recognised a goodwill of HK$49,419,000 in 2015 as a result of the acquisition of the equity interest in
Honour Essence Trading Limited, which is principally engaged in the distribution of Chinese medicine products in
Hong Kong. The goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to this Honour Essence Trading Limited CGU
within the Hong Kong segment.

Goodwill is monitored by management at the operating segment level. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) within the Hong Kong
segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by management based on value-in-use calculation. The key
assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculation are based on management’s best estimates and past
experience.

The value-in-use calculation is based on a five-year financial budget approved by management, with five-year sales
growth rate ranging between 3% to 6% (2020: 0% to 21%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%). A pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2020: 16%) is used which
reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segment.

There was no impairment required from the review on goodwill. A reasonably change in assumptions would not
result in impairment as a such disclosure of sensitivity analysis is not considered necessary.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FVOCI represents a Hong Kong listed equity security which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. This is a strategic
investment which is not held for trading and the Group considers this classification to be more relevant. Its fair value
is analysed as follow:

Goodwill Computer software assets
5k BB HitBEEE
HK$’000 T & 7T HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 & 7T HK$’000 T & 7T
49,419 - 11,250 60,669
— = (5,814) (5,814)
- - (19) (19)
49,419 - 5,417 54,836
- 8,372 - 8,372
- (955) (1,300) (2,255)
49,419 7,417 4117 60,953
MEE

18

HitBWEED AR FHE ERARARBRHESH -

B iR E R &

AEER2015FUBARESERAT HIELBARTERBIHHHER B
BAHEER49,4190008 7 - HERAREFBIBARESERATNREE
A (TR B o

EEETEREINEEENEE - ATHENSNEN  BECOIRELEE TS
HWEANCSHBNREEEEN -

REEAEUNITRESEREREREEAEETEEEMEE - AR EERE
ENERBRREEREERNREGTNBENERMEE

FAEENERENEEERABNEFUREE IFHHEERERAIUEY
(2020 : 0% £21%) - EFEIU B 2 BIERE J3EA 3% (2020 : 3%) L sHE R %R
WE o FTACHABEIREAE16% (2020 : 16%) ' RMEBH IS ERME -

MEEAENRE T ERAE AR BRNSERCTRERAE  FATEENE
BB 4 o

UAREBEFEAEESFARMGSHENE
A& E
HAREEHEARSDHARBEARENEBEERNETEENES LT AR
B5 BREREASRARINESES ARERAE-HAENE - XANE
EHHET

2021 2020

At 1 January 1A 1H
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income 185t A E E 4R & Uiz
At 31 December 1412 B 31 H
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HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 T 7T
6,108 10,983

(645) (4,875)

5,463 6,108
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 IRIERRISIE

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: EEFMSHAEREBENINWT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T8 7T
Deferred income tax assets IEfEFTiS B EE 45,931 32,449
— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions & FRIK 8535 & Frik sE AR FT SR EE (23,881) (19,385)
Deferred income tax assets, net SFEIEFTSFHEE 22,050 13,064
Deferred income tax liabilities dEZEFT 5% & & (31,028) (25,081)
— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions 1% fR K 8537 E FriK S5 AR TSR B & 23,881 19,385
Deferred income tax liabilities, net JBIEFEFFSHEE (7,147) (5,696)
Deferred income tax, net IEFEFT S F 48 14,903 7,368
The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: EEFEHIRE FEBWOT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F7& 7T
At 1 January A1 81H 7,368 3,561
Credited to the consolidated income statement (Note 12) 5t AZR& FEE (fizE12) 7,558 3,670
Currency translation differences & ¥ 5 i 2= 28 (23) 137
At 31 December R 12 B 31 H 14,903 7,368
The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ETEEF BB EEERNGERIEHENERT  BEFESHEEREBRZHNT ¢

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Unrealised
profit resulting
Accelerated from intragroup
accounting transactions Lease
depreciation SEAPBRZIELEN Provisions liabilities
IEEFHITE SR8 35 FI & HESE
HK$'000 & T HK$’000 T8 T HK$’000 T8 T HK$'000 & T HK$’000 F3& 7t
Deferred income tax assets B FiEHEE
At 1 January 2020 A2020%F181H 82 7,480 1,038 20,229 28,829
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement 1 E) 3T A& FIEER (61) 3,056 724 (913) 2,816
Currency translation differences & # i i =48 (1) - 112 693 804
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 /4202012 831 B K 2021181 H 30 10,536 1,874 20,009 32,449
Credited to the consolidated income statement 5t A 4r & B & - 6,625 2,972 4,365 13,962
Currency translation differences & #5 i Z 48 - - (3) (477) (480)
At 31 December 2021 4202112 H 31 H 30 17,161 4,843 23,897 45,931

Accelerated

tax Right-of-use

depreciation assets

IEB BT E EREEE
HK$’000 F & T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F &7t

Deferred income tax liabilities 3 it Fr 5 5t & &

At 1 January 2020 202041 81 A (5,418) (19,850) (25,268)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement 1 E) 3T A& & FIEER (520) 1,374 854
Currency translation differences & #5 5 # = 48 (6) (661) (667)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 /4202012 A31 B K 2021181 H (5,944) (19,137) (25,081)
Charged to the consolidated income statement 1 B 42 & F;E & (2,268) (4,136) (6,404)
Currency translation differences & #5 i i =48 - 457 457
At 31 December 2021 742021 12 F 31 H (8,212) (22,816) (31,028)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B IEIRE I 2

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 19 SRFEFRISIR (18)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related HARBRRERBFELREBEHEER  ARHEFEFERIELERE
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of B AREBIWZ R 4 E LUK SR RERB UK & K E5 18 60,091,000 7T (2020 £
approximately HK$10,859,000 (2020: HK$12,970,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately 71,209,000 % 7T) R IE L P15 B & & £ 10,859,000 78 JT (2020 £ : 12,970,000 %
HK$60,091,000 (2020: HK$71,209,000) at 31 December 2021 that can be carried forward against future taxable Jt) ° BRBI B K518 17,168,000 78 7T (2020 F : 26,584,000 7% 7T) 1 2022 £ 2040 F
income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$17,168,000 (2020: HK$26,584,000) B ZIH (20204 : 2021 £2040 FHEIH) - ZEHEHFBLEE /AL -

which will expire between 2022 and 2040 (2020: expire between 2021 and 2040).

The Group did not recognise the deferred income tax liabilities of HK$6,558,000 (2020: HK$5,709,000) in respect of MR2021F12A31 8 AEEYEFRETHE AR REE 2 EF 131,161,000 T
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries amounting to (20204 : 114,189,0003& 7v) sHR B 2 RN BE Z B TS £ 56,558,000 T
HK$131,161,000 (2020: HK$114,189,000) at 31 December 2021, as the Group can control the dividend policies of (20204 : 5,709,000 %) » L IHAEEEANZHELEHNBEARNNRERRK B
these subsidiaries and these unremitted earnings will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. BERFEENFB IS ETERNRRDE -

20 INVENTORIES 20 #&

HK$’000 T /&t HK$’000 F7& T
Raw materials FE#1# 293,992 344,049
Work in progress £ & 2,114 5,148
Finished goods and trading merchandise 2R MK E 5 & m 135,759 146,181
431,865 495,378
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$351,189,000 (2020: BE2021F12A3MBLFE BRABIUFATHEBERETINEERES
HK$284,198,000). 351,189,000% jt (2020 4 : 284,198,000 % JT) °

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 2] BREKRIEREMBRESEE

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T
Trade receivables & 5 FEURFR1E
— immediate holding company B 3% A 7] 288 3,596
— fellow subsidiaries [& % /B2 & 23,974 364,721
— joint ventures & 3% 2,693 1,931
— associate & A 7 27,148 8,477
— third parties £=7 487,111 174,720
Trade receivables, gross & 5 FEUFRIE - 458 541,214 553,445
Less: loss allowance (note d) J& : E{EE %k (ffzEd) (14,737) (6,993)
Trade receivables, net ¥ & 5 FEU KB 526,477 546,452
Prepayments and other receivables 8137118 & H fth FE UL 5/ 18 24,175 23,738
Deposits & & 17,756 19,272
Amount due from a joint venture (note b) FEU & & 25018 (izEb) 970 970
569,378 590,432
Notes: M =E
(@)  The fair values of trade receivables and other currents assets approximate their carrying amounts. (a) EBIZEUREREMGRBDEENAABEREAREAEMRS
(b)  The amount is repayable on demand, unsecured in nature and bears no interest. (b) ZAREBARERFEEE BEARRZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or credit cards. For wholesales to customers (including
related parties), the Group grants credit periods ranging from 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to 90 days).

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date (including amounts due from
related parties of trading in nature) is as follows:

21

TE M ImERMEE

BEZRWRIEREMREEE (18)

MyEE - G

(c) AEETEEXEFELURS ELFREAFET MRMBETEFS GEBEHL®
AREERENEEHBE30E 180K (20204F : 30E90K) ©

ik

R2021F K 2020F12A31 0 REXEZAHNESRKRRE BERBKBEESN
ESRE NKREITOT :

2021 2020

Up to 90 days 90 X

91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X
Over 365 days 365 % A £

(d) The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This resulted in loss allowance amounted to HK$14,737,000 (2020: HK$6,993,000) for
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021. Please refer to Note 3(a)(ii) for details about the calculation of the allowance and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

HK$’000 F %7t HK$’000 F#& 7T
457,121 344,216

45,779 67,156

29,803 59,542

8,511 82,531

541,214 558,445

(d) AEEFRAEEVBHEEULIORNECT AT BRABERREL  WHMEESE

RERIDBEETERNERBRBEME - R2021F12A310  EENEZERR

TEIB KRB R 14,737,000 8 7T (2020 : 6,993,0008 7T) © MY &E 3(a)(ii) & AR B A8 5T
BHRFHMAER

M12A310  EZERWRBZHENZREPINESZBYEREZRET RNAENT -

2021 2020

Loss allowance as at 1 January A1 A1 BiR{EEX

Loss allowance of trade receivables for the year (Note 7) & 5 FEWF 2 R EFHE FizE7)
Exchange difference [ 5% Z %8

Loss allowance as at 31 December A 12 A 31 AiE{EIE %k

(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and other current assets are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F7& 7T
6,993 3,351

7,522 3,327

222 315

14,737 6,993

(e) AEEMNEZEWFARAMABEEZNREBUTIEREE:

2021 2020

Hong Kong dollar &7t
Renminbi A R#&

United States dollar =7t
Australian dollar &7t
Canadian dollar fl7c

Euro BT

South Korea won § 7t
Other currencies Hfth & #

() At 31 December 2021, the Group does not hold any collateral as security (2020: nil).
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HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T3 7T
268,271 171,315
282,943 399,258

8,568 9,045

1,810 674

1,251 1,388

1,154 1,435

590 2,718

4,791 4,599

569,378 590,432

() M2021F12 8310 AEELEFEEMRFRERER (2020F - 8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o B PSR I S

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 RERIVITHEER

HK$’000 Ti& T HK$’000 F& T
Cash and cash equivalents I & R IREZEY
— Cash at bank and on hand SR{TREFEE 652,482 497,829
— Short-term bank deposits with original maturities within three months FREIfR B =18 B s AN 2 B HISR1TIE R 1,007,822 928,211
1,660,304 1,426,040
Short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months R HiFR & =18 B UL £ 2 B HRER 1717 5K 615,264 421,097
Total Z25t 2,275,568 1,847,137
At 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits included balances of R2021F12A31E  FEEN AR A CEEYVWUREHARTERERE
HK$154,041,000 (2020: HK$117,886,000), which were deposits with banks in the Mainland China. The remittance of 154,041,00058 7T (20204 : 117,886,000/8 T) * ZEHRBBEBET B A MBI 2R 1T
such balances out of the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control NER - BZEERELHPEANMEAZIHEBFERNIMMEEFIRAREREE
promulgated by the PRC government.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in AEENESRESEEYUAREHRTERNREEATHEE !

the following currencies:

2021 2020

HK$’000 T & 7T HK$’000 F#& 7T

Hong Kong dollar /& Jt 1,913,828 1,573,583
Renminbi A R#& 154,618 102,049
Macao pataca J#2F9 Jt 70,813 27,684
Canadian dollar il 7t 32,936 30,281
Australian dollar &t 31,409 30,909
Singapore dollar 103 7T 28,057 28,154
United States dollar &7t 20,372 35,404
Other currencies HE At & #& 23,535 19,073
2,275,568 1,847,137

23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 B

Number Share
of shares capital
R4 E ;&
HK$’000 T8 7T
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid 2 31T R 42 ZER
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 A 2020 £ }% 2021 ££12 A 31 H 837,100,000 938,789
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 RESERVES

Merger reserve

TE M ImERMEE

24 f#fs

Statutory reserve

(note a) Other (note b) Exchange Retained
aOtEE reserves EEREE reserve earnings
Fizxa) Heb & (Ff=EDb) B 5 ke 6
HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F &7t HK$’000 T &7t
At 1 January 2020 74202051 A1 H (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 1,720,712
Comprehensive income %44 Wi
Profit for the year 4 £ K178 - - - - 542,456 542,456
Other comprehensive (losses)/income Hftt4iR& EH) W
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBESEEESHTAHMFERENEREEAAEBEED - (4,875) - - - (4,875)
Currency translation differences &% 5 & =8
— Group A& H - - - 12,861 - 12,861
— Joint ventures & & 3 - - - 79 - 79
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %4 (&18)), W B - (4,875) - 12,940 542,456 550,521
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S FIEEUEFEEN SR ETHNR S NEEE
Dividends paid (Note 14) 2132 5. (f{ZF14) - - - - (192,533) (192,533)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EEERFIEEUEREEN S DETHR S HWELE - = = = (192,533) (192,533)
At 31 December 2020 22020512 831 H (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 2,078,700

Merger reserve
(note a)

BOHEE

Other
reserves

Statutory reserve
(note b)
EERE

Retained
earnings

Exchange
reserve

(fizEa)

HAt A

(= b) BE 5 i fREE Wk

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F % T
At 1 January 2021 742021 %1 A1 H (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 2,078,700
Comprehensive income % & I 3
Profit for the year & & ;8 - - - - 607,838 607,838
Other comprehensive (losses)/income Eft4RE (8 w3
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEESHTIAHMFERENEREEAAEEED - (645) - - - (645)
Currency translation differences & % 5 Z 48
— Group A& H - - - 624 - 624
— Joint ventures and associates & & XK N T = = = 40 = 40
Total comprehensive (losses)/income &4 (B8 B 5 - (645) - 664 607,838 607,857
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BB & UEFEENEMDETHRZ NEHE
Transactions with non-controlling interests (Note 30) E23FiZH R ETHR Z F3E30) - (6,269) - - - (6,269)
Dividends paid (Note 14) B+ B (fizE 14) = = = = (200,904) (200,904)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners BRI EUEHFEEN I HETHX S WEE - (6,269) - - (200,904) (207,173)
At 31 December 2021 22021 12 §31 H (13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 2,479,384
Notes: Bt 2

(@) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net book value of the entities that had been acquired and
the investment consideration paid by the Company to effect a reorganisation that took place in 2010.

(b) The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the Mainland China to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their
respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for
specific purposes. The company in the Mainland China is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the
aggregate sum of the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further contribution to the statutory reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Annual Report 2021

(a) AEENEHAEARBECUBEERNREDFIELEAQAANAN2010FETEAFTITH

RENRENERE -

(b) HECEERERAE  ERERNBERNAIRTORESEADIKFEAN - AREA

EEMBEBRMAEBUFANB EHEUTFENRTBRERD b PEIEURES
THERB FELEREHDABERRMRYL - FEIRB A AR D IKEFEHNKR
RERNEE AR ZEZEREBEIEEZEFFNEN10% EBEATEERENEANBBHE
AMERNS0%E  ARAFLEIE - ZERBRAUBEFERQIANEE - BAQ
ANEELEEREMATNER - W BRESERFER ARATEAEKRHRE
B EERBEHE-DHR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 BORROWINGS

TE M ImERMEE

25 @&

Note Fff&F HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F7& 7T

Non-current FE &)

— Secured bank borrowing B R 1TE R @-(c) 56 59

— Unsecured government loan 35 #f B fF £ 5K @ 743 1,993
Total non-current borrowings 3ERBIfEEAZE 7% 2082
Current i &)

— Unsecured government loan 3 # B4 @ 480 260
Total current borrowings RENMEEAZE 480 260
Total borrowings & & %8 1,279 2,312

Notes:

(@ The bank borrowing is secured by the freehold land and building of the Group amounted to HK$10,406,000 (2020:

HK$11,255,000) (Note 16).

(b) The bank borrowing bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023 (2020:
same). The Group has HK$7,885,000 (2020: HK$8,320,000) undrawn borrowing facility with floating rate expiring beyond one

year.

G

The bank borrowing is denominated in Australian dollar and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

The government loans represent a fund from Macau Economic Bureau under a special assistance scheme for small-medium
corporations affected by typhoon and funds from governments under the schemes related to COVID-19.

For Macau government loan, the interest free loan is unsecured and repayable in 7 years (2020: same). The loan is
denominated in Macao pataca and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

For other government loans, all loans are interest free (2020: two of the loans bears interest at 1% per annum and the
remaining loans are interest free). All of the loans are unsecured and repayable in 1 to 2 years (2020: 2 to 5 years). The loans
are denominated in Canadian dollar and Poland ztoty (2020: Canadian dollar, Poland ztoty and United States dollar)
respectively and their carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R 17 18 T B 7~ £ B £ 10,406,000 78 7T 19 7k R ¥ #E L #h & 12 F 35 # (2020 F :
11,255,000 & 7t) (ffzE 16) ©

BITEREBRANTEWRTEZEFNERM15%RFETE A AETERER 20234
2 &I (2020 : #[E) - A% HF 7,885,000 5t (2020 F : 8,320,0007% jT) K &
ANZBANEREEREIDRHBAE—F -

RITEEURTAE - BAREERAABERES -

BUFER AR AR 2 A2 E /455 By a8 T #9708 bR H A B R 3
T R R BT o

BERRFABAEN EESERERFLFTRA7EFRAEE - ERURMATHE BH
IREEENAEEESR (2020 @ HE) °

BEREMBNER > EERERE (2020F  HPMEERNENEH1% - Hi
MERERD) - FEERHEKBYLFM1ZE2F (2020F : 2E5F) REE - B
BApnst A ROR B EZE R (20204 : pOoT » IRBILEIREUARE D) FHE - EHRMEES
DAEERSE -

26 EZREMEMCRKIE

HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 T 7T
Trade payables & 5 FE{FE
— intermediate holding company A 32 % 2 &) 9,343 10,893
— immediate holding company B #1282 7 12,801 16,005
— fellow subsidiaries [ & H& A = - 144
— third parties =7 12,452 47,089
Trade payables (note a) & 5 FE{IFE (ffzEa) 34,596 74,131
Accruals and other payables FEsTE F K H b B+ 7R 1B 88,446 62,273
Contract liabilities &R & & 4,508 3,734
127,550 140,138
Notes: M&E
(a) At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the trade payables (including amounts due to related parties of trading (@) R2021FR2020F12A31H  REXZHHNESENARE BREESBEELN
in nature) based on invoice date is as follows: BHME) NERROMAOT :
HK$000 F38 7 HK$'000 F38 7%
Up to 90 days 90 X 30,273 61,015
91-180 days 91 X &£ 180 X 33 7,503
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X - 969
Over 365 days 365 KB4 £ 4,290 4,644
34,596 74,131
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

TE M ImERMEE

26 BH REfEMRIE (1)

(b) AEEEZRHMESTRNREBNTIERTE :

Hong Kong dollar &7t
Renminbi A R#&

Canadian dollar fl7c
Australian dollar 27T

South African rand I 3EBI4S
Singapore dollar f H03% 7T
United States dollar £t
Other currencies Hfth & #

27 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

2021 2020
HK$’000 F % 7T HK$’000 T3 7T
59,367 52,685

36,619 46,559

6,132 6,111

5,204 5,660

4,836 5,236

2,560 2,519

1,521 6,757

11,311 14,611

127,550 140,138

27 ERERERMET
(o) BEMEEZRE

Profit before income tax B F7 15 % 41 7 &

Adjustments for: Bi AT IE B #H% :

— COVID-19-related rent concessions (Note 7) T EARF S It X HHEHE S RZE GHzE7)

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) {F FAEEEITE (izE15)

— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) ¥1% « BiE K 2 BT E (5 16)
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) ;& E#E ({5 17)

— Impairment loss on inventories (Note 20) 17 & 2 R{ETE ({5 20)

— Write-off of inventories (Note 20) 7 & #&#5 (3£ 20)

— Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 21) & 5 FEWFIE 2 BB TR (fzE21)

— Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) tHEYI % - BiE R RE 2 EE (f5E7)
— Loss/(gain) on modification of lease A& # ¥ ~ 18, F15)

— Dividend income B& Rz

— Finance costs/(income), net (Note 10) JE B #5323 GffzE 10)

— Share of (profits)/losses of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 11)

B EARZIRE RIE &S GEE11)
— Unsecured government loan waived £ % K 3 BT & 5k

Changes in working capital: 28 & &8 :

— Inventories 7 &

— Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEINFRIB R R EB1E =
— Trade and other payables & 5 & HE i fE (S 7118

Cash generated from operations BEFEE RS

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 16) BEE F1& (ffzF 16)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) HEY % « BE K& E 2 K518 (isE7)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment tHHEYI % - BiE KRBTSR
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2021 2020
HK$'000 F3&7T HK$’000 F & 7T
778,391 685,895

(483) (3,360)

54,648 55,554

13,069 16,718

2,255 5,814

58 -

323 210

7,522 3,327

437 2,124

83 82)

(180) (165)

330 (17,352)

(261) 860

(1,227) -
854,965 749,543
64,958 (168,753)

23,185 (219,541)
(28,103) (33,660)
915,005 327,589

(b) FERERERTP ) HEYE - KERRIEFRESKIA
2021 2020

HK$°000 %7t HK$’000 F & 7T
459 2,154

(437) 2,124)

22 30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o & B TR IR i

27 {\(I:OTES Ta)CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27 FEREREXRMMT(E)
ontinue

(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities (c) RATE i B Fif 22 5 RO TR & e B8 S B
Borrowings Lease liabilities
BE HESE

HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F#& 7T
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2020 74202051 81 B @& ZBNERE 1,053 98,822 99,875
Principal elements of lease payments #& & &£ 22 - (46,613) (46,613)
Interest paid EAJFIE ) (4,293) (4,300)
Proceeds from borrowing & & 153k 1,394 - 1,394
Repayment of borrowing & & & & (166) - (166)
Acquisition of lease U8 E - 52,574 52,574
Others(i) E At (i) 7 1,001 1,008
Foreign exchange adjustments [& 57 782 31 2,207 2,238
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2020 7420204 12 B 31 B@&EEIMNERE 2,312 103,698 106,010
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2021 74202151 81 B@EZENE RS 2,312 103,698 106,010
Principal elements of lease payments #H & & &4 &2 - (50,496) (50,496)
Interest paid E 1458 ) (4,705) (4,707)
Proceeds from borrowing f& & A5 & 387 - 387
Repayment of borrowing {&& & & (166) = (166)
Unsecured government loan waived 24 % S35 8 BUF & 5% (1,227) - (1,227)
Acquisition of lease EViSfH & - 58,093 58,093
Others(i) E At (i) 2 22,093 22,005
Foreign exchange adjustments [& 5 582 27) (1,486) (1,513)
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2021 42021 £12 831 BB EETHHNEE 1,279 127,197 128,476

i) Hitb H B BIERFANE - HABKRESHAAEESRBNEELE -

(i) Other changes include accrued interest expense, COVID-19-related rent concessions and lease modification.

28 COMMITMENTS 28 i

(a) Capital commitments (a) BEFHE
2021 2020
HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 F& 7T
Contracted but not provided for B 5] #{8 &k
— property, plant and equipment ¥ « BiE & 25 3,342 5,155
(b) Lease commitments (b) HERIE
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for leases, except for short-term and low-value leases as set REBCOHRRIEEAFTAESE  UTHHE2EHREEEBEERD -
out below:
2021 2020
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T8 7T
No later than 1 year 1 & 1,509 5,074
As at 31 December 2020, undiscounted future lease payments amounted to HK$14,059,000 were committed MR2020F 12831 B AEBEAFEARAFABEN AT RARARBEESTRER
by the Group but the relevant lease periods had not commenced. These lease commitments were recognised 14,059,000/8 T - ELEHEEREE 2021 FHENFRARKERAEHAES
as right-of-use assets upon the lease commencement date in 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has EoMN2021F 128310 AEEEHEBERBEHRIATHHEERE -

no relevant lease commitments not commenced.
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29 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXRABAE RS

At 31 December 2021, two subsidiaries of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong R2021 5128310 BACEEEATANMENBARRCENRRECERDAER
Ren Tang Ltd. directly owned 38.05% and 33.62% of shareholding in the Company respectively. Tong Ren Tang RADPREEFEARAT38.05% K 33.62% E#m - -CERNERATDTBRCE
Ltd. is also the controlling shareholder of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. effectively owns 71.67% BENERBRR BLCEROGERATNBEREEERLQTT1.67% RHE - 2T 28.33%
equity interest in the Company. The remaining 28.33% of the shares are widely held. HRBHEZEE °

The Board of Directors of the Company regards Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the immediate holding company, AABESERECENRAEEERQAR B ERDERIAABPHEERQIAR
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the intermediate holding company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings as the ultimate holding FAI-EZEEQARAARKERAR  ZEARHERPEFMAL -

company, all of which are companies incorporated in the PRC.

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of these consolidated financial statements, the following transactions RZEGREVBRRREMEHMREESN > THXZ HEBABELET
were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales and purchases of products (o) HERBEER
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T T HK$’000 Tt
Sales of products to $HEE R T
Joint ventures & & 3% @) 3,852 5,105
Fellow subsidiaries E & KB A & i) 92,118 338,024
An associate B A 7] (i) 42,288 17,417
Immediate holding company B 12 % 2 7] (i) 703 8,668
138,961 369,214
2021 2020
Note FffzE HK$000 &7t HK$000 F& 7T
Purchases of products from BLL T ARBEEEM
Immediate holding company B 12 % 2 7] (i) 26,289 36,708
Intermediate holding company = EiZ % 2 7] (i) 31,718 70,038
Fellow subsidiaries [EZ[ff & A & (i) 1,615 2,014
59,622 108,760
(b) Royalty fee (b) SRRE{EFRE
2021 2020
Note Fff&E HK$°000 T 3% T HK$’000 T3 T
Royalty fee income from joint ventures 2R B & & ¥~ Mg FEHAE RS (i) 318 203
(c) Lease payments (c) HH2MHEX
2021 2020
Note Fff & HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& T
Lease payments to: B T AR ZF 2 &R
Ultimate holding company Ex#& 32 % 2\ &) (i) 985 773
Fellow subsidiaries [5 £ [{ & A &) (i) 4,876 4,874
5,861 5,647
At 31 December 2021, the Group recognised lease liabilities payable to fellow subsidiaries of HK$4,761,000 R2021F12A31 B AXEREEVEEERIERNEANBARNEES
(2020: HK$9,336,000) over the relevant property leases. f&4,761,0003% 5t (2020 £ : 9,336,000 7T) ©
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29 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 29 EXEME RS (&)
(d) Advertising agency services expense d EEREREER

2021 2020

Note FffzE HK$°000 F&7T HK$000 &7t
Advertising agency services expense to a fellow subsidiary BRI R KB QA R 2EENEREER (@ 2,552 1,235

(e) Key management compensation (e) EEEEASHH

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management. The emoluments TREEARBEATRFATESNSATEAR - HEREBBOTEREE

paid or payable to key management for employee services is as follows: ABXHAREMHMESAT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 T3 7T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits # & M E S HEERA 8,213 7,834
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & 4~ — EZEHEIRETE 301 32
8,514 7,866
Notes: B 5E
0] These transactions were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms mutually agreed between the (i) ZERXSGN—MEKBREPRESHTENWERRIRTGET °
parties involved.
(ii) In accordance with the royalty agreements, the royalty fee is charged annually by the Company at either 1% on (if) REERABNAATREREEARDERZECELEEZERAN 1% B
revenue and 1.5% on profit before income tax of the joint ventures, whichever is higher. Pursuant to these agreements, RIFEM1.5% RS ENRER - RIEZSHS  ZSAELEREUFCE]

these joint ventures are permitted to operate under “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. MBEREE -

30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN 30 XEMBAF ' SEEERBEQT
ASSOCIATE

N A E: HEAT » Adps s N =
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures at 31 December 2021 and 2020: TXEIR2021 FR2020F12 A3 AWERMBAR R SEERRBE LT

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital it L

Name &7 ARG EREARRER IREBRELE BRORFHE 2021 2020

(@) Subsidiaries ff &2 7
(i Directly held by the Company A2 A E# &5

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd. PRG, limited liability company Sale and distribution of Chinese medicine products HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
TR CEEREEERAROY FE > BRAR and healthcare products 1000000085

HERDETEERERRER

Beijing, PRC

HE 1R
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and AUD1,000,000 75% 75%
TRECE BAFDERAR BARIE  BRAF healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 1,000,000 27

consultation and treatments
HERFETLEERERRRURRATEDRRE
Sydney, Australia
BARE BR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts (Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd. Singapore, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and SGD857,000 51% 51%
FRECETME HDIABRAR Hiing > BRAR healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 857,000 MK T
consultation and treatments

HEREFETRERARRRIURRETEDRRE

Singapore

AR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc. Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD497,300 51% 51%
TRELCE BRPERATE mek BRAA and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 497,300 € A7t

FEPEERERBRURRETEDRRK
Toronto, Canada

nex - 6%
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN 30 FEMBLATE  BELERMEAT ()
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital fiERRRa

AR R EARRER IREBRELHE BRORFFE 2021 2020

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) 82 = (&)
(i Directly held by the Company (Continued) &2 AIE##&5 @

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products AED1,920,000 51% 51%
FTREACESEERAT MAfEEEERE  BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation 1,920,000 P B 1 18
and treatments

ZENEERARERRRETED RS
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
MAAKEERE B

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited Macao, PRC, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products MOP1,000,000 51% 51%
ERECE R ERAT HE o RM BRAR and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 1,000,000 1t

consultation and treatments

HERFENEERARRARRHTBIRRY

Macao, PRC

- R
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.0. Poland, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products Zloty130,000 100% 100%
FTRECE (KRR ERAF RE - BRAR and provision of Chinese healthcare treatments 130,000 &%

ZENEERARERRRETED RS
Warsaw, Poland

R ED

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) Company Limited South Korea, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and WON 1,052,000,000 51% 51%
TERCE ERHAEH % BRAT healthcare products 1,052,000,000 87

HEhEERERER

Seoul, Korea

2H EW
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited © New Zealand, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products NZD2,000,000 100% 51%
FTRECE @RRBRAR O HiE® BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 2,000,000 BT

RETRERARRRRELTEIRRY

Auckland, New Zealand

HEH Rnl
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Company Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products HK$10,000 100% 100%
TRECEROELERAR HE R BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 10,0007

SENEERERRRRRETEDREY
Hong Kong, PRC

E BE
Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and HK$2,000 51% 51%
AEESBRAT HE & BRAR healthcare products 200087

HETEERERER

Hong Kong, PRC

HE - B
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Healthcare Center Co., Ltd Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD1,000,000 51% 51%
TRRCERTFEREROERA A MK ERAF and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 1,000,000 1€ At

SETEERERRRRRHPEDRRY
Vancouver, Canada
mex BEE
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN 30 FEMBLATE  BELERMEAT ()
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital it L

EME R EARRER IREBRELHE BRORFFE 2021 2020

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) fff 82 7 @
(i) Indirectly held by the Company A2 B #EE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Pty Limited Australia, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products AUD100,000 38% 38%
HEECE @ENERAT BAFE  ERAT and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 100,000 870
ZENEERERRRRRAPEDRRY
Melbourne, Australia

BANG - EFA

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health Centre B.V. The Netherlands, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products Euro650,000 45% 45%
TR EEEREPOVERAR HE o BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 650,000E( 7

ZENEERARRRRRETEDRES
Den Haag, the Netherlands

#E 8%
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE The Czech Republic, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products (0ZK3,296,400 45% 45%
TREACE BRI ERAF #x o BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 3,296,400 % 5 &

EEDEERERERRREHPEDRES
Prague, Czech Republic

R ik
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd. Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD1,000,000 51% 51%
TERCE MERNERAT nex BRAF and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 1,000,000 1€ At

ZENEERERRRRRETEDRES
Vancouver, Canada
nek o BTE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Sweden, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products SEK 50,000 45% 45%
FRRCE GRFRAF H# o BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatment 50,0005 4252 54
TETEERERERRRAPEDREY
Stockholm ,Sweden

RR HESRE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Switzerland, limited liability company Provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments CHF500,000 45% 45%
TERCERLRGERAT ht ARAR RETELHERY 500,0003% 1 %58

Geneva, Switzerland

Bt BRR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$200,000 60% 60%
FTRERCEREERAR 2B BRAR and healthcare products 200,000% 7T

HERBETEERERER
New York, United States

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord New York LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$800,000 51% 51%
FREACERNANERAR 26 BRAR and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 800,000%7

consultation and treatments
BRRESETEERARBRIRRETED BRE
New York, United States

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles Healthcare Center LLC United States, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products US$600,000 51% 51%
FRRCERVRERROERAR X6 BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 600,000 7

ZETEERERRRRRMAPED RN
Los Angeles , United States
ELEN 7

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (San Gabriel CA) LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$600,000 51% 51%
TRECE EEEMNERAF 26 BRAR and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 600,000% 7

consultation and treatments
BERTEPEEREREAURREDEDERY
Los Angeles , United States
X8 BB
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity

EME R EARRER

TE M ImERMEE

30 XEMBAR  SEEXERBMEAT (&)

Principal activities and place of operation

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

share capital Fris Bp

IREBRELHE BRORFFE 2021 2020

M

@

(b)

Joint ventures & %
(i Directly held by the Company A2 A E# 5

Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD @ Malaysia, limited liability company
IRECE B BRAR® BRAED BRAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ® Thailand, limited liability company
TRECE GE)ERATA ZE BRAA

Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company

REERERAF HE B BRAF
(¢ Associate BEAF

Directly held by the Company A2 B E 5

Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited® ® PRC, limited liability company
TRRCEEERENRMBRAT VO FE > BRAR

The English names of the Group companies incorporated in the Mainland China represent the best effort by the management
of the Group in translating from their Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests in these entities, the directors of the Company
consider that these entities are joint ventures of the Company because their strategic operating, investing and financing
activities are jointly controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture agreements
rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the Company.

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

Registered as a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise under the PRC Law.

The Group acquired 49% equity interests in Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited from non-controlling
interests at the consideration of HK$16,602,000 at 31 December 2021. The carrying amount of 49% equity interests of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company at acquisition date was HK$10,333,000.

On 30 September 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 40% of the equity interests in Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM

Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited (the “Target Company”) from an independent third party at a total consideration of
RMB33,109,300 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,832,000).

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products MYR1,900,000 60% 60%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 1,900,000 5%

ZETEERERERIRRHANEDRER

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

BRASD 0 TRR
Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products THB38,000,000 49% 49%
and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 38,000,0005 3%

consultation and treatments
HERBETEEREARRRIURRGTED RS
Bangkok, Thailand

ZE 84

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products HK$10,000 50% 50%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 10,000

SETRERRRRAARRETEDRRE

Hong Kong, PRC

HE - &

Technological development and sales of biological products, US$3,000,000 40% -
Chinese and western medicines, cosmetics and 3,000,000% 7
healthcare products

EPER PEE  (HANRRENDRNARRHEE

(1)

(6)

RAEABEMRTINEBADEERRLEH LR SBEAEEEEERE
MY EEEEMA -

BEARRABFEZSERSINADNE0% RE  EARRBESEHS  ZSER
EHEE RERBEFZDYRALDARGEBHAFES  MIREQIRAES
BEHABEBEEARE  HAQIDESRAR/ZASHEBDAQAEERE -

t
i1

FENFEZEMBLARIZHEREZENMSHEBREEATE -
REFEZEIMBIEBEECE -

2021512 A31H » AEEH 16,602,000 T E B I IERESWE T RE
EBRRWABRATVIO%NWRE - L HECE BB ERATRKER49% WK
fERERTEE A 10,333,000 8 7T

2021 9A 30 AEERRABLE=FRELZFCEEZEREEYEMERD

= (TEZEAT)) 40% KW RE  BEHER ARY 33,109,300t (HHE R 439,832,000
B TT) o

ERECEAEERAT | —E=—FFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

w
5
ol
\md
I

=3 =1

\

It

=

&

TE M ImERMEE

2021 2020

Assets EE
Non-current assets R E&EE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BE K & 1#E
Right-of-use assets ff A& E
Investment property & & 43
Intangible assets & &E
Investments in subsidiaries B A 7 28 E
Investments in joint ventures RE & ¥ 2 RE
Investments in associates REEZE N T 2R E
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
DAREEFEEESB T ARMRERENSREE
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

BEWE BERREUREFVEENCHES

Current assets B & E
Inventories 7 &
Trade receivables and other current assets & S EWFIER Hib R8I & &
Short-term bank deposits 52 Hi$R 1717 5K
Cash and cash equivalents R& R IR S EEY

Total assets EEALE
Equity and liabilities ## & & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 A1 H A B
Share capital & Z<
Reserves f#f&
— Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEHESTARMASRENERERE
— Retained earnings & 8 Wz
Total equity =4
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 3£ B & &
Lease liabilities HE & 1&
Deferred income tax liabilities, net S IEiE Fr {55 & &

Current liabilities F 21 & &

Trade and other payables B 5 & E fth FE{f T 1E
Lease liabilities HHE & 1&

Current income tax liabilities EHiFr 58 & &

Total liabilities & &4 %8
Total equity and liabilities #% & & E# 5

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2022 and was signed on its

behalf.

Ding Yong Ling

Director

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Annual Report 2021

Lin Man

Director

Note Fff&E

32

HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 &7t
80,919 81,906
134,602 130,439
11,796 11,935
7,417 -
295,847 278,477
26,448 26,448
43,762 3,930
5,463 6,108
13,991 10,430
o 620245 549,673 _
311,095 370,597
726,225 655,037
590,400 390,340
1,318,557 1,171,757
29217 2567731
3,566,522 3,137,404
938,789 938,789
(8,325) (7,680)
2,477,755 2,090,749
.. 3am219 502185
14,872 16,888
6,968 51535/
R 21840 22423
87,007 56,180
28,447 19,154
21,009 17,789
R 196463 93,123 _
o 158303 115,546
3,566,522 3,137,404

DNEANEEEERN2022F3 9 ARESEHE  YAHUTARESE -

TX¥#E
EF

EF
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32 RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 32 RE)f#{E

Financial asset at
fair value
through other
comprehensive

income reserve

UAREERER

Retained earnings HE st AHA

REWKE HFEURENEHEE

HK$’000 F &7t HK$’000 F#& 7T

At 1 January 2020 74202041 81H 1,772,121 (2,805)

Profit for the year £ E 74 511,161 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UARBESEEESIBHAHMGERENERMEEIAEBE - (4,875)

Dividends paid (Note 14) SRS FiEE 14) (192,533) -

At 31 December 2020 22020512 831 H 2,090,749 (7,680)

At 1 January 2021 74202151 81H 2,090,749 (7,680)

Profit for the year & E R 587,910 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UARBEFEEESBFAEMGESRENERMEEAAEEZD = (645)

Dividends paid (Note 14) EFIRE (ff5E14) (200,904) -

At 31 December 2021 4202112 H5 31 H 2,477,755 (8,325)
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Information for Investors

INVESTOR CALENDAR

6 August 2021
9 March 2022
10 June 2022

6 June to 10 June 2022
(Both days inclusive)
16 June to 20 June 2022
(Both days inclusive)

20 June 2022

On or before 30 June 2022

2021 interim results announcement
2021 annual results announcement
Annual General Meeting

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at annual general meeting)

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend)

Record Date (for determination of shareholders who qualify for the final dividend)

Payment of final dividend

SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
Listing

Stock Code

GEM Listing Date

Transferred from GEM to
Main Board Date

Lot Size

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
3613

7 May 2013

29 May 2018

1,000 shares

IREEBE

-
X¢
\md
I
™
I

.3

Issued Share Capital 837,100,000
as at 31 December 2021

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2881 7989

Fax: (852) 2881 0839

Email: ir@tongrentangcm.com

Website: cm.tongrentang.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for annual/interim report copies, please contact the Company’s share

registrar and transfer office:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Website: www.computershare.com

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

2021 %8H6H 2021 FHHIEELNE

2022F3H9H 2021 FEEEENE

202246 510 A RRBFRE

202246 A6 HZE6H10H EERERMBFECTFE EEREERRBEAS
BEEEWH WHELREZRR

202256 A16 HE6 820 A HERERMDBFELTFE BESERBBKRBAREN
(BEER™MA) i)

202246 520 A i HE EESERBERBR SRR

2022 6 A 30 A= Z A7 IR REIRE

=g =

AR ERE T RECEEEERAR

i) EBBHAER S IERATER

B REE 3613

GEM L7 A # 2013%587H

HGEMEZ X A 20185 H29H

BEEEN 1,000 B% Bz 17

M2021E12831H2 837,100,000 B
BRITRA

IREERRER

B BEE 1R

ERESP D KE1405-1409 F
B ¢ (852) 2881 7989

fBH : (852) 2881 0839

E I : ir@tongrentangcm.com
#441t : cm.tongrentang.com

AZ R AR 75 R B 7

BE BTRECGRESESIEUHET  ROEERE - BLXREIRI

RHRE NER  FHERAQXEAROELREFE

BEPRESBLERAA
BEBEFERKER183R
EMAL17T1712-1716 578

E5E - (852) 2862 8555

fEH : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087
E# : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
#41t © www.computershare.com
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Corporate Information

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)
Chen Fei

Lin Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman)
Zhao Zhong Zhen
Chan Ngai Chi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhao Zhong Zhen (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Chan Ngai Chi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Tsang Fung Yi

AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES

Ding Yong Ling
Lin Man

STOCK CODE

3613

HONG KONG SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

cm.tongrentang.com

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP
Suite 3203-3207

32/F

Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong
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Glossary

AGM
Articles of Association

Audit Committee
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group

Board

CG Code

Code Provision(s)

Company or TRTCM

Company Secretary

Competition Executive Committee

Competition Supervisory Committee

Controlling Shareholders
Director(s)

EGM(s)
ESG
Executive Director(s)

GLSPC

Group, we or us
Hong Kong or HKSAR
HK$

Independent Non-executive Director(s)
or INED(s)

KOL
Listing Rules
Model Code

Macao

Annual general meeting of the Company
Articles of Association of the Company

An audit committee of the Company, consists of Chan Ngai Chi, Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper and Zhao Zhong Zhen, and is chaired by Chan Ngai Chi

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (including the Group)

The board of directors of the Company

Corporate Governance Code, Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (version up to
31 December 2021)

Code Provisions in the CG Code

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong, the shares of which were listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 7 May 2013 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 May 2018

The company secretary of the Company

A competition executive committee of the Company, consists of Chan Fei and
Lin Man

A competition supervisory committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper, Zhao Zhong Zhen and Chan Ngai Chi, and is chaired by Tsang
Yok Sing, Jasper

Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings

Director(s) of the Company, including all executive directors and independent
non-executive directors

Extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company
Environmental, Social and Governance
The executive director(s) of the Company

Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules
manufactured by the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

The independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

Key Option Leader

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Exchange

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC
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Glossary

Mainland China
Nomination Committee

Non-PRC market
Owned Product(s)

Parent Group

PRC
Prospectus

Remuneration Committee

SFO

Share(s)

Shareholder(s)

Stock Exchange or Exchange

Tai Po Production and R&D Base

TCM

Tong Ren Tang

Tong Ren Tang Holdings or
TRT Holdings

Transfer of Listing

TRT International Natural-Pharm

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or TRT Ltd.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies or
TRT Technologies

US or United States

Year

PRC but excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan region for the purpose of
this annual report

A nomination committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Markets outside of the Mainland China

The product(s) manufactured by the Group

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (other than the Group)

The People’s Republic of China

Prospectus of the Company dated 25 April 2013

A remuneration committee of the Company, consists of Zhao Zhong Zhen,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Zhao Zhong Zhen

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571

Share(s) of the Company

Shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The research and development and production base of the Company located
at Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

Traditional Chinese medicine

Beijing Tong Ren Tang

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC on 17 August 1992 and is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company

the transfer of listing of the Shares from GEM to the Main Board pursuant to
Chapter 9A of the Main Board

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 18 June 1997, the shares of which have been listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1997, and is the intermediate holding
company of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 22 March 2000, the H shares of which have been
listed on GEM since 2000 and have been transferred to the Main Board since
July 2010, and is the immediate holding company of the Company

The United States of America

Fiscal year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
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Where the English and the Chinese texts conflict, the English text prevails.
MERANBNBRE - BEAZE SRAAEEE -

This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
AERURRERDE



cm.tongrentang.com


cm.tongrentang.com
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